
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
May 12,2016

9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday...May 12,2016, in

the iART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20th Street Mall - Third Floor, 344 - 20tn Street, Oakland,

Califomia.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.

Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the enftance to the Board

Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to

discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting' you may do so under Public

Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted,

approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is

received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings,

as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be

made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.

Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules goveming the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https:i/public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id:CATRANBA
RT_l904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda
packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in
advance ofthe meeting.

Please submit your requesls to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov: in
person or U.S. mail atJ00 Lakeside Drive, 23'd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-601 1; or
telephone 5 I 0-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose ofthe Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may
desire in connection with:

1. CALLTOORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENTCALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of April 28, 2016 (Regular).* Board
requested to authorize.

B. Use ofPayPal Holdings Inc. as Payment Service Provider for BART
Perks Pilot Program.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9003, Scissor Lift.* Board requested to
authorize.

D. FY16 Third Quarter Financial Report.* For information.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members ofthe public to address lhe Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end ofthe Meeting.)

4. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303. Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Paul Oversier, Assistant

General Manager, Operations; Carter Mau, Assistant General
Manager, Administration and Budget; and Carol Isen, Chief
Employee Relations Offi cer

Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal

Employees, Local 3993;
(3) BART Police Officers Association;
(4) BART Police Managers Association;
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and
(6) Service Employees Intemational Union, Local 1021,

BART Professional Chapter
(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)

Govemment Code Section: 54957.6

* Attachment available 2of4



5. ADMINISTRATIONITEMS
Director Saltzman, Chairperson

A. Resolution Ratifying Collective Bargaining Agreement with the
Amalgamated Transit Union, Division 1555.* Board requested to adopt.

B. Resolution Ratifuing Collective Bargaining Agreement with the American
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local 3993.*
Board requested to adopt.

C. Resolution Ratifuing Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Service
Employees Intemational Union, Local 1021, including the BART
Professional Chapter. * Board requested to adopt.

D. FY 17 Preliminary Budget Sources, Uses and Service Plan.x For
information.

E. Independent Auditor's Report on Audit ofFederal Awards under the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circutar A-133 for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 20, 2015.* For information

6. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland. Chairperson

A. Sole Source Procurement with Kampa Intemational for Rail Damper
Assemblies.* Board requested to autlorize. (TWO-THIRDS VOTE
REQUIRED)

B. Agreement with The Allen Group, LlClCooper Pugeda Management,
Inc. for Districtwide Small Business Supportive Services. (Agreement
No. 6M5099).* Board requested to authorize.

7. PLANNING. PUBLIC AFFAIRS. ACCESS. AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Rabum, Chairperson

A. Transit Oriented Development Policy Update: Program Evaluation and

Discussion of Goals.* For information.

8. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

* Attachment available 3 of4



9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are

available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for lntroductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staffto prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

10. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
theirjurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

11. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL _ EXISTING LITIGATION
Name of Case: Bay Area Rapid Transit District v. Pacific Gas and Electric

Company
Case no. EL l5-30-000

GovernmentCode Section: 54956.9(a)

12. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available 4of4



DRAFT

SAN T'RANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,762nd Meeting

April 28,2016

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held April 28,2016, convening at 9:00 a'm' in
the Board Room, 344 20th Street, Oakland, Califomia. President Radulovich presided;

Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Rabum, Saltzman,
and Radulovich.

Absent: None. Director Mc Partland entered the Meeting later.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of April 14,2016 (Regular), and

April 14, 2016 (Special).

2. Award of Contract No. 09AU-150, Special Track Work Procurement
Oakland Shops SPUR.

3. Award of Contract No. 03LM-451, Walnut Creek Station Bicycle Parking
Pavilion.

4. Award oflnvitation for Bid No. 9002,48V Batteries and Chargers.

President Radulovich requested that Reject all Bids for Contract No. 15IF-130, Powell Street

Station Ceiling Upgrades before the Board be removed from Consent Calendar.

Director Blalock made the following motions as a unit. Director Murray seconded the motions.

Director McPartland entered the meeting.

The motions canied by electronic vote with a verbal vote by Director Mc Partland. Ayes - 9:

Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent - 0.

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of April; 14,2016 (Regular), and April
14,2016 (Special), be approved.

2. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 09AU-
150, Special Trackwork Procurement Oakland Shops Spur to Voestalpine
Nortrack Inc., for the Bid amount of $ 642,978.00 pursuant to notification
to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the
District's protest procedures.

-l-



DRAFT
3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 03LM-

45 1, Construction of Walnut Creek Bike Pavilion to Empire Engineering
and Construction, Inc. of San Francisco, Califomia for the Bid price of
$310,903.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager
and subject to compliance with the District's protest procedures and the
FTA's requirements related to protest procedures.

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid
No. 9002, for the Procurement of48V Battery and charger to Storage
Battery Systems LLC of Menomonee Falls, WI in the amount of
$568,414.28, including all applicable sales taxes, pursuant to notification
to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the
District's protest procedures and the Federal Transit Administration's
requirements related to protests procedures.

President Radulovich brought Reject all Bids for Contract No. 15lF-130, Powell Street Station
Ceiling upgrades before the Board. The item was discussed.

Director Blalock moved that All Bids for Contract No. 15IF-130, Powell Street Ceiling
Upgrades, are rejected and the General Manager is authorized to re-advertise the Contract.
Director Murray seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9:
Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Rabum, Saltzman, and
Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent - 0.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Clarence Fischer
Angela Wills

Director Saltzman, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Fiscal
Year 2016-17 Preliminary Budget Procedural Actions. Mr. Carter Mau, Assistant General
Manager, Administration and Budgets, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director
Blalock moved that staff be directed to publish a Budget Pamphlet for Fiscal Year 2017 to be
available no later than May 2,2016 and to the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2017
Preliminary Budget be set for Thursday May 26,2016 in the Board Room. Director Keller
seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Blalock,
Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Munay, Rabum, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.
Absent - 0.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
matter of Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson Construction
Company, Inc., for Revision of Structural Anchorages (C.O. No. 4), before the Board. Mr. Tom
Horton, Group Manager, Earthquake Safety Program and Group Manager, Hayward
Maintenance Complex, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Murray moved
that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 4 for the Revision of
Structural Anchorages, in the amount of $429,350, to Contract No. 79Hm-120, SFTS MB, with
Manson Construction Company, Inc. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes 9: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett,
McPartland, Murray, Rabum, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent - 0.

-2-



DRAFT

Director McPartland brought the matter of Automated License Plate Reader Technology, before
the Board. Mr. Benson Farrow, Deputy Chief of Police, presented the item.
The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mike Katz-Lacabe
JP Massar
Brian Geiser

The item was discussed.

Director Rabum, Chairperson ofthe Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Draft Station Access Policy before the Board. Mr. Robert
Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning and DeveJopment, Mr. Val Menotti, Department
Manager, Planning and Ms. Hannah Lindelof, Senior Planner, presented the item.

Clarence Fischer addressed the Board.

The item was discussed.

President Radulovich exited the meeting.

Alan Smith addressed the Board.

Discussion continued.

Mike Chase addressed the Board.

Director Rabum brought the matter ofDraft Electric Vehicle Charging Policy before the Board.
Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning and Development, Mr. Val Menotti,
Department Manager, Planning and Ms. Holly Gordon, Group Manager, Sustainability,
presented the item. The item was discussed.

Vice President Murray called for the General Manager's Report.

General Manager Grace Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she
had participated in

Vice President Murray brought the matter of District Retiree Liability Valuation & Disclosure
before the Board. Director Josefowitz presented the item.

Chris Finn addressed the Board.

Item was discussed.

Vice President Murray called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call and In Memoriam.

Director Josefowitz commented on the continuing issues related to the maintenance of escalators.

Director Rabum announced he had attended the Blue Sky Festival and suggested attendance of
more BART employees to interact with the customers.

-3-



DRAFT

Vice President Murray announced she had attended the Contra Costa County Transportation
Authority Redefining Mobility Summit.

Vice President Murray called for Public Comment.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

Vice President Murray announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item
10-A (Conference with Legal Counsel) of the regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would
reconvene in open session at the conclusion of that closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:49 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 1:00 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Rabum, and Saltzman.

Absent: DirectorRadulovich.

The Board Meeting recessed at 1:46 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 1:47 p.m.

Directorspresent: DirectorMurray.

Absent: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Rabum,
Saltzman, and Radulovich.

Vice President Murray announced there was no announcement to be made on Item 10-A.

The Board Meeting was adjoumed at 1:48 p.m. in honor of the victims of the 7.3 Earthquake in
Brisbane, Australia.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary

-4-



SENERAL T/UNGER APPROVAL://_h- GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DArE: - 6. 6tl b d%r.4, BOARD INITIATEO lTEm: No
Orlglnator/Preparcd by: Ablg.ll
Thome.Lymanwfyryw
sbn4ddDater 4l1l llo

*,ffi ContmllerrTrrasurer

wlfrr,,
District Secrotary

tI

EARC

q.#,',:
Approval for Use of PayPal Hbtdines Inc. as Payment Seruice Provider for BART Perks

Pilot Program

EXECUTTVE DECISION DOCUMENT

pproval for Use of PayPal Holdings Inc. as Payment

NARMTME:

Purpose: To obtain Board approval to enter into an agleement with PayPal Holdings Inc.
(PayPal) act as a payment service provider for the BART Perks Pilot Program (palmrents will be
made through electronic payments that will not exceed S400,000.00, cumulatively).

Discussion: The BART Perks Pilot Program (Program) is designed to encourage a small
percentage of BART passengers making weekday peak hour trips through the Transbay Tube to
travel outside of the congested peak morning periods. Urban Engines, BART's consultant for
this Program, has successfully tested a similar program on the Singapore Metro system, which
Urban Engines will utilize as the basis for the BART Perks Program. BART's implementation of
this program will be the first large scale domestic pilot of such a program involving a transit
agency. This Program is being implemented using various funding sources in partnership with
the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA).

Participants in the Program eam points for any BART trip and eam extra points when
participants shift their weekday morning tavel times to the periods immediately before and after
the most congested travel times on BART. In addition, participants may also earn points for
completing surveys, inviting friends to join, or through other forms of participation consistent
with state sweepstakes laws.

lnitially, the Program was structured to provide Clipper card value to participants as the incentive
for shifting travel outside of congested travel times. Due to the high transaction fees required to
load Clipper value incentives onto participants' Clipper cards, Program staff explored alternative
methods of payment and considered various payment service providers that would meet the

following criteria:

(l) Cost Effectiveness: Provide a cost-effective solution to deliver tens of thousands of
incentives with as small a transaction cost as possible.
(2) Electronic Transfer: Provide an electronic transfer option that would eliminate the
need to issue paper incentives or checks, and enable bulk import and export of participant
trip data for as many as 10,000 incentive payment transactions per month.
(3) Availabilitv without Barriers: OIfer a service that is readily available to all BART
patrons.

h



Approval for Use of PayPal Holdings Inc. as Payment Service Provider for BART Perks Pilot Program

(4) Cash Payments: Provide cash payments rather than goods or services, to ensure that
the choice of incentive does not skew the results of the Phase I pilot program based on an
individual's preference for a particular item.

Staff evaluated three payment service providers: PayPal, Square, and Tipalti. Staff found that
Square did not have the ability to complete the bulk import and export of data for payments, and
that Tipalti's kansaction fees were financially infeasible given the budget of the Pilot Program.
Therefore staffs recommendation is to move forward with PayPal as the payment service
provider for the first phase of the BART Perks program.

The evaluation of PayPal against the criteria above is as follows:

(1) Cost Effectiveness: PayPal typically charges users 1%o of the value of their
transaction. However, PayPal has agreed to waive its service fees completely for
processing Pilot Program transactions through January 31,2017. Therefore, the PayPal
service for the duration of the Phase I Pilot Program will be free for BART.
(2) Electronic Transfer: PayPal can provide payments to participants using the email
address provided when participants register for the Program.
(3) Availabilitv without Barriers: In a survey of Transbay Tube riders conducted in
preparation for the BART Perks Program, 65% of survey respondents stated that they
were registered PayPal users. If users do not have a PayPal accoun! rewards will be
available when they register for a free PayPal account using the email address associated
with their Program account.
(4) Cash Payments: PayPal is one of the largest providers of electronic cash payments.
Other non-cash options may be available for this progrzrm, such as gift cards or gift
certificates. However, the use of such cards would be dependent on the preference of
participants for the goods or services offered, unlike a cash payment.

BART staff is still evaluating potential changes that may be made to the Program in anticipation
of Phase II. One option is to explore the impacts of alternative incentive mechanisms, such as
gift certificates or other payment options. The details of the Phase II program will be fully
developed several months into Phase I to ensure that Program changes are made based on
sufficient feedback from stafPs review of Phase I.

Fiscal Imnact: None. Although this Agreement would authorize the transfer of up to
$400,000.00 in appropriated incentive payments to PayPal in order to process Pilot Program
incentive payments, PayPal has agreed to waive its service fees and will therefore receive no
revenue under the BART Perks Program.

Alternative: To not approve the motion. If it is not approved, staff would then have to consider
an alternative form of implementing the Perks Program. Such an alternative might result in
additional expenses to the District, such as the potential service fee which PayPal is waiving until
January 31,2017.

Recommendation: Adoption of the following motion.



Approval for Use of PayPal Holdings lnc. as Payment Service Provider for BART Perks Pilot Program

Motion: The Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to enter into an agreernent with
PayPal Holdings, lnc. to serve as the payment service provider to process award incentive
payments to participants under the BART Perks Pilot Program through electronic payments that

will not exceed $400,000.00, cumulatively.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENER.*T MANAGER APPROVAL:/14._
GENERAL IJIANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

Approve and forward to May 12, 2016 E&O Committee meeting.

i/i ts
BOARD INITIATED ITEM: NO

NARMTIVE:

PI]RPOSE:

To request Board authorization to award Invitation For Bid (IFB) No. 9003 to Golden Gate Truck Center,

Oakland, CA, in the amount of $592,472.63, including all applicable sales tax, for the purchase of two (2)
High-Rail Scissor Lift Trucks (Scissor Lift Trucks).

DISCUSSION:

Scissor Lift Trucks are used by the Right of Way Group, Track, Structures and Traction Power

Departments, to elevate crews and materials to the proper height when repairing and installing equipment

within tunnels and underground structures, and for performing exterior building and station maintenance.

This procurement is for two (2) new heary duty Scissor Lift Trucks that are fourteen (14) feet in length

with a four (4) door crew cab that seats five (5) people. The Scissor Lift Truck frames support a six (6)
ton capacity flatbed work platform, capable of traveling up to fourteen (14) vertical feet when required for
work on overhead utilities and surfaces such as: fans and lighting fixtures, high power lines and switches

hung near tunnel ceilings, pipes and conduit, and concrete in need of grouting or sealing to prevent water
intrusion and leakage. The extending bed platform increases worker safety and efficiency by reducing

potential for injury and shortening job completion times. This equipment is essential for sustaining

District infrastructure in a state of good repair.

Amber and blue safety lighting and a tier four (4) final diesel engine that meets all Federal and State of
California requirements are included. The only alternative fuel options currently available for this vehicle

are: compressed natural gas (CNG), liquefied natural gas (LNG) and renewable natural gas (RNG). The
use of any of these alternative fuels within BART's underground tunnels would violate standing tunnel

safety orders issued by the Division of lndustrial Safety, which prohibit the use of fuel-burning or internal

combustion engines for mobile equipment underground except for diesel engines, and then only under

conditions specified in accordance with Federal regulations. (See 8 California Code of Regulations

Section 8470.)

The District currently owns two (2) high-rail scissor lift trucks in use for the same applications, purchased

in 2010 and 1993. The truck purchased in 1993 is being taken out of service because it is: beyond

economic repair, at the end of its operating life cycle, and restrictive to work efficiency. This procurement

for two (2) trucks is to both replace the older tuck and to provide additional capacity to meet project

demand, in achieving a Better BART.

'60?',Zt4tt,

Award of IFB No. 9003, Scissor Lift



A notice requesting bids was published on March 17 ,2016 and bid requests were mailed to nine
(9) prospective bidders. Bids were opened on April 5,2016 and one (1) bid was received. Other
potential bidders who declined to bid responded they were unable to meet BART's wide gauge

and on track clearance requirements for a small quantity order for this vehicle.

Unit Price
Grand Total including

Ouantitv 9.5 7o Sales TaxBidder

Golden Gate Truck Center
Oakland, CA

$296,236.32 2 $592,472.63

The independent cost estimate by BART staff is: $ 640,000.00, including 9.5o% sales tax.

Staff has determined that the apparent low bidder, Golden Gate Truck Center, Oakland CA,
submitted a responsive bid. Staff has also determined the price to be fair and reasonable based

upon a market survey of qualified suppliers and the independent cost estimate by BART staff.

Pursuant to the revised DBE Program, the Office of Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender
neutral efforts for Invitation for Bid (IFB) contracts. Therefore, no DBE goal was set for this
contract.

FISCAI IMPACT:

Funding for 50o/o of the contract price ($296,237) (PR 12005) for the award of IFB#9003 is

included in the total project budget for FMS #15TD000 - Procurement of Wayside Equipment.
The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included
in totality to track funding history against spending authority.

As of April 27,2016,549,075,429 is available for this project from the following sources:

BART has expended $16,893,553, committed $25,211,391 and reserved $6,486,703 to-date for
other actions. This action will commit $296,23'7 leaving an available fund balance of $ 187,545 in
this project.

Funding of the remaining $296,236 for the award of IFB#9003 (PR 12005) is included in the total
project budget for FMS #15EJ450 - M-Line 34.5Kv Replace Phase II. The Office of
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to
track funding history against spending authority.



Fnnd Number Fun{ I}escrirtiron Fund Source furrild Amurrt
353r.f A-05-0148 FG T,{OD.FTlO CAPITAL FTA $320.000
3603 CA-54-0023 Fl' 14 Caprhl Impror.ement FTA $480,000

8523 Capai Surdrarge - Statior to Station BART $80.000
8525 Fl'13 Opentine Allocahri to Capital BART $120.000
Totel 91,000,o00

As of April 27,2016, $1,000,000 is available for this project from the following sources:

BART has expended $0, committed $0 and reserved $0 to-date for other actions. This action will
commit $296,236leaving an available fund balance of $703,764 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogranxned District Reserves,

ALTERNATTVE:

Reject the Bid and re-advertise the Contract. This is not likely to lead to increased competition
and would result in the District having to continue to rely on curent equipment which is

insufficient to meet ongoing maintenance objectives.

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by Staff and certification by the Conholler-Treasurer that the funds are

available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9003 for the procurement of
two (2) Scissor Lift Trucks to Golden Gate Truck Center, Oakland, CA in ttre amount of
$592,472.63, including all applicable sales tax, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATf,: May 6,2016

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: FYl6 Third Quarter Financial Report

The FYl6 Third Quarter Financial Report (January - March 2016) is attached. The net result for the quarter
was $12.6M unfavorable to budget, bringing the year-to-date (YTD) net operating result to $1.4M
unfavorable. Unbudgeted expenses related to the spikes in voltage along the Piftsburg/Bay Point line, as well
as timing of other expenses and revenues contributed to the unfavorable results.

Operating Sources

Total Ridership was 1.3% over budget for the second quarter, with over 600,000 additional trips due to
Super Bowl 50 activities in San Francisco in late January and early February. The quarter ended with
weekday trips I .8% above budget offset by weekend/holiday trips 1.6% below budget. YTD, weekday
ridership has grown 2.9% above FYl5. Transbay ridership continues to lead the weekday growth and these
higher fare trips helped bring passenger revenue $4.3M (3.7%) over budget for the third quarter.

Sales Tar revenue fell further behind in the third quarter, upjust 2.6% from one year ago. YTD, sales tax
revenue is $1.7M (0.9%) under budget.

Operoting Uses

Total Expense for the quarter finished $13.9M unfavorable to budget. Labor and benefits were $l l.9M or
10.2o% unfavorable and non-labor was $2.0M unfavorable for the quarter due to expenses related to the
maintenance needs on the system. YTD, total expense is $5.9M (1.2%) over budget. Labor and benefits are

S9.8M (2.8%) unfavorable and nonJabor is $3.7M favorable to date.

ln summary, the over budget operating expense, combined with the continued slowing growth in ridership
and sales tax, point to very tight financial results this year. In addition, recently available information from
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission now estimates BART's State Transit Assistance will be $5.3M
below budget at year end, based upon lower diesel prices.

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff

4A^*



Revenue
.Avg weekday trips forthe quarter were 433,585, 1.8% over budget
and 3.6% over the same quarter last year. February avg weekday was
the highest ever at 446,650 due to Super Bowl 50 festivities. Weekend
and holiday trips were under budget 1.6%. Total trips and net passenger
revenue were 1.3% and 3.7% over budget, respectively.
.Parking revenue S0.6M favorable due to over budget Daily Non
Reserve program.
.Other operating revenue S0.4M unfavorable, with the biggest factor
timing of the execution of telecom and cell site agreements, which are
projected to be about 52.5M under budget for the year.

Erpense

.Labor and benefits were unfavorable for the quarter. Overtime was high
(S11.5M unfavorable) due to system problems and maintenance needs.
.OPEB unfunded Iiability is shown as an expense and is offset; there is no
bottom line impact.
.Electric Power was on budget for the quarter; power market prices
continue to be lower than budget.
.Other Non Labor wa5 unfavorable by 52.2M or (7.6%) for the quarter.
Catch up from budget timing earlier in the year was main factor, along with
continuing high maintenance levels.

OperatinS Deficit
.The operating deficit (revenue minus expense) was 59.3M unfavorable for

the quarter because ofthe unfavorable operating expense variances, in Net
Labor and Other Non Labor.

MTc Rail Car Swap

.The MTC rail car fund swap is a funding exchange program between MTC
and BART that does not affect the net operating result.

Financial Assistance and Allocations
.Sales Tax for the quarter grew 2.5% over 3QFY15. S0.8M less than the
4% groMh assumed in the budget. Expected to be 53.5M under budget
by year end.
.Property Tax, Other Assistance 53.6M unfavorable due to timing of
LCTOP payments. Property tax is expected to be favorable by year end.
.State Transit Assistance is expected to be about 55.3M under budget
by year end due to lower diesel prices.

Net Operating Result

. The Net Operating Result forthe quarter was unfavorable by

S12.6M, due to unfavorable Operating Expense results. YTO result is

unfavorable by S1.4M.

Quarterly Financial Repod
Third Quarter

Fiscal Year. 20'16

Current Cluarter
Actual Var

Year to Date
Budget Actual

(38.s) -31.gyo

(o.o) loo.o%I

($ Millions)

Revenue
Nel Passenger Revenue

Parking Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Total Net Operating Revenue

Expense

Net Labor
OPEB Unfunded Liability

Electric Power
Purchased Transportation

Other Non Labor
Total Operating Expense

Op€rating Surplus (Deficit)

MTC Rail Fund Car Swap

Taxes and Financial Assistance
Sales Tax

Property Tax, Other Assistance
MTC Rail Fund Car Swap
State Transit Assistance

Debt Service
Capital and Other Allocations

OPEB Unfunded Liability Offset
Net Financial Assistance

Net Operating Result

System Operating Ratio

Var

133.3 137.9 3.

11a.7
7.4

6.8

116.5

0.6
9.7
6.7

29.O

123.O

8.4
6.4

3.7%
8.3%

-6.4%

1.5%
o.ovo

-7.66/o

-2.
'1.

128.4

0.6
9.6
6.7

31.3

-1

1

162.5 176.4

129.21

(13.2)

62.3

9.7
13.2
4.1

(14.'t)
(23.1)

0.6

(e0.r )

(3s.s)

(88.8)

(50.2)

1.5%l

-27.0%a

-0.9%
-5.ovo

27.

61 .5 -',1.30/o

6.'l -37 .40/o

0.0 -'100.0%

6.2 -50.3%

185.0 183.3
31.0 29.4
39.5 50.2
8.3 6.2

(34.3)
(111.1)

1.7

(12.11 (r3.5)

81.6Vo 82.1%

-24
(14.4'
(22.7)

0.6

(1.21

78.2o/o

0.37

5.40/o

o.qvo
-10
-29.4

-10.

10.4

82.Ovo

0.33

E
E

ItlI

-3.9%

E
I

Rail Cost / 0.34 0.34
'Totals may not add due to rounding to the nearest million.

No Problem

Caution; Poiential Problem/Problem Being Addressed

Signilicant Problem

Mile

356.6
231
20.1

364.5
24.9
17.7

22%
7.syo

-12.2./.

350.8
'1.9

29.4
20.0

87.5

360.6

1.7
28.2
19.9

85.4

10.6%
5.20/o

0.7vo

2.4%

(36.2)
(111.9)

'l .9

-12.2%

o.5%



ADMINISTRATION
MATERIAL



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 6,2016

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Administration Items #5.A, B & C: Ratiffing Collective Bargaining
Agreement - For Action

The board is being requested to ratiff extensions to the 2013-2017 collective Bargaining
Agreements with ATU Division 1555, SEIU Local l02l and AFSCME Local 3993. The
Resolutions seek to extend the contract terms to June 30, 2021 subject to the changes set
forth in the tentative agreements attached.

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ln the Matter of Ratifying an extension of the

2013-2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement

between the District and the Amalgamated

Transit Union Division1555 ) Resolution No.

BE lT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid

Transit District hereby ratifies an extension of the 2013 - 2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement

between the District and the Amalgamated Transit Union, Division 1555, subject to those changes

as set forth in the attached Tentative Agreements dated April 7, 2016; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to execute the

Agreement on behalf of the District.

###

Adopted

75888v1



PREAMBLE

April 7 ,20L6

The Parties have agreed to an extension of the 2OI3 - 2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement.

All terms and conditions of the 2013 - 2017 Agreement shall be extended through June 30,

202I. All terms and conditions of the 2013-2017 Agreement shall remain in full force and

effect, throughout the extended term, except as noted in the attached tentative agreements.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SE!U

-t-'A*/z--
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officei'

FOR ATU

A +.rr- *+
Chrr Firr-T-
President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

FOR AFSCME

Sal Cruz

President, AFSCME Local 3993

acd,/Crunican

General Manager President, BART Chapter

President, BART Professional Chapter

Office bYthe General C

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

Preamble Page 1 of 1 04/0712076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT OISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEtU/LOCAL 1021 GENERAL NEGOTTATTONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - TERM OF AGREEMENT

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (,,BART,,) and SEtU/Local LO21 (,,SE|U,,), and
ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision
of the collective Bargaining Agreement ("cBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 1.2 as follows:

1,2 TERM OF AGREEM ENT

The term of this Agreement shall be from and including the first day of July 2013 up to and
including the 30th day of .lune 2€*7 lQllor one hundred (100) days following receipt of notice
of a desire to modify or terminate this Agreement, whichever occurs later. Each party shall
comply with the provisions of California Government Code Section 3611. ln the event either
party serves notice upon the other party of a desire to modify or terminate the Agreement, the
parties shall meet and make all reasonable efforts to reach agreement on the subject matters
of such proposed modifications.

The partles shall respond to any requests for information reasonably necessary for intelligent
negotiations and the standards and guidelines in accordance with California Government Code
section 3611. Each party shall supply to the other party such reasonable data as are requested
by the other party.

To the fullest extent possible the parties shall endeavor to complete their negotiations at least
seven (7) days prior to the date any lawful economic action may be taken in connection with
any dispute concerning any proposed changes in any Collective Bargaining Agreement.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

General Manager

Page 1 of 2 04/07 /20161.2



Chief Labor Relations Officer President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR ATU

A(]u\-,r.t, /v\
Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555
by Victoria R. Nuetzel

1.2
Page 2 ot 2 M/O7 /2016



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEtU/LOCAL 1021 GENERAL NEGOTTATTONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - PERS.MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS

April7,2076

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SEtU"), and
ATU/Local 1555 ('ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 5.2 as follows:

5.2 PERS.MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS *

A. PERS Medical and Prescription Drug Benefits

The Dist!'ict will provide group medical and prescription drug benefits, as provided below,
through the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). The PERS rules, regulations and plan

documents will control on all issues concerning benefits, including the types and levels of
benefits offered and eligibility for those benefits.

The Unions acknowledge that they understand these benefits may not equate to benefits
previously available to employees and retirees through the various optional medical plans and
the prescription drug plan. Because coverage will be provided through PERs, the District and

the Unions understand that PERS may terminate or change covered expenses, benefit
payments and co-payments on covered benefits, deductibles, lifetime and/or annual
maximums and may implement various cost control features.

Except for Survivors Benefits, as provided for in Section 5.8, the Unions waive the right to any
group medical or prescription drug benefit granted expressly or impliedly under other sections
of this Agreement, or by any other agreement between the parties or by any District guideline,
policy or practice if that benefit is not offered through the PERS medical plan.

B. Employee and Retiree Contributions for Health lnsurance

Page 1of 11 a4/o7 /2Ot652



All employees eligible for PERS medical benefits who enroll for such benefits shall be

responsible for a premium contribution in the amount of twenty-five dollars (525.00) per

month, except as provided below.

1. The employee's twenty-five dollar (SZS.OO1 monthly employee contribution toward the

medical insurance premium shall increase by fifty dollars (S50) on January 1, 2006. Each

January L thereafter, the monthly employee contribution shall increase by an escalator

amount of three percent (3%). For example, the total monthly employee contribution

on January L,2OO7 will be seventy-seven dollars and twenty-five cents per month. (The

calculation that arrives at this number is as follows: S25 + S50 = $75 x 1.03 = 5ll.ZS.1
The employee contribution amounts provided below shall be in addition to any costs for

coverage in excess of the amounts specified in paragraph C below.

DATE Maximum Emplovee Monthlv Contribution

Szs.oo

577.2s

s7e.s7

(al o(

Sg+.+r

s86.es

Sag.ss

5gz.zq

Sgs.or

Se7.85

Sroo.zg

Sros.sz

5roo.g:

s110.14

5113.44

01 Jan. - 06

01 Jan. - 07

01 Jan. - 08

01 Jan. - 09

01 Jan, - 10

01 Jan. - 11

01 Jan. - 12

0L Jan. - 1-3

01 Jan. - 14

01 Jan. - 15

01 Jan. - 16

0L Jan. - 17

01 Jan. - 18

01 Jan. - 19

01 Jan. - 20

Page 2 of 11 04107 /20165.2



01 Jan. - 21

Ol Jan. - 22

01 Jan. - 23

01 Jan. - 24

01lan, - 25

01 Jan. - 26

Ol )an. - 27

01 Jan. - 28

01 Jan. - 29

01Jan. - 30

01 Jan, - 31

01 ian. - 32

01 Jan. - 33

01 Jan. - 34

S116.8s

S 120.3s

S 123.95

5127.58

S 131.s 1

s13s.46

5139.s2

S143.02

s 148.02

5ts2.46

s 1s7.03

5t6t.t4

S166.60

s171.s9

2. During the term of this Agreement, the employees' premium contribution shall be

increased by thirty seven dollars (S37) per month as follows: 2014 - S132.01;2015 -

s134.85; 2016 - StttJO; 2077 - 5140.82: 2018 - 5743.93: 2019 - 5L47.L4:2020 -

S150.44; and 2021 - S153.85. For active employees the additional thirty-seven dollars

(S37) per month shall be deducted from the one and six hundred and twenty seven one

thousandth percent (1.627%) money purchase pension plan contribution.

3. Each eligible retiree shall pay the same premium contrlbution as active employees.

Employees' premium contributions will be paid for through tax-exempt payroll

deductions. Retiree premium contributions will be deducted from the retirement

allowance paid by PERS. lf a retiree's retirement allowance is not sufficient to pay the

entire contribution, the retiree must pay the balance due on such premium contribution

directly to PERS. lf such payment ls not received by the due date, health care coverage

will automatically, immediately and permanently cease. These rules are intended to
comply with the premium contribution procedures established by PERS, which may be

PaSe 3 of 11 04lo7 /20165)



modified by PERS. The District, Unions and employees shall comply with the pERS

procedures in effect from time to time.

C. Maximum District Contributions for Health lnsurance

Beginning on January 'J',201'0, the District shall contribute an amount up to the applicable level
of plan participation (i.e. one party, two party, or family) and the same Medicare status as
elected by the eligible employee or retiree equal to the Bay Area Basic premium Rates for the
PERS HMO Blue Shield Access + or PERS HMO Kaiser Plan, whichever is greater, less the
employee and retiree contributions provided for in 5.28 above. This District contribution shall
be the District's maximum payment toward employee health insurance premiums. Employees
and retirees electing coverage with a cost greater than the District's maximum contribution
shall have the difference deducted automatically from the unit member's pay or as set forth in
5.282. above, in addition to amounts to be deducted in accordance with subsection B above.

D. Retiree lnsurance Funding

1. Beginning July L, 2007, the District shall contribute into its Retiree Health Benefit Trust
("RHBT") amounts that, at minimum, reflect an eight (8) year "ramp Llp" to District
payment of the full Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") compliant
Annual Required contribution ("ARC") beginning July L, 2013 using an open group
valuation method with a closed 30 year amortization schedule for unfunded liability
ending June 30, 2034. Except as provided in paragraph 3 below, each pay period the
District shall contribute to the RHBT an amount equal to the below-listed percentages of
straight time bargaining unit base pay paid to bargaining unit members in that pay
period into the RHBT. (For example, if base pay in the pay period in FY 07 is one million
dollars [S1,000,000], the District will contribute $34,900 into the RHBT for that pay
period).

Date Percentage

July L, 2007 (FY 08)

July L, 2008 (FY 09)

July 1,, 2009 (FY 10)

July 1, 20L0 (FY 11)

3.49%

3.64%

3.79%

3.94%

5.2 Page 4 of 11 04/07 /2016



J uly 1, 2011 (FY 12)

July 1, 2012 (FY 13)

4,70%

4.27%

5.

ln addition, on or before lune 30,2009 the District shall, at minimum, contribute into

the RHBT an amount equal to three and twenty-two one-hundredths percent (3.22%) of

straight time bargaining unit base pay paid in FY 05 and three and thirty-six one-

hundredths percent (3.35%) of straight time bargaining unit base pay paid in FY 07.

These figures represent the "ramp up" percentages for those fiscal years.

The District shall perform an actuarial study of the retiree medical insurance plan

liabilities and funding needs (including the Annual Requared Contribution - "ARC") after
the end of each fiscal year. For each fiscal year beginning with FY 2007, the actuaries

shall adjust the above ramp up percentages for the fiscal year for which the study was

prepared and for each remaining fiscal year in the ramp up period. The last such

adjustment will be in the study performed prior to July 1,2OL3 for Fy 2013. The revised
percentages shall be the percentages contributed by the District to the RHBT for those
years, except that the District shall pay no less than the percentages specified in

subsections l and 2 above.

Beginning July 1, 2013, the District shall, at minimum, contribute to the RHBT each pay

period an amount equal to the full GASB compliant Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

percentage of straight time base pay paid to bargaining unit members during that pay

period using an open group valuation method with a closed thirty (30) year amortization
schedule for unfunded liability ending June 30, 2034. (For example, if the base pay

during the pay period is one million dollars [$1,000,000] and the ARC percentage is

fourteen percent. 11,4%1, the District will contribute one hundred forty thousand dollars

[S140,000] to the RHBT for that pay period.)

During the term of this Agreement, the District shall retain .0888% of the one and six

hundred twenty-seven one-thousandths percent (1.627%l of the Money Purchase Plan

contribution in addition to the $37/month to be used as specified in paragraph 82,

above.

6. Effective July 1, 2013, the District shall retain the remainder of the L.6Zl% Mppp
contribution, to the extent necessary to compensate the District for paying the
difference between the actual ARC and the baseline ARC described below. The District
shall retain this amount through June 30,2034. ln any year in which the actual ARC

does not exceed the baseline ARC by an amount equal to the amount of the retained
7.627% MPPP contribution, the District shall pay the appropriate portion of the 1..627%

into the employees' MPPP accounts, but only to the extent that the difference between

4

Page 5 of 1l 04/o7/20165.2



the actual ARC and the baseline ARC is less than the dollar value of the retained MPPP

1.627%.

EXAMPLE: Assume that the actual ARC is fifteen percent (15%) in the particular year,
the baseline ARC is fourteen percent (14%) in the particular year, and that the
difference between the two is one million dollars ($1,000,000). Assume further that the
value of the retained L.627% is one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,0O0).

The District would then pay a total of five hundred thousand dollars (5500,000) into the
employees' collective MPPP accounts. These payments would be prorated in the same
manner as would result from full payment of lhe !.6270/0 inlo the employee accounts.

The baseline ARC is as follows:

FY Year Beginning

07/r/13

07 /t/L4

07 /1/1s

07/7/76

07/11L7

07 /7/18

07/7/ts

07 /t/zo

07 /t/2t

07 /1/22

07/r/23

07 /t/24

07hlzs

07 /7/26

Baseline ARC

71.88%

tl.94%

12.00%

12.06%

72.12%

12.t8%

t2.24%

12.30%

72.36%

72.420/o

12.48%

72.54%

L2.60%

L2.66%

Page 6 of 11 04/a7 /2016



07 /1./27

07/7128

07 /1./79/

07 /1./30

07 /7/37

07 /1/32

0711/33

12.12%

t2.78%

L2.84%

12.90%

72.96%

13.02%

1.3.08%

F.

7. Effective July 1, 2013 the District shall direct the Trustee of the RHBT to pay retiree

health insurance premiums from the RHBT. No premiums will be paid from the RHBT

prior to July 1, 2013.

ln Lieu of Medical Payments

During any open enrollment period after July 1, 2009, an eligible employee who has medical

coverage under a spousal or other alternate plan may elect, in accordance with procedures

established by the District to opt out of the group medical and prescription drug benefits

covered under Section 5.2(A) ("5.2A Coverage").

The District shall make a monthly payment of three hundred and fifty dollars (5350.00) "in

lieu of medical" to each eligible employee who opts out of 5.2A coverage.

Tax treatment of these payments will be sub.iect to applicable lnternal Revenue Code

("lRC") and lnternal Revenue Service ("lRS") rules. The payments will be made in a manner

that will not impact the income tax status of medical premiums under IRC requirements and

to allow an employee to receive the amounts as cash monthly payments.

An eligible employee who opts out of 5.2(A) coverage may subsequently enroll in such

coverage as permitted under the terms of the plan(s) described in Section 5.2(A).

Trust Review Committee

1. The District's five (5) unions shall each appoint one (1) member to serve on a trust
review committee ("TRC"). The District Labor Relations Manager and Human Resources

Manager shall serve on the TRC for the District. The TRC shall meet quarterly.

Page 7 of 1.1 o4107 /20't65.7



Employee members of the TRC will be released from regularly scheduled duty with pay

for quarterly TRC meetings.

2. The District will direct the Trustee of the Trust to provide the Unions with quarterly

reportsofallRHBToperations,includingauditedandunauditedfinancialstatements
and investment performance reports, and other consultant reports in advance of the

quarterly TRC meeting. (The parties acknowledge that audited financial statements are

performed onlY once Per Year.)

3. The Trustee will attend the TRC meeting to answer questions concerning the

informationprovidedtotheTRC.However,theTRCshallinnowayattempttoassist'
direct, or otherwise involve itself in matters concerning the investment of Trust assets

However, the TRC may advise the Trustee on other Trust matters to the extent such

advisory activity does not affect the legal status of the Trust lt shall be within the sole

discretion of the Trustee whether to follow or not follow such advice'

4. The TRC members shall be released from regularly scheduled duty with pay to attend

meetings of the Human Resources Manager and Labor Relations Manager with the

District,sactuariesandotherprofessionalstodiscussassumptionstobeincludedin
annualGASBvaluationstudies,thepreliminaryandfinalresultsofsuchstudies'etc'
Such studies shall include ARC projections through at least 2035' The District will

provide the unions with a copy of the final version of such study on or before February 1

each year or as soon thereafter as is practicable'

G. Retiree Health Benefits Trust

Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the signing of this agreement by the parties

hereto,theDistrictshallamendtheTrustAgreementtoprovidethat:

1. Trust assets shall be held for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing health benefits

to eligible BART retirees and to defray the reasonable expenses of administering the

RHBT,

2. The only District benefit plans for which payments may be made from the RHBT shall be

thoseretireehealthbenefitplansofferedtoeligibleDistrictretireesasaresultofits
collective bargaining agreements, or District policy which extends such plans to non-

represented employees. ln addition, for District personnel on a District plan that is no

longer generally offered to District employees' payments may be made from the RHBT'

However, the District shall ensure sufficient separate funding and the Trustee shall

separately account for benefits paid for such personnel'

s2 PaBe 8 of 11
a4lol /2016



3. The District may terminate the RHBT, subject to its duty to bargain in good faith to
agreement or impasse over such termination with the union. lf the District gives the

Unions notice of the termination of the RHBT, the Trust shall not terminate until the

assets then remaining are exhausted. Such assets shall be used only as provided in

paragraph l above.

The District reserves the right to terminate or change any part or all of the health benefits

program at any time with respect to active or retired employees, however, any such action

will be taken only after the District has satisfied its obligations under applicable Collective

Bargaining Agreements. The District's contractual obligation to provide health benefits

coverage to retired employees shall terminate upon the expiration of this Agreement. By

providing benefits to retirees, the parties do not intend to vest retirees with such benefits.

H. Retiree Medical lnsurance Eligibility

The parties agree that with respect to District employees first hired after January 1,,2OL4,

the District shall make no contribution for postretirement health benefits on behalf of such

individuals with less than ten years of credited service with the District, and that the full

District contribution for postretirement health benefits shall be made only on behalf of
individuals who have completed a minimum of fifteen (15) years of credited service with
the District. Eligibility for this benefit is, in addition to the specified criteria, sub.iect to

current provision which require that the employee retire from CaIPERS within one hundred

and twenty (120) days of separation from the District.

The parties agree that:

2.

This provision applies to unrepresented employees, members of the Board of Directors

to the extent they are eligible under existing law, and members of any unit of

employees whose terms and conditions of employment are determined through

collective bargaining and who agree that it should apply to its members.

Contributions shall be subject to:

a. Credited years of Distnct service

b. An Agreement with all represented employees mutually agreed upon through

collective bargaining;

The District contribution shall be a percentage of the employer contribution for
applicable credited years of service as follows:

10 years - 50%; lt years - 60%; 12 years - 70o/o; L3 years - 8Q%;

1.

3.

Page 9 o{ 11 a4laf /20165.7



14 years - 90% and 15 years 100%.

4. The full contribution level shall be available for postretirement health benefits for those
employees who are approved for and exercise a disability retirement with at least ftve
years of credited service with the District.

5. Thrs section shall only apply to District employees or Board members who are first hired
by the District or newly elected to the Board and first serve on or after Janua ry 1,201,4.

6. Any agreement to adopt these provisions by any colective bargaining unit shal appry
only if the agreement is expressly incorporated into or made a part of a memorandum
of understand ing.

7. This provision shall not apply to any employee who retires before the effective date of
the memorandum of understanding referenced above. ln the event that the
memorandum of understanding establishes a retroactive effective dates, this section
will govern, limiting its applicability only to prospective retirements.

8. The District shall provide, in the manner prescribed by calpERs, a notification of each
agreement established pursuant to this section and any additional information
necessary to implement jt.

The Parties recognize that implementation of this agreement requires statutory changes to the
california Government Code and agree to jointly seek a sponsor for and support the passage
and signing into law of the provisions as set forth herein. lf the law is not successfully passed,
then the Parties agree to mutually agree on alternative provisions.

,T MINUTE CTARIFICATION

Members who would like to realize the benefit of the in lieu payment as a pre-tax contribution
to their deferred compensation accounts can accomplish this result by increasing their deferral
amount for the deferred compensation plan by the amount of the in lieu payment, subject to
lnternal Revenue Code limitations on maximum annual contributions.

* MINUTE CLARIFICATION

The parties mutually understand that the
active employees after the expiration of
general legal duty to bargain in good faath.

only obligation to continue the health benefits of
the Agreement is that which may arise from the

Page 10 of 11 04/07 /2016
52



FOR THE DISTRICT

General Manager

FOR SEIU

FOR ATU

President, BART Professional Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

5.2 Page 11 of 11 04107 /2076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEtU/LOCAL 1021 GENERAL NEGOTtATtoNs

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

AprilT,2016

The san Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and sErU/Local 1021 ("sElu,,), and
ATU/Local 1555 ('ATU') have negotiated and reached a tentative aBreement on this provision
of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("cBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SElU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 6.0 as follows:

5,0 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

ln the eyent that during the term ef the Agreement represented empleyees at BART are su*€t
te PEFRA; the larties shall bargain ever lEI.Rt,s effeets and implementatien,

pension contributions.

emplovee pension contributions.

The Parties aeree that anv resolution shall be cost neutral to all parties. The negotiations shall
not result in an increase in the emplover paid member contribution as described in section 6.2.
Anv agreement described above shall immediatelv toll the District's prospective liabilitv with
resDect to the disoute over employee contributions reflected in the grievances. All bargaining

In th" ur"nt th.t th" pa.ti"r ur" unubl" to ..u..h agr""r"nt *ithin ,i* (6) .onth, of th"
commencement of baraaining, unresolved issues shall be put to interest arbitration for a final
and binding decision.

Nothins in this Asreement is intended to modifv or compromise the position of anv partv to
this Aqreement in relation to the pendins litisation referenced above.

Page 1 of 2 04/07 /2Ot6
6.0



FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

President, BART Professiona I Chapter

FOR ATU

.a

tl

* ! tr'r t ' t I

-

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 15SS

./'' ^ /
,/ --/2..t..-.-.--

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

'ent, BART Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

5.0 Page 2 of 2 04/o712076

General Manager



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEIU/LOCAL l021GENERAL NEGOTTATTONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - COST OF LIVING/WAGE ADJUSTMENT

April7,20L6

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 (,,SE|U,,), and
ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU') have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision
of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative .agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 8.2 as follows:

8.2 cosT oF UvtNG / WAGE ADJUSTMENT

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be covered by the provisions for a cost of living
increase as set forth in this Section.

The wage rates as contained in this Agreement shall not be reduced by application of this Cost
of Living Provision. ln addition to the wage rates contained in this Agreement, all employees
shall be paid cost of living adjustments to be determined on the basis of the "Urban wage
Earners and clerical workers" Consumer price lndex (united states Average, revised base 1967
= 100), published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States Department of Labor, in the
manner described in this Section (hereafter referred to as the ,,lndex,,).

A. Effective on June 30, 2017_!-!C__S!_lU_0C_ig-202! a Cost of Living Adjustment sha be
Eranted to the wages/salaries of all employees subject to this Agreement equal to one-cent
(1C) per hour for each full point four (.4) of a point change in the Consumer price lndex as
measured on the basis of movement of the tndex published for the month of May, 2017 for
the June 30, 20L7. adiustment and Mav 2021 for the June 30, 2021, adiustment, over the
lndex published for the month of February, 2017 and Februarv, 2O2L respectivelv.

B. All cost of Living Adjustments specified in paragraph A of this section for salaried
employees shall be at the monthly equivalent of the hourly adjustment (the cost of living
cent adjustment times two thousand eighty hours [2,080] hours divided by twelve [12]
months = monthly equivalent of the hourly adjustment.)

c. The resulting cost of Living Allowance shall be used in the computation of pensions, straight
time and overtime pay exactly as though the wage rates had been changed by the
allowance. However, the allowance shall not be added to the base wage rates.

Page L of 2 04/07/20L68.2



D. The District, during the negotiations for a succeeding term after June 30,_2gF.zQl! shall
not assert that the cost of Living Alowance increase effective on June 30,20-u 2021 is
included as part of any increased wage offer made by the District for the succeeding
contract.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR ATU

(o+.,.. -V
Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

C"x
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

isident, BART Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

8.2 Page 2 of 2 o4/a7 /20!6



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and sEtU/LoCAL to2I GENERAL NEGoTIAT|ONs

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT- SICK TEAVE

April7,2O16

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (,,BART,,) and SEtU/Local 1021 (,,SEtU,,), and
ATU/Iocal 1555 ('ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision
of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SE lU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 9.1as follows:

9.1 SICK TEAVE

A. Accrual: Covered employees shall accrue one (1) day of sick leave for each full
month of employment. Sick leave credits may be accumulated to a total of two
hundred fifty (250) working days.

B. lncentives For Sick Leave Accrued And Unused On Or After October 19, 2009

To encourage employees to maintain maximum attendance and to improve
performance, the District offers employees the following two (2) incentives beginning
October '19, 2009:

1. PERS Retirement Service Credit For Sick Leave: The District will amend its
contract with CaIPERS to provide the California Government Code Section
20965 option for service credit for unused sick leave for eligible CaIPERS
members in the bargaining unit, with an effective date of October 19, 2009. The
Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) and CaIPERS rules will govern the
eligibility of unused sick leave earned on or after October 19, 2009 for service
credit. Those rules presently grant 0.004 years of service credit for each certified
unused day of sick leave accrued by the member during the normal course of
his/her employment. For employees whose effective date of retirement is within
four months of separation from employment with the District, the District shall
certify to CaIPERS all such unused days of sick leave that were accrued by the
employee on or after October 19, 2009. For purposes of Government Code
Section 20965, leave accrued prior to October 19, 2009 shall not be considered
"unused" sick leave and the District will not certify such sick leave to CaIPERS,
unless the employee has made the one{ime election to convert such pre-
October 19, 2009 sick leave to PERS credit eligible sick leave pursuant to
Paragraph C below.

91 PaCe L of 7 04/a]/2016



2. Annual Buy-Back Or MPPP lncentive: The District shall give employees the
option each year to make an irrevocable election on the icheduie indicated
below to buy-back or to deposit into their Money purchase pension plan (Mppp)
accounts, the dollar value of the sick leave earned within the annual accruai
period indicated in paragraph B(2)(a) below, less sick leave taken during that
same period, on an after tax basis.

a. Sick Leave Accrual/Election Periods: The maximum sick leave which may
be earned for each accrual period is ninety-six (96) hours for employees on a
5-8 or 9/80 Work Plan and one hundred twenty (120) hours for employees on
a 4-10 Work Plan. Sick leave for which such an election has been made shall
not be included by the District in the certification to CaIPERS under the
retirement service credit plan described above.

Election Period

9t2t13 - 9t16t13

911114 - 9115t14

917 t15 - 9t2'115

9t5t16 - 9t19t16

914117 - 9t18t17

9t3t18 -9t17t18

9t2t19 - gt16t19

917 120 - 9121t20

Accrual Period

9t30t13- 9t2gt14

9t29t14 - 9127115

9128t15 - 9125116

9t26t16 - 9124t17

9t25t17- 9t23118

9t24t1B - 9t22119

9t23t19 - 9t20t20

9t21t20 - 9119t21

b. Buy-BacUMPPP Deposit Amounts: An election to "buy-back" or to deposit
into the MPPP must also include an election as to the percentage amount of
the 'buy-back", based on the percentage increments and maximums provided
below. The maximum Buy-Back percentage that will be allowed is based on
the employee's attendance record during the accrual period.

Eligible Percentage of Unused Earned Sick
Leave

Days

0 5% up to 50% (in 5% increments)

1-3 5% up to 4Ook (in 5o/o increments)

Buy-Back and MPPP amounts shall be calculated at the employee's base
rate of pay at the end of the accrual period, less applicable tax withholding.

c. lmpact Of Buy-Back/MPPP Election: Employees may select only one
option (Buy-Back or MPPP) for each accrual period.

91 Page 2 al I 01107 /2076



c.

Once the buy.back or MPPP lncentive election is made for any accrual period
it may not be changed, Employees will receive the buy-back checks or MPPP
credit no later than December 1 following the end of the accrual period.

Unused sick leave hours for which an election to buy-back or transfer into the
MPPP is not made shall be carried over to the next year, subject to maximum
accumulation limits, and will no longer be available for any future Annual Buy-
Back/MPPP incentive election.

One Time Election To Convert Sick Leave Accrued Prior To October 19, 2009
To PERS Creditable Sick Leave

During the month of October 2009, employees will be given a one-time opportunity
to convert unused sick leave that has been accrued prior to October 19, 2009 to
pers-crediteligible sick leave (described in paragraph B(1) above). This election
shall be irrevocable, and will include all of the employee's unused sick leave,
including banked sick leave pursuant to D(1), and/or unbanked sick leave pursuant
to D(3) below. lf an employee makes this election, such accrued leave will no longer
be eligible for pay-out at termination/retirement (previously banked leave) or at
retirement (unbanked leave). All leave converted pursuant to this paragraph C will
be subject to calPERS rules for service credit eligibility. Leave converted under this
paragraph will thereafter be considered, for purposes of dlsposition at the end of
employment only, to have been accrued on or after October '19, 2009.

Sick Leave Accrued Prior To October 19, 2009

Sick leave accrued prior to October 19, 2009, which is not converted to pers
creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph c above, shall be preserved in accounts
separate from sick leave accrued on or after October'19, 2009, and shall be used
pursuant to the terms of this paragraph D, including subsections (1)- (3).

1 . Banked Sick Leave (Under Previously Exercised Option)

This section refers to sick leave which has been'banked'in accordance with
Labor Agreement Section 9.18(2) as it was in effect on June 30, 2009, or
banked pursuant to Agreements previously in effect. lt excludes sick leave
electively converted to PERS-creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph C
above. lt includes sick leave for whlch a banking election was made during
the 2008 or earlier option periods.

Banked sick leave, as defined above, will be preserved in a separate account
for use by the employee in accordance with the provisions of former Section
9. 1B(2), including the following:

a. Such bank shall be set aside for payment upon
deathi retiremenVtermination and shall not be included in the calculation of
unused sick leave pursuant to paragraph B(1) above or Government Code
Section 20965.

U.

91 Page 3 of 7 a4/07 /207G



b. Sick leave hours banked will be paid at the employee's base rate of pay,
effective on the employee's date of death or retiremenVlermtnation from
District's employment.

Employees who experience an illness/injury and exhaust their existing sick
leave that is available, may utilize sick leave that has been banked under
prior Section 9.1 B(2) provided they make a written request to do so
through their Department Manager at the time of the illness/injury and the
circumstances qualify for sick leave under section F ("sick leave payment")
below.

2. Sick Leave Buy-Back (Under Previously Exercised Option)

Employees who exercised the option during the September 2008 option period
specified in Labor Agreement Section 9.18(2) in effect on June 30, 2009 to
make an irrevocable election to buy-back or deposit into the MPPP the value of
sick leave earned during the annual accrual period, less sick leave taken during
the annual accrual period shall receive the buy-back payments and the MPPP
deposits required by the prior Labor Agreement.

Buy back checks for the 2009 accrual period under former Labor Agreement
Section 9.18 will be distributed to employees no later than December 1 following
the end of the accrual period, and MPPP elections for that period will be
deposited by that same date.

3. Retirement Buy-Back

Sick leave accrued prior to October '19, 2009, and not (1) banked pursuant to
paragraph 1 above; (2) bought back or deposited in the MPPP pursuant to
paragraph 2 above; (3) converted to PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to
paragraph C above; or (4) used pursuant to E and F below, shall be available for
use as a Retirement Buy Back incentive. Employees leaving District service on a
service retirement shall be paid fifty percent (50%) of this accrued sick leave
balance upon the effective date of service retirement. This accrued sick leave
shall not be included in the calculation of unused sick leave pursuant to
paragraph B above or Government Code Section 20965.

E. Order Of Use Of Sick Leave From Separate Accounts

When using sick leave with pay pursuant to Section F below, employees' sick leave
balances will be deducted in the following order:

1. Sick leave accrued on or after October 19, 2009, if any, including any sick leave
accrued before October 19, 2009 which an employee has elected to convert to
PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph C above, if any.

2. lf the accruals described in paragraph E(1) are exhausted, unbanked sick leave
accrued prior to October '19, 2009, if any.

91 Page 4 ol7 04/at /2016



3. lf the accruals described in paragraphs E(1) and E(2) above are exhausted,
banked sick leave, if any, may be used subject to the terms of paragraph D('1)(c)
above.

F. Sick Leave Payment:

FMLA/CFRA

An Employee on FMLA/CFRA qualifying leave may elect to use any accumulated leave
as may be permitted by Federal and State law and regulations (i.e. sick leave, vacation,
floating holidays or compensatory leave) or elect to take the leave unpaid in any order
and at the employee's discretion. Employees who would otherwise qualify for short
term disability while on FMLA/CFRA leave will not qualify for that disability until all of the
employee's sick leave is exhausted-

Employees shall receive sick leave with pay up to the amount of sick leave accrued at
the time of illness, provided the requirements of this section are met. Employees shall
accrue sick leave credits during the probationary period, however, they shall not be
eligible for sick leave pay until after completion of the probation period.

An employee who is absent from work for reasons that qualify for use of sick leave
under Section 9.1 who has no accumulated sick leave to cover such absence must use
accumulated vacation, personal holiday, and compensatory time off before unpaid leave
may be granted. Even though such charges are made, the employee's absence
remains subject to the contract provisions governing the use of sick leave. The
employee must advise the employee's appropriate absence report recipient, as
designated by the District, of the category of paid leave that shall be charged for such
absence. lf the employee does not do so, the absence shall be charged by default
against the employee's accumulated vacation, holiday and compensatory time ofi in that
order. Sick leave preserved under section 9.1.F last paragraph (below) will not be
available for such charges. Holidays may not be charged if such charge would reduce
the number of holidays in the employee's account below the number of designated
contractual holidays remaining in the fiscal year.

Employees shall be eligible for paid sick leave as follows: without limitation on their
rights under state and federal law.

'1. lllness, including the appropriate use of required prescribed medication which would
impair the employee's work performance, injury, quarantine, or similar exposure to
contagious disease;

2. Verifiable medical and/or dental appointments which cannot be scheduled outside
the normal working hours, provided that a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours advance
notice is given and provided subsequent confirmation that the appointment was kept
is given if requested by Management.

3. Doctor's visits associated with pregnancy, subject to the provisions in "2." above;

4. Hospitalization or serious illness/accident and resulting subsequent related

91 Page 5 of7 04lo't/2016



scheduled doctor's visits, subject to the provisions in "2"'above;

5. Required attendance upon a seriously ill spouse, eligible domestic partner, or child-

The District may require a written stitement from the attending physician that the

employee's attendance was required.

6. Required transportation to doctor for employee's spouse, eligible domestic partner,

or if,itO it spouse, eligible domestic partner, or child has serious accident or serious

illness (subsequent v:erified and scheduled doctor's visits resulting from initial visit

are also included).

7. lndustrial injury and resulting subsequent related scheduled doctor's visits.

Sick leave with pay shall apply to each separate sick leave incident For purposes of

this section, "siif ieave wiin 6ay" means pay calculated at the straight time day shift

rate for the number of hours ihq employee was regularly scheduled to work each day,

had the illness or injury not occurred.

lf an employee's absence which qualifies for paid sick leave also qualifies as statutory

family and medical leave (i.e. FMLAJCFM), the employee may elect to ?re-se.ye
eligibility for participation in the annual buy-back or transfer into the MPPP of eligible

aciruali, if elected during the election period, by requesting to substitute vacation,

floating holidays (for increments of a full day only), or compensatory leave pay' if

appticibte, or,' if he/she has no accrued vacation, floating holidays or compensatory

leave, requesting to take the leave unpaid. The request must be made before receipt of

sick pay.

G. Sick Leave Verification: The District may take reasonable means to verify the

employee's eligibility for sick leave. Upon prior written notice, an employee' at his or

her expense may be required to provide a doctor's statement which demonstrates to

the saiisfaction of the District, eligibility for sick leave as defined above, for any sick

leave incident.

Employees shall furnish a doctor's statement for each sick leave incident involving

absences of more than three (3) working days.

ln instances where the District requires a doctor's statement, either to verify sick

leave or determine an employee's fitness to return to work, that statement must

include the following:

1 . date and time of treatment,

2. duration of illness:

3. date cleared to return to work.

otherwise, an employee returning to work from a sick leave incident must submit a

required doctor's statement and other documentation within seven (7) calendar days

of his/ her return to work. Failure to submit required documentation within the time

provided shall result in denial of sick leave pay, and may result in disciplinary action

PaBe 6 of 7 a4/at /201691



The District may require any employee to submit to a medical examination by a
doctor designated by the District, at the District's expense, as a condition of return to

work from a sick leave incident or to verify the continuing need for sick leave.

Pattern use, misuse or abuse of sick leave will be governed by the District's

disciplinary procedures and handled on a case-by-case basis.

H. Sick Leave Reporting: lt is the responsibility of every employee absent from work
because of illness or injury to report such absences to hisiher immediate supervisor

or the supervisor's designated representative. This report must include information

as to the expected datq of return to work and where the employee can be reached

during his/her normal work hours. The employee will promptly notify his/her
supervisor or supervisor's designee of any change which affects his/her ability to
return to work.

FOR SEIU

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

FOR ATU

Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

FOR THE DISTRICT

nican
Manager

President, BART Professional Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

PageT o{7 04/07 /201691



A.

B.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU DIVISION 1555 NEGOTIATIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - BASE WAGE SCHEDULE

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BARI,) and ATU Division 1555 (,,ATU,,) have
ne8otiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a

total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree that final approval of the
tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by sElU membership, ATU
membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 47.0 as follows:

47.O BASE WAGE SCHEDULE

F.

E.

C.

Employees will suffer no loss of pay as a result of the pay progression.

Entry and training rates are eliminated.

The pay progression of 85%, 87 .5%,90o/o, and looo/o (top rate) is based on one year intervals,
on the date of hire/an n iversary date. All percentages are based on the top rate. The pay
steps are applicable to employees hired on or after January 1, 1995. The pay progression
will apply only one time to each such employee.

The new pay progression is effective July l, ].ggl ,the effective date of the labor agreement.

Employees hired before January 1, 1995 and who are not at top step will be placed at the
!O0o/o rate of pay of their classification effective July 1, 1997.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 1995 and before July 1, 1997 will have their rate of
pay slotted into the next immediate higher pay rate in the new pay progression. Employees
will move to the higher pay rate based only on their date of hire/ anniversary date.

New employees that are hired will be placed at the first year pay progression rate (g5%) of
their classification pursuant to section s47.0 Base Wage schedule. New employees will
progress through each successive step based on their date of h ire/an niversary date with the
District.

H. Fiscal Year 2014

D.

G.

4J.0 Page 1 of 5 04/o7/2076



J.

t.

The prior base rate of pay includes the one percent (1%) conditional wage increase provided
for in the 2009-2013 ASreement, effective July 1,2013 and the Section 8.2 COLA wage
schedule provided for in the 2009-2013 Agreement effective July 1, 2013. Effective July 5,
2013, the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall be increased by one
and eighty six zero seven one hundredths percent (1.8607%) over the prior base rate of pay.
Effective January 1, 2014, the base salary/wage schedule shall be increased by an additional
one and eighty six zero seven one hundredths percent (1.8607%).

Fiscal Year 20L5
Effective January 1, 2015, the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall

be increased by three seventy two fourteen one hundredths percenl (3.7214o/o).

Fiscal Year 2016
Effective January 1, 2015 the base salary /wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall
be increased by three seventy two fourteen one hundredths percent (3.72L4%).

Fiscal Year 2017
Effective January 1, 2017 the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall
be increased by four and twenty two fourteen one hundredths percent (4.ZZL4%).

L. Fiscal Years 2018, 2019

Effective Julv 01. 2019 and Julv 01. 2020 the base salarv/wase schedule for barqainins unit
members shall be increased bv two and seventv-five hundredths percent (2.75%).

All wage increases specified herein are inclusive of the amounts designated in Section 6.2
paid in exchange for the agreement to pay a portion of the employee's pension
contribution.

N. Conditional Lump Sum Payments*

lf all criteria set forth herein are met and no extraordinary unplanned expenses as set forth
herein have occurred then during each fiscal year of the term of the Agreement, the District
shall pay each bargaining unit member on active and paid status at the time of the payment
a lump sum payment which shall be calculated as set forth below but which shall not exceed
one thousand dollars ($1,000) in any fiscal year. These calculations shall be made at the
conclusion of each fiscal year and will be based on the data available on that date. Payment
shall be made within sixty (60) days of the date of the calculation.

Effective Julv 01. 2017 and Julv 01. 2018 the base salarv/wase schedule for barsainins unit
members shall be increased bv two and one half oercent (2.50%).

M. Fiscal Years 2020. 2021

4l .a Page 2 of 5 04/a7 /2076



1.. Criteria for Lump Sum Payment:

Each one (1) percent increase in actual core system annual average weekday ridership

growth over the Districts' Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) projected growth as specified in

the May 2013 SRTP for Fiscal Years 2013 - 2017 and the Adopted SRTP Oct. 2014 for Fiscal

Years 2018-2021 shill result in a lump sum payment of five hundred dollar ($500) up to a

maximum of one thousand dollars (S1,000) subject to the following limitations:

a. Specific lncreased Expenses

Determine whether the following specific District expenses have increased greater

than stated:

District's Employer PERS miscellaneous pension contribution rates increased by

more than 16%;

Health insurance premiums, as reported by CaIPERS and measured by the simple
average of the annual percent change in Blue Shield Access+ and Kaiser
Premiums, required by Section 5.28 of this Agreement increased by more than
t0%.
lf either of the increases listed above are exceeded then no lump sum payment

will be made

b. Extraordinary, Unplanned Expenses

The District shall determine whether an extraordinary, unbudgeted, and

unanticipated expense exceeding 2.5% ol the District's adopted operating
expense budget occurred. ln the event that such an extraordinary, unbudgeted
and unanticipated expense outside the control of the District has occurred the

District shall have no obligation to make a lump sum payment.

*Minute Clarification

*The Parties understand that the Core System excludes various extension projects. Under
the terms of the operating agreements governing the San Francisco Airport Extension, the
Oakland Airport Connecter and the WA/BART Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension, BART fare
revenue generated by riders using those extensions is dedicated to those extension
projects.

*The conditional lump sum payment provision above is based on the following ridership
projections. BART's Short Range Transit Plan ("SRTP") Financial Model: Ridership Estimates
projects the following ridership and related revenues:

47.4 Page 3 of 5 a4/07 /2a16



Core System FYl3 FY14 FY15 FY16 FYLT

Average Weekday
Ridership Core System
% Growth over Prior Year

346,869 356,443
2.760%

357,615
0.329o/o

365,498
2.204%

368,960

0.947%

Short Range Transit Pla n

Average Weekday -

The Parties understand that eligibility for the conditional lump sum is limited to those
"bargaining unit members on active and paid status," which includes employees on District
authorized leave and those on disability or workers compensation at the time of payment
provided that the leave commenced during the applicable fiscal year or between the end of
that fiscal year and the payment date. Employees who have retired or left District
employment on a permanent basis as of the end of the applicable fiscal year or who
commenced employment after the end of the applicable fiscal year shall not be eligible to
receive the lump sum.

+Minute Clarification

For FY14 only, the District shall determine employees' eligibility for conditional lump sum
payments based on the extent to which the actual average weekday core system ridership
exceeds the SRTP forecast on each half of the fiscal year, without regard to the other half of
the fiscal year. For example, for each one (1.) percent that the actual growth exceeds
projected groMh in the first half of the fiscal year, employees shall receive g250, up to a

maximum of 5500; and for each one (1) present that the actual growth exceeds projected
growth in the second half ofthe fiscal year, employees shall receive S2s0, up to a maximum
of 5500. The first half of FY 2014 is .luly 1, 2013 to Decem ber 31, 2013; the second ha lf of Fy
201.4 is January 1, 2014 to June 30,201,4.

SRTP Adopted Oct. 2014
Averase Weekdav -
Core Svstem FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21

Averaqe Weekdav
Ridership Core Svstem
% Growth over Prior Year

378,380

2.6%

387.990
2.5o/o

395.940
2.Oo/o

402,374
1..6%

4l .0 Page 4 of 5 04/07/21fi



FOR THE DISTRICT FOR ATU

/i

Lr- .{-, -ir' L rtz\
Chris Finn

President/ Business Agent

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

4l .o Page 5 of 5 04/07 /2076

APPROVED AS TO FORM:



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSTT DISTRICT

ln the Matter of Ratifying an extension to the

201 3-2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement

between the District and the American

Federation of State, County and Municipal

Emplovees. Local 3993 ) Resolution No.

BE lT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District hereby ratifies an extension of the 2013 - 2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement
between the District and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
Local 3993, subject to those changes as set forth in the attached Tentative Agreements dated
April 7, 2016; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to execute the
Agreement on behalf of the District.

###

Adopted



PREAMBLE

April 7,2016

The Parties have agreed to an extension of the 2013 - 2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement.
All terms and conditions of the 20L3 - 2077 Agreement shall be extended through June 30,
2027. All terms and conditions of the 2013-2017 Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect, throughout the extended term, except as noted in the attached tentative agreements,

FOR THE DISTRTCT FOR SEIU

--^A*42--
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer
Olivia Roc

President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR ATU

Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

FOR AFSCME

Sal Cruz

President, AFSCME Local 3993

General Manager

office bYthe Geneial
by Victoria R. Nuetzel

Preamble Page 1 of 1 04/0712016



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENT

CONTRACT EXTENSION

April7,20t6

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART")and the American Federation

of State, County and Municipal Employees Local 3993 ("AFSCME") have negotiated and reached

a tentative agreement for an extension of the current contract, which is currently set to expire

on June 30, 2017, to lune 30,2021as specified herein. The parties agree that final approval of
the terms set forth herein is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board

of Directors.

BART and AFSCME agree that the terms and conditions of the labor agreement between

them which is currently set to expire effective June 30, 2017, shall be extended to June 30,

2027.

All terms and conditions ofthe Agreement shall remain unchanged during the extended

term with the following exceptions:

Section 1- Shall be revised to reflect the new termination date, June 30, 2021;

Section 33 - Shall be revised to reflect the S37 premium increase for an additional four
(4) years;

Sections 25 and 39 - The Parties agree, under certain terms and conditions, to negotiate

modifications to these provisions;

Section 35- Section 2a shall be revised to reflect the applicable accrual and election
periods from 2018 - 2021;

Section 47.3 - Shall be revised to reflect that all annual pay progression increases shall
be delayed for six (six) months, from June to January;

Section 47.8 - Shall be revised to reflect a 25% salary increase effective 7 /71L7, a 2-5o/o

salary increase effective 7 hh9, a 2.75% salary increase effectiv e 7 /U19 and a 2.75%o salary
increase effective 7 /1,/20-

Section 47.9 - Minute Clarification, shall be revised to reflect the Average Weekday

Ridership and Core System % Growth over prior year as reflected in the Adopted SRTP, October
2074 for FYs 18, 19, 20 and 2L

?s7ao'1 District -AFiCME - 4/7/1,6



ln addition to the above, the Parties further agree to the following:

Any and all provisions including the provisions of section 47.1(C), which require BART to

perform salary surveys, shall be suspended upon ratification of this extension; however, upon

request by the Union, BART may agree to perform a salary survey. Nothing herein shall

preclude BART from reviewing pay rates and the salary structure for any BART position

including those represented by AFSCME.

Upon ratification of this extension, the Contract shall be amended, as required, to reflect

that all Pay Bands (including but not limited to all quartiles and all minimum and maximum

salary ranges) for AFSCME members are increased and shall in the future be increased by the

amount of all contractual raises, including those specified in Sections 47.8 and 47.3. lt is further

agreed that the adjustment of those pay bands as set forth herein shall, and is expressly

intended to, eliminate redlining and that all redlining language throughout the Agreement shall

be deleted.

within sixty (60) days following the adoption of a new classification and Compensation Plan

with respect to BART's non-represented employees, the Parties shall negotiate regarding

options to convert AFSCM E's pay progression plan to a step based pay plan.

All other terms and conditions shall remain unchanged except to the extent that such terms

and conditions may be modified by operation of state or federal law

FOR AFSCME

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

-\-'o'\ r Disrri(t -A FscME - 41111,6

FOR THE DISTRICT

General Manager President



D AS TO FORM:

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

7sr40v1 District _AFSCME _ 4/7/1-6



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

April 7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and the American Federation
of state, county and Municipal Employees Local 3993 ("AFscME") have negotiated and reached
a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (,,CgA,,). No
tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement
between the parties. Allparties agree that final approvalof the tentative collective bargaining
agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 1 as follows:

DURARTION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1,, 2ol3 and shall remain in full force andeffect up to and including June 30, 4g ZOZI.

FOR AFSCME

{*//4
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

1.2

FOR THE DISTRICT

General Manager
Sal Cruz

President

e General Counsel
R. Nuetzel

Page 1 of 1 04/07 /20t6



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

PERS MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS

April7,20LG

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and the American Federation
ofState, County and Municipal Employees Local 3993 ("AFSCME") have negotiated and reached
a tentative agreement on this provision ofthe Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No
tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement
between the parties. All parties agree that final approval ofthe tentative collective bargaining
agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 33 as follows:

33. PERS MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS

The District will provide group medical and prescription drug benefits, as

provided below, through the Public Employees' Retirement System (pERS). The
PERS rules, regulations and plan documents will control on all issues concerning
benefits, including the types and levels of benefits offered and eligibility for
those benefits.

The Union acknowledges that it understands these benefits may not equate to
benefits previously available to employees and retirees through the various
optional medical plans and the Prescription Drug plan. Because coverage will be
provided through PERS, the District and the Union understand that pERS may
terminate or change covered expenses, benefit payments and co-payments on
covered benefits, deductibles, lifetime and/or annual maximums and may
implement various cost control features.

Except for Survivors Benefits, as provided for in Section 41, the Union waives the
right to any group medical or prescription drug benefit granted expressly or
implied under other sections of this Agreement, or by any other agreement
between the parties or by any District guideline, policy or practice if that benefit
is not offered through the pERS medical plan.

A. Employee and Retiree Contributions for Health lnsurance

All employees eligible for PERS medical benefits who enroll for such benefits
shall be responsible for a premium contribution in the amount of twenty-four
dollars and fifty eight cents (924.58) per month, except as provided below.

Page 1 of 9 04/07/201633



1.. The employee's twenty-four dollars and fifty eight cents (S24.58) monthly
employee contribution toward the medical insurance premium shall increase
by fifty dollars and forty two cents (550.42) on January 1, 2006. Each January
l thereafter, the monthly employee contribution shall increase by an

escalator amount of three percent (3%). For example, the total monthly
employee contribution on January 1, 2007 will be seventy-seven dollars and
twenty-five cents per month. (The calculation that arrives at this number is

as follows: 524.58 + 550.42 = S75 x 1.03 = 577.25.|)The employee
contribution amounts provided by this subsection shall be the maximum
employee premium contribution through June 30, 2034. The employee
contribution amounts provided below shall be in addition to any costs for
coverage excess of the amounts specified in paragraph C below.

Maximum Employee

DATE

01 Jan. - 06

01 Jan. - 07

01 Jan. - 08

01 Jan. - 09

01 Jan. - 10

01 Jan. - 11

01 Jan. - 12

01 Jan. - 13

01 Jan. - 14

01 Jan. - 15

01 Jan. - 16

01 Jan. - 17

01 Jan. - 18

01 Jan. - 19

Monthly Contribution

s7s.00

s77.2s

$19.s7

S81.es

584.41

S86.9s

S8e.ss

$gz.zq

Sss.o1

S97.85

S1oo.79

$103.82

s106.93

s110.14

PaBe 2 of 9 04/o7 /2016



01 Jan. - 20

01 Jan. - 21

0L lan. - 22

01 Jan. - 23

01 Jan. - 24

01 Jan. - 25

01 Jan. - 26

01 Jan. - 27

01 Jan. - 28

01 Jan. - 29

01 Jan. - 30

01 Jan. - 31

01 Jan. - 32

01 Jan. - 33

01 Jan. - 34

S113.44

$116.8s

Sr2o.3s

S123.96

Sr27.68

S131.s1

S13s.46

S139.s2

S143.02

S148.02

5L52.46

S1s7.03

$16L.74

S166.60

$171.s9

2. During the term of this Agreement, the employees, premium contribution
shall be increased by thirty-seven dollars (S37) per month as follows:2014 -
S132.01; 2015 - S134.8G; 2016 - S137.79; ahd 2oL7 _ gI4o.B2;.2orl _

743.93:2019 - 5L47.!4:2020 - 5t5O.44:and 2021 -5153.85 For active
employees the additional thirty-seven dollars (S37) per month shall be
deducted from the one and six hundred twenty-seven thousandths percent
(1,.627%) money purchase pension plan contribution.

3. Each eligible retiree shall pay the same premium contribution as active
employees. Employees' premium contributions will be paid for through tax-
exempt payroll deductions. Retiree premium contributions will be deducted
from the retirement allowance paid by pERS. lf a retiree,s retirement
allowance is not sufficient to pay the entire contrlbution, the retiree must
pay the balance due on such premium contribution directly to pERS. lf such
payment is not received by the due date, health care coverage will

33 PaBe 3 ot 9 04/07/2Arc



B.

automatically, immediately and permanently cease. These rules are
intended to comply with the premium contribution procedures established
by PERS, which may be modified by pERS. The District, Unions and
employees shall comply with the pERS procedures in effect from time to
time.

Maximum District Contributions for Health lnsurance

Beginning January 7,2070, the District shall contribute an amount up to the
applicable level of plan participation (i.e. one party, two party, or family) and the
same Medicare status as elected by the eligible employee or retiree equal to the
Bay Area Basic Premium Rates for the PERS HMO Blue Shield Access+ or pERS

HMO Kaiser Plan, whichever is greater, less the employee and retiree
contributions provided for in 33 B above. This District contribution shall be the
District's maximum payment toward employee health insurance premiums.
Employees and retirees electing coverage with a cost greater than the District,s
maximum contribution shall have the difference deducted automatically from
the unit member's pay, in addition to amounts to be deducted in accordance
with subsection B above.

Retiree lnsurance Funding

1. Beginning July 7, 2007 , the District shall contribute into its Retiree Health
Benefit Trust (RHBT) amounts that, at minimum, reflect an eight (8) year
"ramp up" to District payment of the full Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) compliant Annual Required Contribution (ARC) beginning July
1, 20L3 using an open group valuation method with a closed thirty (30) year
amortization schedule for unfunded liability ending June 30, 2034. Except as
provided in paragraph 3 below, each pay period the District shall contribute
to the RHBT an amount equal to the below-listed percentages of straight
time bargaining unit base pay paid to bargaining unit members in that pay
period into the RHBT. (For example, if base pay in the pay period in Fy ,07 

is
one million dollars (S1,000,000), the District will contribute 534,900 into the
RHBT for that pay period).

DATE

)uly 7,2OO7

July 1, 2008
July 1, 2009
July 1, 2010
July 1, 201,7

July I, 201,2

(FY 08)
(rY 0e)

(FY 10)
(FY 11)

(FY 12)
(FY 13)

PERCENTAGE

3.490/o

3.640/o

3.79%
3.94o/o

4.L0%
4.27%

ln addition, on or before June 30, 2009 the District shall, at minimum,
contribute into the RHBT an amount equal to three and twenty-two one-

c.

33 Page 4 of 9 a4/07 /2016



hundredths percent (3.22o/ol of straight time bargaining unit base pay paid in
FY '06 and three and thirty-six one-hundredths percent (3.36%) of straight
time bargaining unit base pay paid in Fy '07. These figures represent the
tlramp up" percentages for those fiscal years.

3. The District shall perform an actuarial study of the retiree medical insurance
plan liabilities and funding needs (including the Annual Required
Contribution - "ARC") after the end of each calendar year but before the
beginn ing of the next fisca I year for wh ich the resu lts provide guidance. For
each fiscal year beginning with Fy 2007, the actuaries shall adjust the above
//ramp up'/ percentages for the fiscal year for which the study was prepared
and for each remaining fiscalyear in the '7/ramp up,, period. The last such
adjustment will be in the study performed prior to J u ly 1, 2073 for Fy 2013.
The revised percentages shall be the percentages contributed by the District
to the RHBT for those years, except that the District shall pay no less than the
percentages specified in subsections l and 2 above.

4. Beginning July L,2013, the District shall, at minimum, contribute to the RHBT
each pay period an amount equalto the full GAS8 compliant Annual
Required Contribution (ARC) percentage of straight time base pay paid to
bargaining unit members during that pay period using an open group
valuation method with a closed thirty (30) year amortization schedule for
unfunded liability ending June 30, 2034. (For example, if the base pay during
the pay period is one million dollars (51,000,000) and the ARC percentage is

fourteen percent (14%), the District will contribute one hundred forty
thousand dollars (5140,000) to the RHBT for that pay period.)

5. During the term of th is Agreement, the District shall retain.0ggg%of the
7,627% of the Money Purchase pension plan contribution in addition to the
S37/month to be used as specified in paragraph 82 above.

6. Effective July 1, 2013, the District shall retain the rema inder of the1.627%
MPPP contribution referred to in subsection D.5 above to the extent
necessary to compensate the District for paying the difference between the
actualARC and the baseline ARC described below. The District shall retain
this amount through June 30,2034.1n any year in which the actual ARC does
not exceed the baseline ARC by an amount equal to the amount ofthe
retained 7.627% MPPP contribution, the District shall pay the appropriate
portion of the 7.6270/o into the employees' Mppp accounts, but only to the
extent that the difference between the actual ARC and the baseline ARC is
less than the dollar value of the retained Mppp l.6270/0.

EXAMPLE: Assume that the actual ARC is fifteen percent (15%) in the
particular year, the baseline ARC is {ourteen percent (14%) in the particular
year, and that the difference between the two is one million dollars

l3 Page 5 of 9 04/07/2Arc



(51,000,000). Assu me further that the va lue of the retained 1.627% is one

million five hundred thousand dollars (S1,500,000). The District would then

pay a total of five hundred thousand dollars (5500,000) into the employees'

collective MPPP accounts. These payments would be prorated in the same

manner as would result from full payment of the !.6270/o into the employee

accou nts.

The baseline ARC is as follows:

FY YEAR BEGINNING

t /1173
7 /7/14
7 /11ls
7 /L/1,6
7 /rl77
7 /L|1,8
7 /L|79
7 /t/20
7 /L/21
717/22

1/1/23
t /1/24
1/1125
7 /t/26
7lL/27
7 /1128
7 /tl2e
7 /tl30
717/31

717/32

7 /t/33

BASELINE ARC

77.88%

71.94%

72.000/o

72.06%

12.12%

!2.18o/o

12.24%

7230%
7236%
72.420/0

72.480/0

12.54%

L2.60%

L2.660/o

72.72o/o

72.78%

72.84%

77.900/0

72.960/o

13.020/o

13.08o/o

D.

7. Effective July 1, 2013 the District shall direct the Trustee of the RHBT to pay

retiree health insurance premiums from the RHBT. No premiums will be paid

from the RHBT prior to July 7,2OL3.

ln tieu of Medical Payments

During any open enrollment period after July 1, 2009, an eligible employee who

has medical coverage under a spousal or other alternate plan may elect, in

accordance with procedures established by the District to opt out of the group

medical and prescription drug benefits covered under Section 33 A.

Page 6 of 9 04/a1/2076



E.

The District shall make a monthly payment of three hundred and fifty dollars
(5350.00) "in lieu of medical" to each eligible employee who opts out of 33.A.
coverage.

Tax treatment ofthese payments will be subject to applicable lnternal Revenue
Code (lRC) and lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) rules. The payments will be made
in a manner that will not impact the income tax status of medical premiums
under IRC requirements and to allow an employee to receive the amounts as
cash monthly payments.

An eligible employee who opts out of Section 33.A. coverage may subsequently
enroll in such coverage as permitted under the terms ofthe plan(s) described in
33.A.

Trust Review Committee

1. The District's five (5) unions shall each appoint one (j.) memberto serve on a
Trust Review Committee (TRC). The District Labor Relations Manager and
Human Resources Manager shall serve on the TRC for the District. TheTRC
shall meet quarterly. Employee members of the TRC will be released from
regularly scheduled duty with pay for quarterly TRC meetings.

2. TheDistrictwill direct the Trustee of the Trust to provide the Un ions with
quarterly reports of all RHBT operations, including audited and unaudited
financialstatements and investment performance reports, and other
consultant reports in advance ofthe quarterly TRC meeting. (The parties
acknowledge that audited financial statements are performed only once per
year.)

3. TheTrusteewill attend the TRC meeting to answer questions concerning the
information provided to the TRC. However, the TRC shall in no way attempt
to assist, direct, or otherwise involve itself in matters concerning the
investment of Trust assets. However, the TRC may advise the Trustee on
other Trust matters to the extent such advisory activity does not affect the
legal status ofthe Trust. rt sha be within the sole discretion ofthe Trustee
whether to follow or not follow such advice.

4. The TRC members shall be released from regularly scheduled duty with pay
to attend meetings of the Human Resources Manager and Labor Relations
Manager with the District's actuaries and other professionals to discuss
assumptions to be included in annual GASB valuation studies, the preliminary
and final results of such studies, etc. Such studies shall include ARC
projections through at least the year 2035. The District will provide the
unions with a copy of the final version of such study on or before February
1st each year or as soon thereafter as is practicable.

Retiree Health Benefits TrustF.

PaBe 7 of 9 04/07/2016
33



G.

Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the signing of this agreement by the
parties hereto, the District shall amend the Trust Agreement to provide that:

1. Trust assets shall be held for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing
health benefits to eligible BART retirees and to defray the reasonable
expenses of administering the RHBT.

2. The only District benefit plans for which payments may be made from the
RHBT shall be those retiree health benefit plans offered to eligible District
retirees as a result of its collective bargaining agreements, or District policy
which extends such plans to non-represented employees. ln addition, for
District personnel on a District plan that is no longer generally offered to
District employees, payments may be made from the RHBT. However, the
District shallensure sufficient separate funding and the Trustee shall
separately account for benefits paid for such personnel.

3. The District may terminate the RHBT, subject to its duty to bargain in good
faith to agreement or impasse over such termination with the Union. lf the
District gives the Un ion notice of the termination of the RHBT, the Trust shall
not terminate until the assets then remaining are exhausted. Such assets
shall be used only as provided in paragraph l above.

4. The District reserves the right to terminate or change any part or all of the
health benefits program at any time with respect to active or retired
employees; however, any such action will be taken only after the District has
satisfied its obligations under applicable Collective Bargaining Agreements.
The District's obligation to provide health benefits coverage to retired
employees shall terminate upon the expiration of this Agreement. By
providing benefits to retirees, the parties do not intend to vest retirees with
such benefits.

Retiree Medical lnsurance Eligibility

The parties agree that with respect to District employees first hired after luly 1,

2014, the District shall make no contribution for postretirement health benefits
on behalf of such individuals with less than ten years of credited service with the
District, and that the full District contribution for postretirement health benefits
shall be made only on behalf of individuals who have completed a minimum of
fifteen (15) years of credited service with the District. Eligibility for this benefit
is, in addition to the specified criteria, subject to current provisions which
require that the employee retire from CalpERS within one hundred and twenty
(120) days of separation from the District.

The parties agree that:

1. This provision applies to unrepresented employees, members of the Board of
Directors to the extent they are eligible under existing law, and members of

J3 Page 8 of9 a4/al/2016



FOR THE DISTRICT

Carol lsen
Chief Labor Relations Officer

any unit of employees whose terms and conditions of employment are

determined through collective bargaining and who agree that it should
apply to its members.

2. Contributions shall be subject to:

a. Credited years of District service

b. An agreement with all represented employees mutually agreed upon

through collective bargaining ;

FOR AFSCME

, X*X*--,
Sal Cruz

President

Grace

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

33 Page 9 of 9 04/07 /2076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

S!CK LEAVE

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and the American Federation

of State, County and Municipal Employees Local 3993 ("AFSCME") have negotiated and reached

a tentative agreement on this provision ofthe Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No

tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement

between the parties. All parties agree that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining

agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 35 as follows:

35 Sick Leave

A. Employees will accrue one (1) day of Sick Leave for each full month of
employment. Sick Leave credits may be accumulated to a total of two
thousand five hundred (2500) hours. Sick Leave will be paid without
limitation on their rights under state and federal law when an employee is

required to be absent because of:

L. lllness (including alcoholism), including the appropriate use of required
prescribed medication which would impair the employee's work
performance, injury, quarantine or similar exposure to contagious

disease;

2. Required attendance upon a seriously ill spouse, domestic partner (as

per Board Resolutions 4455 and 47571, parenl or child as required in

writing by a doctor, to include the length of the anticipated leave. Said

documentation shall be subject to verification;

3. Verifiable medical and/or dental appointments which cannot be

scheduled outside the normalworking hours of the employee,
provided that a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours advance notice is

given and provided that subsequent confirmation that the

appointment was kept is given, if requested by management.

B. An employee experiencing a verified industrial injury or illness will be

entitled to receive for each separate injury or illness up to five (5) days

35 Page 7 o11 04/0112015



industrial accident leave. Sick Leave benefits, to the extent they are

available, will be coordinated with Workers' Compensation to maintain

the employee's basic straight time earnings.

To be eligible for Sick Leave benefits an employee may be required to

provide satisfactory written verification of the necessary and/or
compelling reason. lf doubt exists as to an illness or injury or that absence

from work was required, the decision of a physician selected by District

will govern.

The General Manager may grant time off without pay to an employee who
has insufficient accumulated Sick Leave.

All unused accumulated Sick Leave shall be cancelled without
compensation upon termination of employment.

lncentives For Sick Leave Accrued And Unused On Or After October 19,

2009

To encourage employees to maintain maximum attendance and to
improve performance, the District offers employees the following two (2)

incentives beginning October 19, 2009:

1. PERS Retirement Service Credit for Sick Leave: The District will amend
its contract with CaIPERS to provide the California Government Code

Section 20965 option for service credit for unused sick leave for eligible
CaIPERS members in the bargaining unit, with an effective date of
October 19, 2009. The Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) and
CaIPERS rules will govern the eligibility of unused sick leave earned on
or after October 19, 2009 for service credit. Those rules presently
grant 0.004 years of service credit for each certified unused day of sick
leave accrued by the member during the normal course of his/her
employment. For employees whose effective date of retirement is

within four months of separation from employment with the District,
the District shall certify to CaIPERS all such unused days of sick leave
that were accrued by the employee on or after October 19, 2009. For
purposes of Government Code Section 20965, leave accrued prior to
October 19,2009 shall not be considered "unused" sick leave and the
District will not certify such sick leave to CaIPERS, unless the employee
has made the one-time election to convert such pre-October l-9 sick
leave to PE Rs-cred it-eligible sick leave pursuant to paragraph G below.

C.

D.

E.

F.

l5 Page 2 ol7 04/07/2076



2. Annual Buy-Back or Mppp lncentive: The District shallgive employees
the option each year to make an irrevocable election on the schedule
indicated below to buy-back or to deposit into their Money purchase
Pension Plan (MPPP) accounts, the dollar value of the sick leave earned
within the annual accrual period indicated in F.z.a below, less sick
leave taken during that same period, on an after tax basis.

a) Sick Leave Accrual/Election Periods: The maximum sick leave which
may be earned for each accruar period is ninety-six (96) hours for
employees on a 5-8 or 9/80 work plan and one hundred twenty
(120) hours for employees on a 4-ro work plan. sick leave for
which such an election has been made shall not be included by the
District in the certification to CaIPERS under the retirement service
credit plan described above.

ELECTION PERIOD ACCRUAL PERIOD
09t02t13 - 09/1 6t13 09/30/,13 _ 09t28t14
09/01t14 - 09/15t14 09t29t14 _ 09t27t15
09t07t15 - 09t21t15 09t28t15 _ 09t26t16

09/05/16 - 09t19t16 09t26t16 _ 09t24t17
09t04,17 - 09t18t17 A9t25t17 _ 09t23t18
09t03,18 - 09t17t18 A9t24t18 _ 09t22t19
09t02t19 - 09t16t19 09t23t19 _ 09t20tzo
09t07 t20 - a9t21t20 09t21t20 _ 09/ 19t21

b) Buy-Back / MPPP Deposit Accounts: An election to "buy-back', or
to deposit into the MPPP must also include an election as to the
percentage amount of the "buy-back", based on the percentage
increments and maximums provided below. The Maximum Buy-
Back percentage that will be allowed is based on the employee,s
attendance record during the accrual period.

Days

0

1-3

Banking Percentage of
Unused Earned Sick leave

5% up to 5Oo/o (in 5% increments)

5o/o up to 40% (in 5% increments)

35 Page 3 of 7 04/oa 12016



G.

Buy-Back and MPpp amounts shall be calculated at the employee,s
base rate of pay at the end of the accrual period less applicable tax
withholding.

c) lmpact of Buy-Back / Mppp Election: Employees may select only
one option (Buy-Back or Mppp) for each accrual period. Once the
Buy-Back or MPPP incentive election is made for any accrual period
it may not be changed. Employees will receive the Buy-Back checks
or MPPP credit no later than December 1 following the end of the
accrual period. Unused sick leave hours for which an election to
Buy-Back or transfer into the MPPP is not made shall be carried
over to the next year, subject to maximum accumulation limits, and
will no longer be available for any future Annual Buy-Back / MPPP

incentive election.

One-Time Election To Convert Sick leave Accrued Prior to October 19,

2009 To PERS Creditable Sick Leave.

During the month of October 2009, employees will be given a one-time
opportunity to convert unused sick leave that has been accrued prior to
October 19,2009 to PE RS-credit-eligible sick leave (described in paragraph
F.1. above). This election shall be irrevocabki, and will include all the
employee's unused sick leave, including banked sick leave pursuant to H.L

and unbanked sick leave pursuant to F.2.c. above. lf an employee makes

this election, such accrued leave will no longer be eligible for pay-out at
termination/retirement (previously banked leave) or at retirement
(unbanked leave). All leave converted pursuant to this paragraph G will be

subject to CaIPERS rules for service credit eligibility. Leave converted
under this paragraph will thereafter be considered, for purposes of
disposition at the end of employment only, to have been accrued on or
after October t9,2009.

Sick Leave Accrued Prior to October 19, 2009:

Sick leave accrued prior to October 19,2009, which is not converted to
PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph G above, shall be
preserved in accounts separate from sick leave accrued on or after
October t9,2009, and shall be used pursuant to the terms of this
paragraph H, including 1.-3.

1. Banked Sick Leave (under previously exercised option)

H.

35 Page 4 of 7 04/o7/2Afi



2.

This section refers to sick leave which has been ,,banked,,in 
accordance

with Labor Agreement Section 35 as it was in effect on June 30,2OOg,
or banked pursuant to Agreements previously in effect. rt excrudes sick
leave electively converted to pERS creditable sick leave pursuant to
paragraph G above. lt includes sick leave for which a banking election
was made during the 200g or earlier options periods.

Banked sick leave, as defined above, will be preserved in a separate
account for use by the employee in accordance with the provisions of
former Section 35 including the following:

a. Such bank shall be set aside for payment upon
death/retirement/termination and shall not be included in the
calculation of unused sick leave pursuant to paragraph G above or
Government Code Section 20965.

b. Sick leave hours banked will be paid at the employee,s base rate of
pay, effective on the employee,s date of death or
retirement/termination from District,s employment.

c. Employees who experience an illness/injury and exhaust their
existing sick leave that is available, may utilize sick leave that has
been banked under prior Section -?5 provided they make a written
request to do so through their Department Manager at the time of
the illness/injury and the circumstances qualify for sick leave under
Section A (sick leave payment).

Sick Leave Buy-Back (under previously exercised option)

Employees who exercised the option during the September 200g
period specified in Labor Agreement Section 35 in effect on june 30,
2009 to make an irrevocable election to buy-back or deposit into the
MPPP the value of sick leave earned during the annual accrual period,
less sick leave taken during the annual accrual period shall receive the
buy-back payments and the MPPP deposits required by the prior Labor
Agreement.

Buy-back checks for the 2009 accrual period under former Labor
Agreement Section 35 will be distributed to employees no later than
December 1 following the end of the accrual period, and Mppp
elections for that period will be deposited by that same date.

Retirement Buy-Back3.

l5 Page 5 of 7 04/07 /2A16



t.

Sick leave accrued prior to October L9,2009 and not (1) banked
pursuant to paragraph 1 above; (2) bought back or deposited in the
MPPP pursuant to paragraph 2 above; (3) converted to PERS creditable
sick leave pursuant to paragraph G above; or (4) used pursuant to E

and A, shall be available for use as Retirement Buy Back incentive.
Employees leaving District service on a service retirement (non-

disability retirement) shall be paid fifty percent (50%) of this accrued
sick leave balance upon the effective date of service retirement. The
accrued sick leave shall not be included in the calculation of unused
sick leave pursuant to paragraph G above or Government Code Section
20965.

Order of Use of Sick Leave from Separate Accounts.

When using sick leave with pay pursuant to Section A above, employees
sick leave balances will be deducted in the following order;

'1 . Sick leave accrued on or afterOctober 19,2009, if any, including any
sick leave accrued before October 19,2009 which an employee has

elected to convert to PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph

G above, if any.

2. lf the accruals described in paragraph l.1are exhausted, unbanked sick

leave accrued prior to October 19, 2009, if any.

3. lf the accruals described in paragraphs 1.1 and 1.2 above are exhausted,

banked sick leave, if any, may be used subject to the terms of
paragraph H.1.c a bove.

FOR AFSCME

O,-fZ-
Carol lsen
Chief Labor Relations Officer

Genera I Manager President

Page 6 o{ 7 04/01/2A$

Sal Cruz



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

35 PageT of7 04/07 12016



SAN FRANCISCO BAYAREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

APRIL 7, 2016

The san Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and the American Federation of
state, county and Municipal Employees Local 3993 ("AFSCME") have negotiated and reached a

tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (,,cBA,,). No
tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement
between the parties. All parties agree that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining
agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to amend Section 39 A as follows:

39 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

A. The District shall continue its present participation in the public Employees' Retirement
System (PERS) for miscellaneous members at existing levels. ln the event that during the term

The Parties agree that no later than thirty (30) days following a final ruling in Stote of Colifornio
v DOL, lhe Parties shall commence bargaining regarding the provisions of section 25 and any

other applicable contract provision related to pension contributions.

After January 1, 2018 and upon request of any party, the parties agree to bifurcate the issues

reflected in pending pension-related grievances and endeavor to reach agreement related to
employee pension contributions.

The Parties agree that any resolution shall be cost neutral to all parties. The negotiations shall
not result in an lncrease in the employer paid member contribution as described in section 25.

Any agreement described above shall immediately toll the District's prospective liability with
respect to the dispute over employee contributions reflected in the gnevances. All bargaining
shall be conducted based upon the District's obligations under State and Federal law.

ln the event that the Parties are unable to reach agreement within six (6) months of the
commencement of bargaining, unresolved issues shall be put to interest arbitration for a final
and binding decision.

Page 1 of 2 04/o-1201639



Nothing in this Agreement is intended to modify or compromise the position of any party to

this Agreement in relation to the pending litigation referenced above.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR AFSCME

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

Grace Cy'un ican

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

39 Page 2 ot 2 04 /ot2a16

General Manager



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

PAY PROGRESSION PROGRAM

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and the American Federation
of state, county and Municipal Employees Local 3993 {"AFscME") have negotiated and reached
a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (,,CBA,,). No
tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement
between the parties. All parties agree that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining
agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 47.3 as follows:

47.3 Pay Progression Program

Effective July 7,20t3, employees moved to the thirty percent (30%) pay band
model, with pay bands as provided below. Future adjustments to the pay bands
will be in accordance with 47.1.

Employees are brought into a pay band at the time they are assigned to a

position within a classification in that pay band - whether from the outside or as
a result of a promotion, in accordance with the provisions of Section 47,
Compensation, including Sections 47.L(D) and 47.2(A).

Effective January 1,2013, and after the first general rate increase provided in B,
below, existing employees whose pay is less than the minimum for his/her
assigned pay band will be moved to the minimum of the assigned pay band and,
if the increase to reach the minimum is below one and two-tenths percent
(L.2o/ol, such employees will also receive an increase of seventy-five one
hundredths of one percent (0.75%).

1



AY

\ND
1st Quartile 2nd Quartile 3rd Quartile 4th Quartile

Minimum Midpoint Maximun

A s59,219 s63,660 s63,661 SoS,tot s68,102 572,542 572,543 S76,985

B 564,444 569,277 s69,279 574,1,10 s74,3.71, 578,943 579,944 Sgl,zzg

C 570,505 57s,792 575,793 S81,o8o s81,081 S86,368 S86,369 Sgt,6sz

D 577,936 Sg:,023 S83,674 s8g,51o S89,511 S95,348 Sgs,:+g S tot,t8z

E 583,721 $89,999 s9o,00o 596,278 596,279 5roz,ss7 s 102,558 Sto8,83z

F s88,760 s95,416 595,417 5102,073 51,02,074 s108,731 s108,732 S115,389

G 595,270 51,02,41,4 S102,415 S109,560 s109,561 S116,705 5116,706 S123,851

H $1.07,L67 5108,753 s108,754 Stt6,3at 5716,342 5123,928 5723,929 S131,517

I
5707,934 S116,028 s116,029 s124,724 5t24,L24 5132,218 5132,2L9 5140,31,4

Effective January 7,20L3, and after the first general rate increase provided in B,

below, other employees whose base pay is within his/her assigned pay band will
receive a percentage increase based upon the quartile in which their base pay
(inclusive of the general rate increase in B)falls in their assigned pay band, as
provided below.

QUARTILE
First Quartile (minimum of pay band to < 25%)

Second Quartile (25%to < 50%)

Third Quartile (50% to <75%)

Fourth Quartile (75% to maximum of pay band)

PERCENTAGE

t.50o/o of base salary

1,.0% of base sala ry

O.5o/o of base sala ry

0.3% of base salary

Effective July 1. in each Fiscal Year beginning in FY 2015, and on Januarv 1-. of each
FiscalYear beginning in FY 2018. after application of a generalwage increase, if
any, employees will receive the percentage increases based upon pay band

47.3 Page 2 of 3 04/o712016



quartile. Each such increase is subject to the employee's achieving an overall
performance rating of "effective" or better on his/her most recent annual
performance evaluation, and provided that the employee has no active discipline
involving an attendance component.

Eligibility for the percentage increases shall also be subject to the limitations
provided in subsections 8.2 and C, below.

The parties mutually understand that the continuation of the annual pay
progression described herein is subject to collective bargaining between the
parties upon expiration of the agreement.

FOR AFSCME

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

APFROVED AS TO FORM:
r,it\,-., \rh d
by Victoria R. Nuetzel

Grace 0runican

4t.3 Page 3 of 3 04/o712016

FOR THE DISTRICT



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

SATARY FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014.2021

April7,20t6

The san Francisco Bay Area Rapid rransit District ("BART") and the American Federation
of state, County and Municipar Emproyees Locar 3gg3 (,AFscME-) have negotiated and reached
a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (,,CBA,,). No
tentative agreement shafl be a finar agreement except as a part of a totar package agreement
between the parties. All parties agree that final approval ofthe tentative collective bargaining
agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 47.g as follows:

47.8 SALARY FOR FTSCAL YEARS 2074_;s112021

A. Fiscal year 20L4

Effective July 7,2or3, the base sarary, for AFSCME emproyees shaI be increased
by one and eight thousand six hundred seven ten thousandths present
(1.8607%)- over the prior base rate of pay. The prior base rate of pay incrudes
the one percent (1%) conditional wage increase provided for in the 2oog-2013
Agreement effective Jury L,2or3. Effective Janua ry r,2otz. Effective January 1,
2014 the base salary shail be increased by an additionar one and eight thousand
six hundred seven ten thousandths percent (l.g607%1.

B. Fiscal year 2015

Effective Janua ry 7, 2OlS, the base salary, for AFSCME employees shall be
increased by three and seven thousand two hundred fourteen ten thousandths
percent (3.72Lq%).

C. Fiscal year 2016

Effective Janua ry l,2Ot6, the base salary, for AFSCME employees shall be
increased by three and seven thousand two hundred fourteen ten thousandths
percent (3.7214%1.

47.8
Page 1, al 2 o4/07/2016



D. Fiscal Year 2017

Effective January 1.,2017, the base salary, for AFSCME employees shall be
increased by four and two thousand fourteen ten thousandths percent
(4.2214%\.

E. Fiscal Years 201,8 and 2019

Effective July 1, 20L7 and July 1.,20L8 the base salary,for AFSCME employees
shall be increased by two and one half percent(2.5%).

F. Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021,

Effective July L, 2019 and effective July 1, 2020 the base salary for AFSCME

employees shall be increased by two and three quarters percent (2.75%\.

FOR AFSCME

fuq/'L
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

FOR THE DISTRICT

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

47.8 Page 2 of 2 04/07/2076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AFSCME TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

CONDITIONAL LUMP SUM PAYMENTS

April7,2OL6

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("8ART") and the American Federation

of State, County and Municipal Employees Local 3993 {"AFSCME") have negotiated and reached

a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No

tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement
between the parties. All parties agree that final approval ofthe tentative collective bargaining

agreement is subject to ratification by AFSCME membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 47.9 as follows:

47.9 CONDITIONAL LUMP SUM PAYMENTS

lf all criteria set forth herein are met and no extraordinary unplanned expenses as set
forth herein have occurred, then during each fiscal year of the term of this Agreement,
the District shall pay each AFSCME represented employee on active and paid status at
the time of the payment a lump sum pavment which shall be calculated as set forth
below but which shall not exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) in any flscal year.
These calculations shall be made at the conclusion of each fiscal year and will be based
on the data available on that date. Payment shall be made within sixty (60) days of the
date of the ca lculation.

1. Criteria for Lump Sum Payment

Each one (1) percent increase in actual Core System annual average weekday
ridership growth over the District's Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) projected growth
as specified in May 2013 SRTP for Fiscal Years 2013 - 2017 and the Adooted SRTP Oct.

2014 for Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021 shall result in a lump sum payment of five hundred
dollars (5500) up to a maximum of one thousand dollars (S1,000) subject to the
following limitations:

a. Specif ic lncreased Expenses

Determine whether the following specific District expenses have increased
greater than stated:

. District's Employer PERS miscellaneous pension contribution
rates increased by more than sixteen percent (16%);

Page 1 of 3 04lo7l2ot6



o Health lnsurance premiums, as reported by CalpERS and
measured by the simple average of the annual percent change
in the Blue Shield Access+ and Kaiser premiums, required by
Section 33 of this Agreement increased by more than ten
percent (L0%).

lf either of the increases listed above are exceeded then no lump sum payment
will be made.

b. Extraordinary, Unplanned Expenses

The District shall determine whether an extraordinary, unbudgeted, and
unanticipated expense exceeding two and five tenths percent (2.5%) of the
District's adopted operating expense budget occurred. ln the event that such an

extraordinary, unbudgeted and unanticipated expense outside of the control of
the District has occurred the District shall have no obligation to make a lump sum
payment.

* The Parties understand that the Core System excludes various extension projects.
Under the terms of the operating agreement governing the San Francisco Airport
Extension, the Oakland Airport Connector and the WA/BART Silicon Valley Berryessa
Extension, BART fare revenue generated by rides using those extensions is dedicated to
those extension projects.

* The Parties further understand the eligibility for the conditional lump sum is limited to
those "AFSCME represented employees on active and paid status," which includes those
employees on leave status at the time of payment, so long as they have worked at least
one day during the fiscal year.

* The conditional lump sum payment provision above is based on the following ridership
projections. BART's short Range Transit plan ("SRTp") Financial Model: Ridership
Estimates projects the following ridership and related revenues:

Page 2 of 3 04/o-7/201647.9



Core System FY13 FYT4 FY15 FY16 FYLT

Average Weekday
Ridership Core System
% Growth over Prior Year

346,869 356,443
2.7600/o

357,6L5
0.329%

365,498
2.204%

368,960

0.947%

Short Range Transit Plan

Average Weekday -

For the District

Mz-

For AFSCME

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

SRTP Adopted Oct. 2014
Average Weekdav -
Core Svstem FY18 FY19 FY2O FY2L

Average Weekdav
Ridership Core Svstem
% Growth over Prior Year

378,380

2.6%

387,990
2.s%

395,940
2.0%

402,314
L.6%

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

47.9 Page 3 of 3 04/o7120L6



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ln the Matter of Ratifying an extension of

the 201 3-2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement

between the District and the Service Employees'

lnternational Union. Local 1021 ) Resolution No.

BE lT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid

Transit District hereby ratifies an extension of the 2013 - 2017 Collective Bargaining Agreement

between the District and the Service Employees' lnternational Union, Local 1021,subject to those

changes as set forth in the attached Tentative Agreements dated April 7, 2016; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to execute the

Agreement on behalf of the District.

###

Adopted

75889v1



PREAMBLE

Apri! 7 ,2OL6

The Parties have agreed to an extension of the 20L3 - 20t7 Collective Bargaining Agreement.

All terms and conditions of the 2013 - 20L7 Agreement shall be extended through June 30,

202L. All terms and conditions of the 2013-20L7 Agreement shall remain in full force and

effect, throughout the extended term, except as noted in the attached tentative agreements,

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

/'^4*42--
Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

FOR ATU

/1 
"L,v tr-rd- .uT

Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR AFSCME

Sal Cruz

President, AFSCME Local 3993

John

General Manager

Office df the General CoYnsel

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

Preamble Page 1 of 1 04/o712016



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SErU/LOCAL 1021 GENERAL NEGOTTATTONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - TERM OF AGREEMENT

April7,2Ot6

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SE|U"), and
ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree

that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 1.2 as follows:

7.2 TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be from and including the first day of July 20L3 up to and
including the 30th day of June 2€17 Sor one hundred (100) days following receipt of notice
of a desire to modify or terminate this Agreement, whichever occurs later. Each party shall
comply with the provisions of California Government Code Section 361L. ln the event either
party serves notice upon the other party of a desire to modify or terminate the Agreement, the
parties shall meet and make all reasonable efforts to reach agreement on the subject matters
of such proposed modif ications.

The parties shall respond to any requests for information reasonably necessary for intelligent
negotiations and the standards and guidelines in accordance with California Government Code
Section 3511. Each party shall supply to the other party such reasonable data as are requested
by the other party.

To the fullest extent possible the parties shall endeavor to complete their negotiations at least
seven (7) days prior to the date any lawful economic action may be taken in connection with
any dispute concerning any proposed changes in any Collective Bargaining Agreement.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

, BART ChapterGeneral Manager

Page 1 of 2 04/07120161.2



Chief La bor Relations Officer President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR ATU

Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

1.2 Page 2 ol 2 04/o7 /2076

by Victoria R. Nuetzel



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEIU/tocAl 1021 GENERAT NEGOTIATIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - PERS.MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS

AprilT,2015

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SE|U"), and

ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU') have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final

agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree

that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by

SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 5.2 as follows:

5,2 PERS-MEDICAL & PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS *

A. PERS Medical and Prescription Drug Benefits

The District will provide group medical and prescription drug benefits, as provided below,

through the Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS). The PERS rules, regulations and plan

documents will control on all issues concerning benefits, including the types and levels of

benefits offered and eligibility for those benefits.

The Unions acknowledge that they understand these benefits may not equate to benefits

previously available to employees and retirees through the various optional medical plans and

the prescription drug plan. Because coverage will be provided through PERS, the District and

the Unions understand that PERS may terminate or change covered expenses, benefit

payments and co-payments on covered benefits, deductibles, lifetime and/or annual

maximums and may implement various cost control features.

Except for Survivors Benefits, as provided for in Section 5.8, the Unions waive the right to any

group medical or prescription drug benefit granted expressly or impliedly under other sections

of this Agreement, or by any other agreement between the parties or by any District guideline,

policy or practice if that benefit is not offered through the PERS medical plan.

B. Employee and Retiree Contributions for Health lnsurance

Page 1of 11 a4/07 /2016



Atl employees eligible for PERS medical benefits who enroll for such benefits shall be

responsible for a premium contribution in the amount of twenty-five dollars (525.00) per

month, except as provided below.

1.. The employee's twenty-five dollar (SZS.OO1 monthly employee contribution toward the

medical insurance premium shall increase by fifty dollars (S5o) on January L' 2006' Each

January L thereafter, the monthly employee contribution shall increase by an escalator

amount of three percent (3%1. For example, the total monthly employee contribution

on January L,2OO7 will be seventy-seven dollars and twenty-five cents per month. (The

calculation that arrives at this number is as follows: S25 + S50 = $75 x 1.03 = 577.25.)

The employee contribution amounts provided below shall be in addition to any costs for

coverage in excess of the amounts specified in paragraph C below.

DATE

01 Jan. - 06

01 Jan. - 07

01 lan. - 08

C1 Jan, - C9

01 Jan. - 10

01 Jan. - 1L

01 Jan. - 12

01 Jan. - L3

01 Jan. - 14

01 Jan. - 15

01 Jan. - L6

0L Jan. - 17

01 Jan. - 18

01 Jan. - 19

01 Jan. - 20

Maximum Emplovee Monthlv Contribution

S7s.oo

577.2s

579.s7

581.ss

s84.41

s86.es

5gg.ss

5gz-zq

Sgs.or

Sgz.so

Sroo.zg

s103.82

s106.93

$rro.r+

5113.44

52 Page 2 of 11 04107 /2016



01 Jan. - 21

0I Jan. - 22

01 Jan. - 23

01 Jan. - 24

01 Jan. - 25

OL Jan. - 26

Ol Jan. - 27

01 Jan. - 28

01 Jan. - 29

01. Jan. - 30

01 Jan. - 31

01 Jan. - 32

01 ian. - 33

01. Jan. - 34

S116.8s

S 120.3s

5123.96

5127.68

5131.s 1

S 13s.46

s139. s2

S 143.02

S148.02

itsz.46

S 157.03

5t61.74

s166.60

5171.s9

2. During the term of this Agreement, the employees' premium contribution shall be

increased by thirty seven dollars (S37) per month as follows: 2014 - 5132.01;2015 -

Srla.ao; 7076 - 5137.79; 2077 - 51.40.82i 2018 - sL43.93t 2079 - 5147.74:2o2o '
5150.44; and 2021 - S153.85. For active employees the additional thirty-seven dollars

(S3z) per month shall be deducted from the one and six hundred and twenty seven one

thousandth percent (7.627%J money purchase pension plan contribution.

Each eligible retiree shall pay the same premium contribution as active employees.

Employees' premium contributions will be paid for through tax-exempt payroll

deductions. Retiree premium contributions will be deducted from the retirement

allowance paid by PERS. lf a retiree's retirement allowance is not sufficient to pay the

entire contribution, the retiree must pay the balance due on such premium contribution

directly to PERS. lf such payment is not received by the due date, health care coverage

will automatically, immediately and permanently cease. These rules are intended to

comply with the premium contribution procedures established by PERS, which may be

3.

Page 3 or 11 04107 /207652



modified by PER5. The District, Unions and employees shall comply with the PERS

procedures in effect from time to time.

C. Maximum District Contributions for Health lnsurance

Beginning on January 1, 2010, the District shall contribute an amount up to the applicable level

of plan participation (i.e. one party, two party, or family) and the same Medicare status as

elected by the eligible employee or retiree equal to the Bay Area Basic Premium Rates for the

PERS HMO Blue Shield Access + or PERS HMO Kaiser Plan, whichever is greater, less the

employee and retiree contributions provided for in 5.28 above. This District contribution shall

be the District's maximum payment toward employee health insurance premiums. Employees

and retirees electing coverage with a cost greater than the District's maximum contribution

shall have the difference deducted automatically from the unit member's pay or as set forth in

5.2 B 2. above, in addition to amounts to be deducted in accordance with subsection B above.

D, Retiree lnsurance Funding

1. Beginning )uly l, 2007 , the District shall contribute into its Retiree Health Benefit Trust

("RHBT") amounts that, at minimum, reflect an eieht (8) year "ramp up" to District

payment of the full Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") compliant

Annua! Required Contribution ("ARC") beginning July 1, 2013 using an open Broup
valuation method with a closed 30 year amortization schedule for unfunded liability

ending iune 30, 2034. Except as provided in paragraph 3 below, each pay period the

District shall contribute to the RHBT an amount equal to the below-listed percentages of

straight time bargaining unit base pay paid to bargaining unit members in that pay

period into the RHBT. (For example, if base pay in the pay period in FY 07 is one million

dollars [S1,000,000], the Distrlct will contribute S34,900 into the RHBT for that pay

period).

Date Percentage

July 1, 2007 (FY 08)

July 1, 2008 (FY 09)

.July 1, 2009 (FY 10)

July 1, 2010 (FY 11)

3.49%

3.64%

3.79%

3.94%

Page 4 ot 11 041071201652



July 1, 2011 (FY 12)

July 1, 2012 (FY 13)

4.L0%

4.21%

4.

2 ln addition, on or before June 30, 2009 the District shall, at minimum, contribute into

the RHBT an amount equal to three and twenty-two one-hundredths percent (3.22%) of

straight time bargaining unit base pay paid in FY 05 and three and thirty-six one-

hundredths percent (3.36%) of straight time bargaining unit base pay paid in FY 07.

These figures represent the "ramp up" percentages for those fiscal years.

3. The District shall perform an actuarial study of the retiree medical insurance plan

liabilities and funding needs (including the Annual Required Contribution - "ARC") after
the end of each fiscal year. For each fiscal year beginning with FY 2007, the actuaries

shall adjust the above ramp up percentages for the fiscal year for which the study was

prepared and for each remaining fiscal year in the ramp up period. The last such

adjustment will be in the study performed prior to July 1-,2073 tor FY 2013. The revised
percentages shall be the percentages contributed by the District to the RHBT for those
years/ except that the District shall pay no less than the percentages specified in

subsections l and 2 above.

Beginning July 1, 2013, the District shall, at minimum, contribute to the RHBT each pay

period an amount equal to the full GASB compliant Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

percentage of straight time base pay paid to bargaining unit members during that pay

period using an open group valuation method with a closed thirty (30) year amortization

schedule for unfunded liability ending June 30, 2034. (For example, if the base pay

during the pay period is one million dollars [S1,000,000] and the ARC percentage is

fourteen percent [14%], the District will contribute one hundred forty thousand dollars

[S140,000] to the RHBT for that pay period.)

During the term of this Agreement, the District shall retain .0888% of the one and six

hundred twenty-seven one-thousandths percent (7.627%l of the Money Purchase Plan

contribution in addition to the 537lmonth to be used as specified in Paragraph 82,

above.

Effective July 1, 2013, the District shall retain the remainder of the 1.627% MPPP

contribution, to the extent necessary to compensate the District for paying the

difference between the actual ARC and the baseline ARC described below. The District
shall retain this amount through June 30,2034. ln any year in which the actual ARC

does not exceed the baseline ARC by an amount equal to the amount of the retained
7.627% MP?P contribution, the District shall pay the appropriate portion of the 1.627%
into the employees' MPPP accounts, but only to the extent that the difference between

5.

5

52 Page 5 of 11 04107 /2016



the actualARC and the baseline ARC is less than the dollar value of the retained MPPP

1.627%.

EXAMPLE: Assume that the actual ARC is fifteen percent (15%) in the particular year,
the baseline ARC is fourteen percent (L40/o) in the particular year, and that the
difference between the two is one million dollars (S1,000,000). Assume further that the
value of the retained L.627% is one million five hundred thousand dollars (51,500,000).

The District would then pay a total of five hundred thousand dollars (Ssoo,oool into the
employees' collective MPPP accounts. These payments would be prorated in the same
manner as would result from full payment of the 7.627% into the employee accounts.

The baseline ARC is as follows:

FY Year Beginning

07/L/13

07 /7/L4

0717/1s

07/71L6

07 /7/17

07 /U$

07/tlLe

07/L/20

07/Uzt

07/t|22

07 /1123

07/1./24

07 /1,12s

07/1./26

Baseline ARC

1,1.88%

LL.94%

L2.00%

L2.06%

12,72%

12j8%

L2.24%

L2.30%

72.36%

72.42%

12.48o/o

12.54%

!2.60%

12.56%

5.2 Page 5 of 11 04/o7 /2076



07 /1./27

07 /1./28

07l1/2sl

07 /7/30

oT lL/3t

07 /1/32

oT lL/33

72.72%

L2.78%

12.84%

12.90%

t2.96%

13.02o/o

L3.08%

F.

7. Effective July 1, 2013 the District shall direct the Trustee of the RHBT to pay retiree
health insurance premiums from the RHBT. No premiums will be paid from the RHBT

prior to ..luly 1., 2013.

ln Lieu of Medical Payments

During any open enrollment period after July 1, 2009, an eligible employee who has medical

coverage under a spousal or other alternate plan may elect, in accordance with procedures

established by the District to opt out of the group medical and prescription drug benefits
covered under Section 5.2(A) ("5.2A Coverage").

The District shall make a monthly payment of three hundred and fifty dollars (S350.0O) "in
lieu of medical" to each eligible employee who opts out of 5.2A coverage.

Tax treatment of these payments will be subject to applicable lnternal Revenue Code
("lRC") and lnternal Revenue Service ("lRS") rules. The payments will be made in a manner
that will not impact the income tax status of medical premiums under IRC requirements and

to allow an employee to receive the amounts as cash monthly payments.

An eligible employee who opts out of 5.2(A) coverage may subsequently enroll in such
coverage as permitted under the terms of the plan(s) described in Section 5.2(A).

Trust Review Committee

1. The District's five (5) unions shall each appoint one (1) member to serve on a trust
review committee ("TRC"). The District Labor Relations Manager and Human Resources

Manager shall serve on the TRC for the District. The TRC shall meet quarterly.

Page 7 of 11 04/07 /2a16



Employee members of the TRC will be released from regularly scheduled dutY with pay

for quarterlY TRC meetings.

2.TheDistrictwilldirecttheTrUsteeoftheTrusttoprovidetheUnionswithquarterly
reportsofallRHBToperations,includingauditedandunauditedfinancialstatements
and investment performance reports, and other consultant reports in advance of the

quarterly TRC meeting. (The parties acknowledge that audited financial statements are

performed onlY once Per Year')

3. The Trustee will attend the TRC meeting to answer questions concerning the

informationprovidedtotheTRC.However,theTRCshallinnowayattempttoassist'
direct, or otherwise involve itself in matters concerning the investment of Trust assets

However, the TRC may advise the Trustee on other Trust matters to the extent such

advisory activity does not affect the legal status of the Trust lt shall be within the sole

discretion of the Trustee whether to follow or not follow such advice

4. The TRC members shall be released from regularly scheduled duty with pay to attend

meetings of the Human Resources Manager and Labor Relations Manager with the

District'sactuariesandotherprofessionalstodiscussassumptionstobeincludedin
annualGASBvaluationstudies,thepreliminaryandfinalresultsofsuchstudies,etc.
Such studies shall include ARC projections through at least 2035 The District will

provide the unions with a copy of the final version of such study on or before February 1

each year or as soon thereafter as is practicable'

G. Retiree Health Benefits Trust

withtn one hundred twenty (120) days after the signing of this agreement by the parties

hereto, the District shall amend the Trust Agreement to provide that:

L. Trust assets shall be held for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing health benefits

to eligible BART retirees and to defray the reasonable expenses of administering the

RHBT.

2. The only District benefit plans for which payments may be made from the RHBT shall be

thoseretireehealthbenefitplansofferedtoeligibleDistrictretireesasaresultofits
collective bargaining agreements, or District policy which extends such plans to non-

represented employees. ln addition, for District personnel on a District plan that-is-no

longer generally offered to District employees, payments may be made from the RHBT'

However, the Dlstrict shall ensure sufficient separate funding and the Trustee shall

separately account for benefits paid for such personnel

PaBe 8 of 11
04/a1/2016

5.2



3. The District may terminate the RHBT, subject to its duty to bargain in good faith to
agreement or impasse over such termination with the union. lf the District gives the

Unions notice of the termination of the RHBT, the Trust shall not terminate until the

assets then remaining are exhausted. Such assets shall be used only as provided in

pa ragraph l above.

The District reserves the right to terminate or change any part or all of the health benefits

program at any time with respect to active or retired employees, however, any such action

will be taken only after the District has satisfied its obligations under applicable Collective

Bargaining Agreements. The District's contractual obligation to provide health benefits

coverage to retired employees shall terminate upon the expiration of this Agreement. By

providing benefits to retirees, the parties do not intend to vest retirees with such benefits.

Retiree Medical lnsurance Eligibility

The parties agree that with respect to District employees first hired after January L, 2014,

the District shall make no contribution for postretirement health benefits on behalf of such

individuals with less than ten years of credited service with the District, and that the full
District contribution for postretirement health benefits shall be made only on behalf of
individuals who have completed a minimum of fifteen (15) years of credited service with
the District. Eligibility for this benefit is, in addirion to the specified criteria, subject to
current provision which require that the employee retire from CaIPERS within one hundred

and twenty (120) days of separation from the District.

The parties agree that:

This provision applies to unrepresented employees, members of the Board of Directors

to the extent they are eligible under existing law, and members of any unit of
employees whose terms and conditions of employment are determined through
collective bargaining and who agree that it should apply to its members.

Contributions shall be subject to:

a. Credited years of District service

b. An Agreement with all represented employees mutually agreed upon through
collective bargaining;

3. The District contribution shall be a percentage of the employer contribution for
applicable credited years of service as follows:

10 years - 50%; 77 y ear s - 60%o; 12 year s - 7 O%; 13 yea rs - 80%;

1.

2.

Page 9 of 11 04/01/201,6



14 years - 90% and 15 years 100%.

The full contribution level shall be available for postretirement health benefits for those

employees who are approved for and exercise a disability retirement with at least five

years of credited service with the District.

This section shall only apply to District employees or Board members who are first hired

by the District or newly elected to the Board and first serve on or after Janua(Y 1,20L4.

Any agreement to adopt these provisions by any collective bargaining unit shall apply

only if the agreement is expressly incorporated into or made a part of a memorandum

of u nderstanding.

7. This provision shall not apply to any employee who retires before the effective date of

the memorandum of understanding referenced above. ln the event that the

memorandum of understanding establishes a retroactive effective dates, this section

willgovern, limiting its applicability only to prospective retirements.

8. The District shall provide, in the manner prescribed by CaIPERS, a notification of each

agreement established pursuant to this section and any additional information

necessary to implement it.

The Parties recognize that implementation of this agreement requires statutory changes to the

Californla Government Code and agree to jointly seek a sponsor for and support the passage

and signing into law of the provisions as set forth herein. lf the law is not successfully passed,

then the Parties agree to mutually agree on alternative provisions.

* MINUTE CLARIFICATION

Members who would like to realize the benefit of the in lieu payment as a pre-tax contribution

to their deferred compensation accounts can accomplish this result by increasing their deferral

amount for the deferred compensation plan by the amount of the in lieu payment, subiect to

lnternal Revenue Code limitations on maximum annual contributions.

* MINUTE CLARIFICATION

The parties mutually understand that the only obligation to continue the health benefits of

active employees after the expiration of the Agreement is that which may arise from the

general legal duty to bargain in good faith.

*see letter of Understandins Dated 10/23113 and side Letter 10-1

52

4.

5.

6.

Page 10 o{ 11 a4/07 /2016



FOR THE DISTRICT

General Manager

FOR SE!U

Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

Chief Labor Relations Officer

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

5.2 Page 11 of 11 04/07 /2016

TO FORM:



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LocAL 1555 and SEIU/LOCAL 102l GENERAL NEGOTIATIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SElU"), and

ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final

agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree

that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by

SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 6.0 as follows:

6.0 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

ln the event that during the term ef the Agreement represented empl€ye€s at onRT are subje€t
te I'EPRA; the Parties shall bargain ever PEPRA's effeets and implemertatien,

The Parties asree that no later than thirtv (30) davs followins a final rulins in Sfote of Colifornio

v DOt, the Parties shall commence bargaining resarding the provisions of sections 5.1 and 5.2

of the SEIU/ATU Labor Agreement and anv other applicable contract provision related to
pension contributions.

After Januarv 1, 2018 and upon request of anv partv, the parties agree to bifurcate the issues

reflected in oending oension-related grievances and endeavor to reach agreement related to
emplovee oension contributions.

The Parties agree that anv resolution shall be cost neutral to all parties. The negotiations shall

not result in an increase in the emplover paid member contribution as described in section 6.2.

Anv asreement described above shall immediatelv toll the District's prospective liabilitv with
respect to the dispute over employee contributions reflected in the grievances. All barsaining

shall be conducted based upon the District's obligations under State and Federal law.

ln the event that the Parties are unable to reach apreement within six (6) months of the

commencement of bargaining. unresolved issues shall be put to interest arbitration for a final

and bindins decision.

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to modifv or compromise the position of anv partv to
this Agreement in relation to the pending litisation referenced above.

6.0 Page 1 of 2 o4/o? /2076



FOR THE DISTRICT

,/7 /.1
U hl-rr- C-4^t,4rz-"-

"r*a6r"r""-General Manager

TOR SEIU

FOR ATU

CrW* t+
Ch ris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

,/'' ..; ,/
1 ^-^-.-'/' -"t.--

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Off icer

Presidbnt, BART Chapter

President, BART Professional Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

6.0 Page 2 oI2 04/o7/20L6



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAL 1555 and SEtU/LOCAI 1021 GENERAL NEGOTIATTONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - COST OF LIVING/WAGE ADJUSTMENT

April7,2016

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1O2f ("SE|U"), and
ATU/Local 1555 ("ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree
that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by
SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 8.2 as follows:

8.2 COST OF LIVING / WAGE ADJUSTMENT

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be covered by the provisions for a cost of living
increase as set forth in this Section.

The wage rates as contained in this Agreement shall not be reduced by application of this Cost
of Living Provision. ln addition to the wage rates contained in this Agreement, all employees
shall be paid cost of living adjustments to be determined on the basis of the ,,Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers" Consumer Price lndex (United States Average, revised base 1967
= 100), published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States Department of Labor, in the
manner described in this Section (hereafter referred to as the "lndex").

A. Effective on June 30, 20L7 and on June 30, 2021, a Cost of Living Adjustment shall be
granted to the wages/salaries of all employees subject to this Agreement equal to one-cent
(1C) per hour for each full point four (.4) of a point change in the Consumer price lndex as
measured on the basis of movement of the lndex published for the month of May,2Ol7 for
the June 30, 2017, adiustment and Mav 2021 for the June 30, 2021, adiustment, over the
lndex published for the month of February, 2017 and Februarv, 2021 respectivelv.

B. All Cost of Living Adjustments specified in paragraph A of this Section for salaried
employees shall be at the monthly equivalent of the hourly adjustment (the cost of living
cent adjustment times two thousand eighty hours [2,080] hours divided by twelve [12]
months = monthly equivalent of the hourly adjustment.)

C. The resulting Cost of Living Allowance shall be used in the computation of pensions, straight
time and overtime pay exactly as though the wage rates had been changed by the
allowance. However, the allowance shall not be added to the base wage rates.

Page 1 of2 04/07 /20!68.2



D. The District, during the negotiations for a succeeding term after June 30,-2e47_lQ2! shall

not assert that the Cost of Living Allowance increase effective on June 30,-le+7-lQ2! is

included as part of any increased wage offer made by the District for the succeeding
contract.

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer President, BART Professional Chapter

FOR ATU

iident, BART Chapter

A|PROVED AS TO FORM:

OfficAof the'General Co

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

(n V-,-t n V
Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1555

Page 2 ol2 04/o7 /2016



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ATU/LOCAI 1555 and SElU/LOCAL I02l GENERAL NEGOTIATIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - SICK LEAVE

April7,20t6

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SE|U"), and

ATU/Local 1555 ('ATU") have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final

agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree

that final approval of the tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by

SEIU membership, ATU membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 9.1 as follows:

9.1 SICK TEAVE

A. Accrual: Covered employees shall accrue one (1)day of sick leave for each full
month of employment. Sick leave credits may be accumulated to a total of two
hundred fifty (250) working days.

B. lncentives For Sick Leave Accrued And Unused On Or After October 19, 2009

To encourage employees to maintain maximum attendance and to improve
performance, the District offers employees the following two (2) incentives beginning
October 19, 2009:

1. PERS Retirement Service Credit For Sick Leave: The District will amend its
contract with CaIPERS to provide the California Government Code Section
20965 option for service credit for unused sick leave for eligible CaIPERS
members in the bargaining unit, with an effective date of October 19, 2009. The
Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) and CaIPERS rules will govern the
eligibility of unused sick leave earned on or after October 19, 2009 for service
credit. Those rules presently grant 0.004 years of service credit for each certified
unused day of sick leave accrued by the member during the normal course of
his/her employment. For employees whose effective date of retirement is within
four months of separation from employment with the District, the District shall
certify to CaIPERS all such unused days of sick leave that were accrued by the
employee on or after October 19, 2009. For purposes of Government Code
Section 20965, leave accrued prior to October '19, 2009 shall not be considered
"unused" sick leave and the District will not certify such sick leave to CaIPERS,
unless the employee has made the one-time election to convert such pre-
October 19, 2009 sick leave to PERS credit eligible sick leave pursuant to
Paragraph C below.

PaBe 1 of 7 04/07/2076



2. Annual Buy-Back Or MPPP lncentive: The District shall give employees the
option each year to make an irrevocable election on the schedule indicated
below to buy-back or to deposit into their Money Purchase Pension Plan (MPPP)
accounts, the dollar value of the sick leave earned within the annual accrual
period indicated in paragraph B(2)(a) below, less sick leave taken during that
same period, on an after tax basis.

a. Sick Leave Accrual/Election Periods: The maximum sick leave which may
be earned for each accrual period is ninety-six (96) hours for employees on a
5-8 or 9/80 Work Plan and one hundred twenty ("120) hours for employees on
a 4-10 Work Plan. Sick leave for which such an election has been made shall
not be included by the District in the certilication to CaIPERS under the
retirement service credit plan described above.

Election Period

9t2t13 - 9t16t13

911114 - 9t15t14

9t7115 - 9t21t',ts

9t5t16 - 9t19t16

9t4t17 - 9t18t17

9t3t18 - 9t17t18

912t19 - 9t16119

9t7t20 - 9t21t20

Accrual Period

9130t13- 9128114

9t29t14 - 9t27 t15

9t28t15 - 9125t16

9t26t16 - 9t24t17

9t25t17- 9t23t18

9124t18 - 9122119

9t23t19 - 9t20t20

9121120 - 9119t21

b. Buy-BacUMPPP Deposit Amounts: An election to "buy-back" or to deposit
into the MPPP must also include an election as to the percentage amount of
the 'buy-back", based on the percentage increments and maximums provided
below. The maximum Buy-Back percentage that will be allowed is based on
the employee's attendance record during the accrual period.

Eligible Percentage of Unused Earned Sick

Days Leave

0 5% up to 50ok (in 5o/o increments)

1-3 5% up to 40oh (in 5% increments)

Buy-Back and MPPP amounts shall be calculated at the employee's base
rate of pay at the end of the accrual period, less applicable tax withholding.

c. lmpact Of Buy-Back/MPPP Election: Employees may select only one
option (Buy-Back or MPPP) for each accrual period.

91 Page 2 af 1 04/07 /2016



c.

Once the buy,back or MPPP lncentive election is made for any accrual period
it may not be changed. Employees will receive the buy-back checks or Mppp
credit no later than December 1 following the end of the accrual period.

Unused sick leave hours for which an election to buy-back or transfer into the
MPPP is not made shall be carried over to the next year, subject to maximum
accumulation limits, and will no longer be available for any future Annual Buy-
Back/MPPP incentive election.

One Time Election To Convert Sick Leave Accrued Prior To October 19,2OO9
To PERS Greditable Sick Leave

During the month of October 2009, employees will be given a one{ime opportunity
to convert unused sick leave that has been accrued prior to October 19, 2009 to
pers-credit-eligible sick leave (described in paragraph B(1) above). This election
shall be irrevocable, and will include all of the employee's unused sick leave,
including banked sick leave pursuant to D(1), and/or unbanked sick leave pursuant
to D(3) below. lf an employee makes this election, such accrued leave will no longer
be eligible for pay-out at termination/retirement (previously banked leave) or at
retirement (unbanked leave). All leave converted pursuant to this paragraph C will
be subject to calPERS rules for service credit eligibility. Leave converted under this
paragraph will thereafter be considered, for purposes of disposition at the end of
employment only, to have been accrued on or after October 19, 2009.

Sick Leave Accrued Prior To October 19, 2009

Sick leave accrued prior to October 19, 2009, which is not converted to pers
creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph c above, shall be preserved in accounts
separate from sick leave accrued on or after October 19, 2009, and shall be used
pursuant to the terms of this paragraph D, including subsections (1) - (3)

1 . Banked Sick Leave (Under Previously Exercised Option)

This section refers to sick leave which has been'banked'in accordance with
Labor Agreement Section 9.18(2) as it was in effect on June 30, 2009, or
banked pursuant to Agreements previously in effect. lt excludes sick leave
electively converted to PERs-creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph C
above. lt includes sick leave for which a banking election was made during
the 2008 or earlier option periods.

Banked sick leave, as defined above, will be preserved in a separate account
for use by the employee in accordance with the provisions of former Section
9.1 B(2), including the following:

a. Such bank shall be set aside for payment upon
death/retiremenUtermination and shall not be included in the calculation of
unused sick leave pursuant to paragraph B('1) above or Government Code
Section 20965.

D.

9.1 Page 3 of 7 04lot /2016



b. Sick leave hours banked will be paid at the employee's base rate of pay,
effective on the employee's date of death or retiremenutermination from
District's employment.

c, Employees who experience an illness/injury and exhaust their existing sick
leave that is available, may utilize sick leave that has been banked under
prior Section 9.18(2) provided they make a written request to do so
through their Department Manager at the time of the illness/injury and the
circumstances qualify for sick leave under section F ("sick leave payment")

below.

2. Sick Leave Buy-Back (Under Previously Exercised Option)

Employees who exercised the option during the september 2008 option period

specified in Labor Agreement Section 9.18(2) in effect on June 30, 2009 to
make an irrevocable election to buy-back or deposit into the MPPP the value of

sick leave earned during the annual accrual period, less sick leave taken during

the annual accrual period shall receive the buy-back payments and the MPPP

deposits required by the prior Labor Agreement.

Buy back checks for the 2009 accrual period under former Labor Agreement

Settion 9.t B will be distributed to employees no later than December 1 following

the end of the accrual period, and MPPP elections for that period will be

deposited by that same date.

3. Retirement Buy-Back

Sick leave accrued prior to October 19, 2009, and not (1) banked pursuant to

paragraph 1 above; (2) bought back or deposited in the MPPP pursuant to
para6raph 2 above; (3) converted to PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to
par.6rubf, C above; oi (a1 useO pursuant to E and F below, shall be available for

use is a Retirement Buy Back incentive. Employees leaving District service on a

service retirement shali be paid fifty percent (50o/o) of this accrued sick leave

balance upon the effective date of service retirement. This accrued sick leave

shall not be included in the calculation of unused sick leave pursuant to
paragraph B above or Government Code Section 20965.

E. Order Of Use Of Sick Leave From Separate Accounts

when using sick leave with pay pursuant to section F below, employees'sick leave

balances will be deducted in the following order:

1. Sick leave accrued on or after October 19, 2009, if any, including any sick leave

accrued before october 19, 2009 which an employee has elected to convert to
PERS creditable sick leave pursuant to paragraph C above, if any.

2. lf the accruals described in paragraph E('1) are exhausted, unbanked sick leave

accrued prior to October 19, 2009, if any.

91 Page 4 of 7 a4lo'1i2016



3. lf the accruals described in paragraphs E(1) and E(2) above are exhausted,
banked sick leave, if any, may be used subject to the terms of paragraph D(1)(c)
above.

F. Sick Leave Payment:

FMLAJCFRA

An Employee on FMLAJCFRA qualifying leave may elect to use any accumulated leave
as may be permitted by Federal and State law and regulations (i,e. sick leave, vacation,
floating holidays or compensatory leave) or elect to take the leave unpaid in any order
and at the employee's discretion. Employees who would otherwise qualify for short
term disability while on FMLA/CFRA leave will not qualify for that disability until all of the
employee's sick leave is exhausted.

Employees shall receive sick leave with pay up to the amount of sick leave accrued at
the time of illness, provided the requirements of this section are met. Employees shall
accrue sick leave credits during the probationary period, however, they shall not be
eligible for sick leave pay until after completion of the probation period.

An employee who is absent from work for reasons that qualify for use of sick leave
under Section 9.1 who has no accumulated sick leave to cover such absence must use
accumulated vacation, personal holiday, and compensatory time off before unpaid leave
may be granted. Even though such charges are made, the employee's absence
remains subject to the contract provisions governing the use of sick leave. The
employee must advise the employee's appropriate absence report recipient, as
designated by the District, of the category of paid leave that shall be charged for such
absence. lf the employee does not do so, the absence shall be charged by default
against the employee's accumulated vacation, holiday and compensatory time off in that
order. Sick leave preserved under section 9.1.F last paragraph (below) will not be
available for such charges. Holidays may not be charged if such charge would reduce
the number of holidays in the employee's account below the number of designated
contractual holidays remaining in the fiscal year.

Employees shall be eligible for paid sick leave as follows: without limitation on their
rights under state and federal law.

'1. lllness, including the appropriate use of required prescribed medication which would
impair the employee's work performance, injury, quarantine, or similar exposure to
contagious disease;

2. Verifiable medical and/or dental appointments which cannot be scheduled outside
the normal working hours, provided that a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours advance
notice is given and provided subsequent confirmation that the appointment was kept
is given if requested by Management.

3. Doctor's visits associated with pregnancy, subject to the provisions in "2," above;

4. Hospitalization or serious illness/accid ent and resulting subsequent related

PaBe 5 of 7 04/07 /201,691



scheduled doctor's visits, subject to the provisions in "2 " above;

5. Required attendance upon a seriously ill spouse, eligible domestic panner, or child-

The District may requiie a written stitement from the attending physician that the

employee's attendance was required.

6. Required transportation to doctor for employee's spouse, eligible domestic partner,

or.nito it spouse, eligible domestic partner, or child has serious accident or serious

illness (subsequent rierifled and scheduled doctor's visits resulting from initial visit

are also included).

7. lndustrial injury and resulting subsequent related scheduled doctor's visits.

sick leave with pay shall apply to each separate sick leave incident. For purposes of

this section, "siik leave witfr [ay" means pay calculated at the straight time day shift

rate for the number of hours ihe employee was regularly scheduled to work each day,

had the illness or injury not occurred.

lf an employee's absence which qualifies for paid sick leave also qualifies as statutory

family and medical leave (i.e. FMLA/CFM), the employee may e]e9llo ?re-se.1e
eligibility for participation in the annual buy-back or transfer into the MPPP of eligible

aciruali, if elected during the election period, by requesting to substitute vacation,

floating holidays (for increments of a full day only), or compensatory leave pay' if

apptici5le, or,'if he/she has no accrued vacation, floating holidays or compensatory

leave, requesting to take the leave unpaid- The request must be made before receipt of

sick pay.

G. Sick Leave Verification: The District may take reasonable means to verify the

employee's eligibility for sick leave. upon prior written notice, an employee, at his or

her expense may be required to provide a doctois statement which demonstrates to

the satisfaction of the District, eligibility for sick leave as defined above, for any sick

leave incident.

Employees shall furnish a doctor's statement for each sick leave incident involving

absences of more than three (3) working days.

ln instances where the District requires a doctor's statement, either to verify sick

leave or determine an employee's fitness to return to work, that statement must

include the following:

1 . date and time of treatment;

2. duration of illness;

3. date cleared to return to work.

otherwise, an employee returning to work from a sick leave incident must submit a

required doctor's statement and other documentation within seven (7) calendar days

of his/ her return to work- Failure to submit required documentation within the time
provided shall result in denial of sick leave pay, and may result in disciplinary action.

Page 6 of 7 a4/01/201591



The District may require any employee to submit to a medical examination by a

doctor designated by the District, at the District's expense, as a condition of return to
work from a sick leave incident or to verify the continuing need for sick leave.

Pattern use, misuse or abuse of sick leave will be governed by the District's
disciplinary procedures and handled on a case-by-case basis.

H. Sick Leave Reporting: lt is the responsibility of every employee absent from work
because of illness or injury to repoft such absences to his/her immediate supervisor
or the supervisor's designated representative. This report must include information
as to the expected date of return to work and where the employee can be reached
during his/her normal work hours. The employee will promptly notify his/her
supervisor or supervisor's designee of any change which affects his/her ability to
return to work.

FOR SEIU

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer

FOR ATU

11/l r6*fivr4
Chris Finn

President/Business Agent, ATU Local 1.555

FOR THE DISTRICT

G nican
Pr6sident, BART Chapter

President, BART Professional Chapter

by Victoria R. Nuetzel

9.1 ?age 7 of 7 04/07 /2076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

SEIU LOCAL 1021 NEGOTIATIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - BASE WAGE SCHEDUTE

April7,2076

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART") and SEIU/Local 1021 ("SEIU")have

negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on this provision of the Collective Bargaining

Agreement ("CBA"). No tentative agreement shall be a final agreement except as a part of a

total package agreement between the parties. All parties agree that final approval of the
tentative collective bargaining agreement is subject to ratification by SEIU membership, ATU

membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The parties agree to revise Section 28.4 as follows:

28.4 BASE WAGE SCHEDUTE

A. The base wage schedule will be implemented and administered as follows:

1 Employees will suffer no loss of pay as a result of the pay progression.

2 Entry and training rates are eliminated.

3 The pay progression ol 76.5%, 79.5%, 85%, 9O%, and 100% (top rate) apply to all base
rates of pay. All percentages are based on the top rate. Movement within the pay steps
are based on one year intervals, on the date of h ire/anniversary date. The pay
progression will apply only one time to each such employee.

4 New employees that are hired will be placed at the first year pay progression rate
(76.5%) of their classification pursuant to Section 28.4 Base Wage Schedule. New
employees will progress through each successive step based on their date of
hire/ann iversary date with the District.

Page 1 of 6 04/0712016



B. Fiscal Year 2014

Effective July 5, 2013 the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall be
increased by one and eighty-six zero seven one hundreds percent (1.8607%) over the prior
baserateofpay. The prior base rate of pay includes the one percent (1%) conditional wage
increase, provided for in the 2009-2013 Agreement, effective July 1, 2013 and the Section
8.2 COLA wage schedule provided for in the 2OO9-20t3 Agreement effective July 1, 2013.
Effective January 1, 2014 the base salary/wage schedule shall be increased by an additional
one and eighty six zero seven one hundreds percent (1.8607%).

C. Fiscal Years 2015,2015

Effective January 1, 2015 and January 1, 2016 the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining
unit members shall be increased by three seventy two fourteen one hundreds percent
(3.72!40/ol.

D. Fiscal Year 2017

Effective January 7, 2077 the base salary/wage schedule for bargaining unit members shall
be increased by four and twenty two fourteen one hundreds percent (4.22|4o/ol.

E. Fiscal Years 2018,2019

All wage increases specified herein are inclusive of the amounts designated in Section 6.2 paid
in exchange for the agreement to pay a portion of the employee's pension contribution.

E.G. Conditional Lump Sum payments

lf all criteria set forth herein are met and no extraordinary unplanned expenses as set forth
herein have occurred then during each fiscal year ofthe term of this Agreement, the District
shall pay each bargaining unit member on active and paid status at the time ofthe payment
a lump sum payment which shall be calculated as set forth below but which shall not exceed
one thousand dollars ($1,000) in any fiscal year. These calculations shall be made at the
conclusion ofeach fiscal yearandwill be based on the data available on that date. payment
shall be made within sixty (60) days ofthe date ofthe calculation.

1. Criteria for Lump Sum Payment:

Each one (1) percent increase in actual core system annual average weekday
ridership growth over the Districts' Short Range Transit plan (SRTp) projected growth

Effective Julv 01, 2017 and Julv 01. 2018 the base salarv/wase schedule for bareainine unit
membefs shall be increased bv two and one half oercent (2.50%).

F. Fiscal Years 2020, 2021

Effective Julv 01. 2019 and Julv 01. 2020 the base salarv/wase schedule for barsainins unit
members shall be increased bv two and seventv-five hundreds percent (2.75%).

28.4 Page 2 of 6 04/07 i2016



as specified in the May 2013 SRTP for Fiscal Years 2013 - 2017 and the Adooted

SRTP Oct. 2014 for Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021, shall result in a lump sum payment of
five hundred dollar (5500) up to a maximum of one thousand dollars (51,000)

subject to the following limitations:

a. Specific lncreased Expenses

Determine whether the following specific District expenses have increased
greater tha n stated:

. District's Employer PERS miscellaneous pension contribution rates
increased by more than 16%;

o Health insurance premiums, as reported by CaIPERS and measured by the
simple average ofthe annual percent change in Blue Shield Access+ and
Kaiser premiums, required by Section 5.2B of this Agreement increased
by more than 10%.

lf either of the increases listed above are exceeded then no lump sum payment
will be made.

b. Extraordina ry, Unplanned Expenses

The District shall determine whether an extraordinary, unbudgeted, and
unanticipated expense exceeding 2.5% of the District's adopted operating
expense budget occurred. ln the event that such an extraordinary, unbudgeted
and unanticipated expense outside the control of the District has occurred the
District shall have no obligation to make a lump sum payment.

*Minute Clarification

The Parties understand that the Core System excludes various extension projects. Under the
terms of the operating agreements governing the San Francisco Airport Extension, the Oakland
Airport Connector and the VTA/BART Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension, BART fare revenue
generated by riders using those extensions is dedicated to those extension projects.

*The conditional lump sum payment provision above is based on the following ridership
projections. BART's Short Range Transit Plan ("SRTP") Financial Model: Ridership Estimates
projects the following ridership and related revenues:

2a.4 Page 3 of 6 04/07 /20t6



Core System FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FYIT

Average Weekday
Ridership Core System

% Growth over Prior Year

346,869 356,443
2.7 600/o

3s7,675
0.329o/o

365,498
2.2040/o

368,960
o.9470/o

Short Range Transit Plan

Average Weekday -

*The Parties understand that eligibility for the conditional lump sum is limited to those
"bargaining unit members on active and paid status," which includes employees on District
authorized leave and those on disability or workers compensation at the time of payment
provided that the leave commenced during the applicable fiscal year or between the end of
that fiscal year and the payment date. Employees who have retired or left District employment
on a permanent basis as ofthe end ofthe applicable fiscal year or who commenced
employment after the end of the applicable fiscal year shall not be eligible to receive the lump
su m.

*For FY14 only, the District shall determine employees' eligibility for conditional lump sum
payments based on the extent to which the actual average weekday core system ridership
exceeds the SRTP forecast in each half of the fiscal year, without regard to the other half of the
fiscal year. For example, for each one (L) percent that the actual growth exceeds projected
growth in the first half of the fiscal year, employees shall receive 5250, up to a maximum of
$500; and for each one (1) percent that the actual growth exceeds projected growth in the
second half of the fiscalyear, employees shall receive S2SO, up to a maximum of 5500. The first
half of FY 2014 is July 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the second half of FY 2014 is January 1,

2014 to June 30, 2074.

SRTP Adopted Oct. 2014

Average Weekdav -
Core Svstem FY18 FY19 FY2O FY2L

Average Weekdav
Rid ersh ip Core Svstem
% Growth over Prior Year

378.380
2.6%

207 00n!9..!-t!!!
2.5%

39s,940
2.O%

402.3L4
1..6%

Page 4 of 6 04/07 /201,624.4



EH. ETECTRONTC/EECTRO-MECHANTCAT ASSEMBLER

Separate Electron ic/Electro-Mechanical Assembler (EEMA) land Electronic/Electro-
Mechanical Assembler (EEMA) ll classifications shall be established. The distinction
between the two positions is the requirement for Surface Mount Technique (SMT)

certification. Employees in the EEM Assembler llclassification must be certified for SMT
prior to entry into this classification and must re-certify at the District's expense every two
(2) years. The pay for the EEM Assembler I classification is established at the MW-l rate.
The hourly rate of pay for the EEM Assembler ll classification shall be one dollar ($1) above
MW-|. ln the event that an employee in the EEM Assembler llclassification is unable to
meet the SMT re-certification requirement, they will be reassigned to the EEM Assembler I

classification and compensated at the applicable MW-l rate. Other than the rate of pay,

such reassignment shall have no other adverse effect on the employee. Any employee may
attempt to recertify during the normal District recertification cycle and may, upon
successful recertification, return to the Assembler ll classification.

All current Electro-Mechanical Assemblers shall, upon the effective date of this Agreement,
be classified as Electro-Mechanical Assembler ll. The District shall be responsible for
recertification of current personnel. Any current employee who is unable to re-certify shall
be reassigned to the EEM Assembler I classification and compensated at the applicable MW-
I rate of pay. Other than the rate of pay, such reassignment shall have no adverse effect on
the employee.

eL: uTlLlTY woRKER AND SYSTEM SERVTCE CTASSTFTCATTONS

Upon ratification of the agreement, Utility Worker (UW) and System Service (SSW)

classifications will be upgraded as follows:

a. Upon ratification of this agreement, and retroactive to July 1, 2013, the UW and SSW

base wage schedule will increase by twenty-five cents (25) per hour;

b. Beginn ing on July 7, 2014, the UW and SSW base wage sched u le will increase by an
additionaltwenty-five (25) cents per hour;

c. Beginning on July 1, 2015, the UW and SSW base wage schedule will increase by an
additional twenty-five (25) cents per hour; and

d. Beginning on July 1, 2016, the UW and SSW base wage schedule will increasebyan
additional twenty-five (25) cents per hour.

The compensation of the most senior thirty-two (32) System Service Worker shall continue at
the rate of MW1 System Service.

24.4 Page 5 of 6 04/0'1/2016



FOR THE DISTRICT FOR SEIU

G rb/e 0runican
GenerUl Manager

Carol lsen

Chief Labor Relations Officer President, BART Professional Chapter

by Victoria R. N uetzel

28.4 Page 6 of 6 04/07/2076



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors Date: May 6, 2016

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Administration Agenda Item #5-D: FY 17 Preliminary Budget Sources, Uses and

Service Plan

At the Board meeting on May 12,2016 staff will present the attached presentation covering the
FY17 Preliminary Budget, which is for information only.

Ifyou have any questions please contact Carter Mau at (510) 464-6194.



oun'*o'Y;%_RovA* GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REOD:

f\.
DATE: r ' -* drlry 1pr;. BOARO lNlTlATeO |TEM: )$
C)riginatorrPnepared by: ghristopher Gan
Depl: Assistant Controller

U,i 6a,w
SignaturerDats: - .fl*l t b

Controller/Treasurer

$Y{tl'fl'- 
u1'1tY f'fu,!,

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

Status: Routod Date Create d: M126f2016

Independent Auditor's Report on Audit of Federal Awards under the Single Audit Act and
OMB Circular A-133 for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

NARFATIVE:

PURPOSE

This Executive Decision Document is for information only, to advise the Board of Directors of the
results of the independent audit pedormed to comply with the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular
A-133 for the fiscal year 2015 and of actions staff plans to undertake to address the deficiencies
reported.

DISCUSSION

As a non-federal entity that expends $500,000 or more in federal awards in a year, the District is
required to obtain an annual audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act(31 USC Sections
7501, et SCq.) and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. A single audit is
intended to provide a cost effective audit since only one audit is conducted in lieu of multiple
audits of individual federal programs

The Single Audit Act requires a report on the following areas a) internal control over financial
reporting based on the audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government
Audit Standards and b) compliance with each major federal program and internal control over
compliance. Such audit is required in order to provide reasonable assurance that the awards
received are being managed in compliance with lawq regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements.

The results of the auditor's report dated December 30, 2015 on internal control over financial
reporting was unqualified and did not disclosed any instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The auditor's March 30, 2016 report with regards to compliance with each major federal
program and on internal control over compliance indicated a significant deficiency in the
implementation of the Labor Wage Requirements (also known as the DavisBacon Act - 40 USC
Section 3141, et seo.), which requires payment of prevailing wages to all laborers and
mechanics employed by a contractor or subcontractor who work on construction contracts in
excess of $2,000 financed by federal funds. Contractors or subcontractors are required to
submit to the District weekly, for each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of
the payroll and a statement of compliance (certified payroll records). ln the event of



non-compliance by a contractor, the District is required to initiate timely corrective actions tc
ensure compliance, such as sending timely followup requests to the contractor and withholding
payment untilthe certified payroll records are received. The audit finding noted that the District
failed to consistently verify timely receipt of ceftified payroll records since there were instances
when certified payroll records were received only by the District after payments have already
been made to the contractors. This is the same audit finding reported last fiscal year2014.

Since its release in March 2015, the District has implemented or will implement the following
measures to ensure compliance with the Davis Bacon Act

. Amended boilerplate contract specifications language to specify that failure to submit
certified payroll records may delay progress payments.

o lnserted Office of Civil Rights in the electronic invoice approval process to ensure that
certified payroll records are submitted prior to invoice approval

. Conducted over 10 training workshops for BART statf and contractors on DavisBacon
Act and California Labor Code prevailing wage requirements

o Notify prime and subcontractors when their ceftified payroll records are overdue
beginning July 1, 2016.

. Develop a new process by July 1,2016, to review certified payroll records to confirm that
contractors and subcontractors paid their laborers and mechanics prevailing wages on
all federally funded contracts.

o Hired a Labor Compliance Manager in Augus[ 2015. Additional resources will be added
in FY17 to implement the corrective steps and to monitor and enforce prevailing wages

FISCAL IMPACT

lf the deficiency related to Labor Wage Requirements is not fully addressed, unallowable costs
could result since federal funds may be paid to contractors who do not comply with the
provisions of the Davis.Bacon Act.

ACTION

No action by the Board is required. As a recipient of federal awards, the District is required by
the federal government to have its books and records audited annualty in accordance with the
Single Audit Act

lndependent Auditor's Report on Audit of Federal Awards under the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A -133 for the t



BNGINEERING
AND

OPERATIONS
MATERIAL



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

(Two-thirds Vote Required)

NARRATIVE:

ffiBo,,o authorization, in accordance with public contract code Section 20227, for the

a;r"..", 
-t 

d;;r to negotiate and award a sole source contract with Kampa lntemational for the

purchase ofrail damper assemblies in the amount of$617'844'00' plus applicable taxes'

DISCUSSION:
Bffffig t. 1010, Kampa lntemational has worked with BART's Track Maintenance and

grii..".i-"g tfragD to a.r"fop, test and fabricate rail damper assemblies to effectively mitigate

;ii;;;;,il*dtU"."rutting noise. Kampa lntemati-onal specializes in custom designs and

fabrication of rail damper assem'blies for rail iystems and worked with BART to develop the

a,-p.,a..igouestsuitedforouruniquetrackcharacteristics.In2012,BARThiredlkmpa
tntemationat to fabricate and oversee ihe installation of their prototlpe rail damper assemblies on

acurvedsectionoftxackontheaerialguidewaybetweenNorthBerkeleyarrdElCenitoPlaza
stations. Historically, this section of track has had a high retum Iate of rail comrgation and a

high volume ofnoise complaints from the public'

Rail damper assemblies are composite steel and rubber components that clamp to the rail and

,"a*" *lt .ooogation and ambient noise levels. Since 2012, BART Engineering has regularly

measured the noise levels and monitored the rail grinding schedule thnough the section of track

frtted with the protot)?e damper assemblies. The impact of the rail damper installation has

p."r." ," be impressive. The need for grinding to reduce rail comrgation went from twice a year

io once euery fo* years. In addition, the volume of noise complaints has been nearly eliminated.

These results demonstrate how effectively these customized rail dampers have performed in this

historically problematic section of track.

M&E has identified two additional curved sections of track which are excellent candidates to

benefit from the installation of rail dampers. The curved sections of track near the post office in

w..t o*ma *a between Balboa Park and Daly city stations are both historically problem

areas for noise complaints. These sections oftrack require frequent rail grinding to contol the

railcomrgationandaccompanyingnoise.Thishighfrequencyofrailgrindinghasthesigrrificant

^:pp?"t "ttJil;a 
to Boar'l on Mav 12' 2016

Sole Source Procurement of Rail Damper Assemblies

eOlaO trfnreo nrut No



secondary effect of reducing the usefi.rl lifc of the rail itselfand increasing the frequency of rail
replacements. M&E is looking to award a sole source Procruement Contract to Kampa
Intemational to fabricate and oversee the installation by BART forces of their rail damper
assemblies at these two locations.

FTA Circular 4220.lF, Chapter VI, Subparagraph 3.l(l)(b) provides that the recipient may make
a sole source award rmder certain circumstances, including where not utilizing that sole source
would result in either "Unacceptable Delays" or "substantial Duplication Costs". The purchase
of rail damper assemblies from Kampa Intemational falls under both of these provisions
justifring a sole source contract.

Development of altemate rail damper assemblies from other manufacturers to satisfi BART,s
stringent specifications and performance criteria would require a significant amount of time.
This in tum, would result in lost opporhrnities to install the damper assemblies as part of the
upcoming scheduled weekend track shutdowns and would cause unacceptable delays in
addressing the issues with rail comrgation and excessive noise in other locations on the system.

Furtherrnore, procurement of alternative rail damper assemblies would entail a sigrificant
expenditure of funds which would duplicate costs previously incrured by BART for the design,
development and testing of the rail damper assemblies produced by Kampa Iatemational.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227,the Board may direct the purchase of any
supply, equipment or material without observance of competitive bidding upon a finding by
two-thirds of all members of the Board that there is only a single source of procurement and that
tlle purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment currently in use.

Staff has detemrined that KamFa Intemational is a responsive supplier, with a fair and reasonable
pricing based upon the independent cost estimate by BART staf.

Staffis now seeking to enter into direct negotiations with Kampa Intemational in order to award
a sole source contract for the purchase of4,140 rail damper assemblies at a total cost of
$617,844.00, plus applicable taxes, to provide a sufficient number of damper assemblies to
address two section oftrack that require frequent rail grinding to control the rail comrgation and
accompanfng noise. The contract would be subject to approval as to form by the Office ofthe
General Counsel.

Pusuant to the DBE Program, the Offrce of Civil Rights is utilizing race, gender neutral efforts
for Procurement confacts. Therefore, no DBE goal was set for this conmct.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funding of $617,8,14.00 for this Contract is available in projecr 15CQ001, Procure and Replace
Rails, Ties, Fasteners 2 . The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifres that funds are currentlv
available to meet this obligation.

The following table depicts funding assigrred to the referenced project since March 2014, and is

Sole Source Procurement of Rail Damper Assemblies 2



included in totality to track funding hisory against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this
request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

Fund Group Total Award€d
Varioqs FTA Grant sources 18,53€,422.18

State Propl B & Local Area Granls 1,762,810.M
BART Operating allocation to Capital 6,516,598.54

Grand Total 26,817,831.16

As of May 3, 2016,$26,817,831.16 is the total budget for this project. BARThas expended
$19,663,297.20, has committed $4,661,740.96 and reserved $239,000.00 to date for other
actions. This action will commit $679,628.40 including sales tax, thus leaving an available
balance of $ I ,57 4,164.60 remaining in fund resources for this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:
Based on the sole source for purchase ofrail damper assemblies for the unique characteristics of
the BART tack, there is no feasible altemative. Developing rail damper assemblies dilferent
ftom the assemblies currently in use on the BART system would be time consuming and very
costly.

RECOMMENDATION:
On the basis of analysis by staff and the Controller/Treasurer that the funds are available for this
purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:
Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board finds that Kampa lntemational is the
single source for the purchase of rail damper assemblies for the BART system that would
duplicate equipment currently in use by the District. The Board authorizes the General Manager
to negotiate and award a contract to Kampa International for the purchase ofrail damper
assemblies for an amount not to exceed $617,8,14.00, plus applicable taxes.

Two-thirds vote required.

Sole Source Procurement of Rail Damper Assemblies 3



:ing Nnrth

ffi

-.il[;

7'/
Focinprtcst



GENERAL iUINAGER FPROVAL:/-,4.- ACTION

oAfEl/' tt 6r'< efllzc BOARD INII1ATEO IIEM: NO
Odginator/Prgpored byi Alma Basu.to
Dept:

signxunroar.r0nnsn r* ,Ia \tt
iTffiTrK
bA"llo 1 

'

Controllo/Troaauror

tuliilr,
Olstrict Socrot ry

II

AUTHORITY TO AWARD AGREEMENT NO.6M5099,
DISTRICTWIDE SMALL BUSINESS STIPPORTIYE SERVICES

NARMTIVE:

PURPOSE:
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6MSO99, to the
Allen Group/Cooper Pugeda Management, lnc., a Joint Venture (TAG/CPM JV) to provide
Districtwide Small Business Supportive Services (SBSS).

DISCUSSlON:
The purpose of the SBSS is to expand the pool of available qualified small businesses and to
improve their ability to successfully complete their contracts- The Agreement will provide
ongoing support to small businesses through training workshops on topics such as, bid
preparation and submittals, bonding, insurance, contractual requirements, scheduling, stop
notices, change order preparation, and construction cost accounting. The SBSS will also
provide post award technical services such as preparation of submittals, work scheduling,
invoicing, payroll, and quality control. The assignments under this Agreement will be made on
on-call, defined by Work Plans, and subject to funding availability. Each Work Plan will have its
own scope of work, schedule and budget.

The Agreement is for a maximum of $1.6M over two (2) years with two (2) one year options at
$800,000 per year. However, the actual cost may be less based on the District's actual need
for on-call services.

On November 10,2015, the Advance Notice to Proposers was issued and the Request for
Proposal No. 6M5099 "Districtwide Small Business Supportive Services" (the 'RFP") was
advertised in eleven (11) publications, including minority-targeted newspapers. The RFP was
issued to fifty-three (53) firms. A Pre-Proposal Meeting was held on November'17, 2015 and
aftended by nine (9) prospective proposers.

On February 23, 2016, proposals were received from the following three (3) firms:

Firm Location Proposal Price

The Allen Group, LLC/ San Francisco, CA $3,678,818.00
Cooper Pugeda Management, lnc.
Butler Enterprise Group, LLC San Francisco, CA $3,054,503.08
Turner Group Construction Oakland, CA $6,594,560.00

k



A Selection Committee chaired by Contract Administration with representatives from the Office
of Civil Rights, Planning, Development and Construction, and Civil/Structural Engineer &
Construction ("Committee") reviewed the submittals. The Committee evaluated the proposals
retaining for the District the right to award to other than the lowest cost proposal, based on a
determination that certain technical advantages available from a proposalwill equate to added
value for the District. The proposals were reviewed first for responsiveness to the RFp. The
Committee subsequently conducted a more detailed review and evaluation and decided to
invite the three proposers for oral interviews. Staffs evaluation determined that TAG/CPM JV
received the highest technical score of the three proposers. After the oral presentations, the
Committee combined the qualificationsftechnicalscores and the oral presentation scores and
determined that TAG/CPM JV offered the best overall value to the District.

Pursuant to the revised DBE Program, the Office of Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender
neutral efforts for professional services agreements. Therefore, no DBE participation goal was
set for this Agreement.

Accordinglyi staff recommends award of RFP No. 6M5099 to The Allen Group, LLC/Cooper
Pugeda Management, lnc.

The ffice of General Counselwill approve the Agreement as to form.

FISCAL IMPAGT:
Agreement No. 6M5099 will be for $1.6M over two (2) years with two (2) one year options at
$800,000 per year. This Agreement will be funded as follows:

. $300,000 per year will be subject to Work Plans funded by Operations and Planning,
Development and Construction.

. $500,000 per year will be subject to Work Plans funded by federal, state and local
grants funds, as well as operating funds, on a contract by contract basis. The Work
Plans will be subject to funding availability and have its own scope of work, schedule
and budget.

ALTERNATIVES:
The District could reject al! proposals and solicit new proposals. However, re-issuing the RFP
would delay and adversely affect the implementation of the Districtwide Small Business
Supportive Services.

RECOifttltENDAT|ON:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:
The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M5099 to The Allen
Group/Cooper Pugeda Management, Inc., a Joint Venture, to provide Districtwide Small
Business Supportive Services in the amount not to exceed $3,200,000 subject to the District's
protest procedures and the FTA requirements related to protests.

AUTHORIry TO AWARD AGREEMENT NO. 6M5099, 2



PLANNING,
PUBLIC AFFAIRS,

ACCESS, AND
LEGISLATION

MATERIAL



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MBMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 6,2016

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: PPAAL Agenda Item # 7-A: Transit-Oriented Development Policy Update

As follow-up to the February 25,2016 Board of Directors workshop discussion on the Transit-
Oriented Development (TOD) Policy Update, staff will retum on May 12 with the attached
presentation outlining lessons learned on BART's TOD program performance to-date, and to
initiate discussion on preliminary policy goals. This meeting is the first of three successive
discussions that will allow the Board to comment and discuss the emerging TOD Policy.

The upcoming schedule is as follows:

o On May 26, staff will present a refined policy consisting of draft Vision, Goals, and
Strategies to achieve the desired outcomes.

o On June 9, staff is scheduled to present the TOD Policy for consideration by the Board
for adoption.

If you have any questions, please contact Bob Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning,
Development & Construction at (510) 874-7410.

i/ ,r-
Grace Crirnican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff





Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Policy Update:  


Program Evaluation and 
Discussion of Goals 


BART Board of Directors 
May 12, 2016 







TOD Policy Update Approach 
May 12:  Evaluate TOD Program to date 
 Review Potential Changes to Program Goals 
 


May 26:  Review Barriers to Future TOD 
 Discuss Strategies to Address Barriers 
 Review Draft Policy (Vision, Goals, Strategy) 
 Performance Measures 
 


June 9:  Potential Adoption of New TOD Policy 
 4-Year Work Plan Overview 
 


Late 2016: TOD Guidelines 
  Land Use Strategy 
 Affordable Housing Implementation Strategy 
  Final 4-Year Work Plan 
 Program Alternatives and Resources Needed 
     


1 BART Planning, Development & Construction 







TOD Policy Background 
2005:  
BART was the first transit agency in the country to adopt a 
TOD Policy, not a Joint Development Policy 
 


Objectives:  Move to Coordinated TOD Program 
  Rethink the Role TOD Plays in Changing Access 
 


Considered a national model – BART is still inspiring other 
agencies to create similar policies 
 


Not all strategies have been put into practice – Hindered by 
recession, staffing, funding constraints 


2 
BART Planning, Development & Construction 







Current TOD Policy Goals 


A. Increase transit ridership and enhance quality of life at and 
around BART stations by encouraging and supporting high 
quality transit-oriented development within walking 
distance of stations. 


B. Increase transit-oriented development projects on and off 
BART property through creative planning and development 
partnerships with local communities. 


C. Enhance the stability of BART's financial base through the 
value capture strategies of transit-oriented development. 


D. Reduce the access mode share of the automobile by 
enhancing multi-modal access to and from BART stations 
in partnership with communities and access providers. 


 
3 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 







What’s changed since last policy? 


1. Plan Bay Area: Regional vision includes 660,000 new housing units by 
2040, already falling short  


2. Ridership: shift toward ped/bike travel modes, but how can TOD help 
with reverse commute, non-work trips? 


3. Market Strength and Housing Affordability: 250,000 very low income 
households do not have access to an affordable home 


4. Growing Advocacy Focus on TOD: Buy-in that TOD is beneficial, but 
how do we ensure it is meeting everyone’s needs? 


5. Loss of Redevelopment: State lost $5 billion in local urban investment 
and $1 billion in affordable housing, annually, plus local staff 


6. Focus of Federal, State, Regional Resources on equitable TOD: Fed 
partners, SB375, Cap & Trade, Transit-Oriented Affordable Housing 
(TOAH) fund 4 







TOD Program 
Performance 







TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Residential and Affordable Housing Production 


Total Office Retail
Status Station Units (SF) (SF)


Castro Valley 96 96 100% -            -           
Fruitvale 47 10 21% 27,000     37,000    
Pleasant Hill Ph I 422 84 20% 35,590    
Hayward 170 0 0%
Ashby 0 0 0% 80,000
Richmond 132 66 50% 9,000       
Dublin/Pleasanton I 309 0%


TOTAL COMPLETED 1176 256 22% 107,000  81,590   


MacArthur 624 106 17% 5,000        42,500    


San Leandro 200 200 100% 5,000        1,000      


South Hayward Ph I 354 152 43% -            -           


1,178      458 39% 10,000    43,500   


2,354       714 30% 117,000   125,090 


Affordable 
Units


% 
Affordable


TOTAL UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION


COMPLETED AND UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION


Co
m


pl
et


ed
Un


de
r 


Co
ns


tr
uc


tio
n


6 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 







Castro Valley 
 67  


Fruitvale  
 219  


Pleasant Hill Ph 1 
 472  


Hayward 
 118  Ashby 


 103  


Richmond 
 137  


Dublin/ 
Pleasanton 


 215  


MacArthur 
647 


San Leandro 
144 


South Hayward  
246 


 -


 100


 200


 300


 400


 500


 600


 700


BART TOD Projects: Forecasted Net New Daily Riders 
(~2,300 Total) 


 
  


         
              


   
 


 
 


  
                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                           


                                                              


Modeled Ridership Estimates using BART Access Policy Methodology (Willson) analysis 7 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Ridership Mainly Large Residential Projects 







8 


Projects have generated 
~$275 million in 
infrastructure and 
revenue for BART 
 
Deals involved public 
subsidy, grants, and 
developer investment 
 
Each deal required 
unique negotiation, 
portfolio of 
improvements 
 
 


* 


* Sum total of ground lease, other revenue to BART 
1993-2023, to compare with the up front infrastructure 
investments. 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Program Supports BART’s Infrastructure Needs 







Currently in period of paying off parking garages through lease credits 


Expected Revenue from Completed Ground Lease Agreements, 1993-2036 
(Omits Other Land Sale/Swap/Negotiation Revenue) 


9 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Lease Credits for Parking Garages 







10 


Station Access Typology - Map 


Note: Draft as presented at April 28, 2016 BART Board Meeting 







Non-Auto Access Mode Share to BART Stations 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 


11 


61% 


46% 


33% 
22% 


15% 


31% 33% 


7% 


12% 


7% 


4% 
5% 


7% 6% 


14% 


5% 


7% 


7% 


4% 


5% 7% 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


1 - Urban 2 - Urban with
Parking


3 - Balanced
Intermodal


4 - Auto-Reliant
Intermodal


5 - Auto-
Dependent


TOD Stations Systemwide


Pedestrian Access Share Bicycle Access Share Transit Access Share


BART Planning, Development & Construction 


Source: BART Station Profile Survey, 2015 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Urban Stations Have High Non-Auto Access, 
TOD Stations Slightly Below Average 







Parking Replacement 


12 
BART Planning, Development & Construction 


Location of TOD Pre-TOD Post-
TOD % Replaced


Ashby 603       595      99%
East Dublin/ Pleasanton 850       1,350    159%
Fruitvale 481       344      72%
Pleasant Hill / Contra Costa Centre 2,897    2,937    101%
Richmond 628       769      122%
MacArthur 603       450      75%
San Leandro 476       276      58%
South Hayward 1,253    1,127    90%


P
re


-P
ol


ic
y 


P
os


t-P
ol


ic
y 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Policy Enabled Lower Parking Replacement, 
Needs are Site Specific 







Hayward:  
A Case Study of Development On and Off BART Property  


- Creative Land Swap with City 


- Strong Leadership of City 
Manager 


- Redevelopment Investment 


- Included greenspace 


- Part of successful Downtown 
revitalization effort 


 


13 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Most Impactful Projects Coordinated On- and 
Off-Site Improvements 







- Part of City Redevelopment 
efforts 


- Lower density, larger district-
wide plan 


- Improved intermodal access 
and sense of safety at station 


- Streetscape on Nevin Ave. 
- Transformative: 


- Kaiser Hospital was 
going to close, expanded 
instead in 2006 


 
 14 


Richmond:  
A Case Study of Holding a Longer Term Vision 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 


TOD PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 


Most Impactful Projects Coordinated On- and 
Off-Site Improvements 







Summary of Performance to Date 


• Value primarily in form of infrastructure 
• Parking structures have been large investment for 


BART’s program 
• Ridership dynamics of TOD could be more sustainable 


for BART 
• Each Project is Unique: 


• Each City is different 
• Relied heavily on Redevelopment for success: financial 


and visionary 
• Combined on/offsite projects are biggest quality of life 


successes 
• Encourage partnerships, engage early and often 


 15 BART Planning, Development & Construction 







Looking Forward 







Looking Forward: Going Bigger 


17 


How do we make a dent in our 
regional growth needs? 


Developable Land Acres Stations 


BART owned 300 39 


Other adjacent 
developable* 


700 30 


Total Land 
Availability 


1000 39 


TOD Implementation Working Group Vision – Rough Estimates 


If 40% (400 acres) built at 75 du/ac = 30,000 housing units 
1/3 affordable = 10,000 housing units 


 
If 10% (100 acres) built at FAR of 1.5 = 6.5 million sq. ft. of office/retail 


Roughly 17,000 new jobs 
*Net of Concord Naval Weapons Station 







Looking Forward: Moving Faster 


18 


Why do BART Projects Take So Long? 


Time 


1 


2 


3 


Market is strong enough to 
build, but entitlements are not 
in place 


Entitlements achieved as 
market declines, need to wait 


At last! Market and community 
support align! 


M
ar


ke
t C


yc
le


s 


C
ity


, D
ev


el
op


er
, C


om
m


un
ity


 S
up


po
rt


  
(E


nt
itl


em
en


ts
) 


1 2 3 


Required Threshold for Market, Support 


An illustrative example: 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 







• Rethink parking replacement strategy 


• Support specific planning and environmental efforts 


• Moving faster on development projects means: 


• Gaining community support in advance of RFQ/RFP 


• Offering predictability to developers 


• Streamlining internal systems (solicitation process, 
agreements) 


• Consider ways to replace the implementation function of 
redevelopment 


What can we do to accelerate the process? 


Looking Forward: Moving Faster 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 19 







Looking Forward 
Rethink Parking Strategy 


Current Method to Evaluate Tradeoffs of Replacing  
Parking with TOD  (Access Policy Methodology): 
 


20 


With TOD Project 
• Ridership from TOD 
• Access Mode Share 
• Resulting Fare Box Revenue 
• Parking Revenue 
• Lease and Other TOD Revenue 


Baseline Conditions 
• Baseline Ridership 
• Resulting Fare Box Revenue 
• Parking Revenue 


Used to test various station access & development 
scenarios to inform decision making 


20 BART Planning, Development & Construction 







Looking Forward 
Rethink Parking Strategy 


21 


ACCESS TYPE POSSIBLE STATION ACCESS APPROACH 
URBAN No parking 


URBAN WITH PARKING Expand Ped, Bike, Transit Opportunities 
Limited or No On-Site Parking 
Pursue Innovative Off-Site Strategies 


BALANCED INTERMODAL Define Replacement Ratio Using  Access Policy    
   Model 
Pursue Innovative Off-Site Strategies 


AUTO RELIANT, 
INTERMODAL 


Define Replacement Ratio Using  Access Policy    
   Model 


AUTO DEPENDENT Presume 1:1 parking objective, refine with Board 







Pearl District, 
Portland, OR: 
“This was done through 


the transportation 
agencies and advocates 


immersing themselves in 
long-term planning 


processes in 
a sustained manner 


rather than focusing on 
individual development 


proposals.” 


Looking Forward 
Replacing Redevelopment Function 


TCRP 182: Linking Transit Agencies and Land Use Decision Making, 2016 
Photo courtesy of Chris Yunker, Flickr 22 







TOD Policy Goals 







TOD Policy Goals - Objectives 


24 


• Place greater emphasis on community, regional transformation 


• Clarify desire to “fill empty seats,” and non-work trips 


• Clarify affordable housing and access to opportunity as goals 


• Address 3 key regional needs:  
• Plan Bay Area envisions more growth near transit 
• Bay Area not building fast enough to keep pace with vision 
• With loss of redevelopment, missing a major implementation tool 


• Broaden access language to affirm BART’s commitment to overall 
transportation choice, not just access mode share 


• Establish partnerships with many types of partners, and discuss 
level of risk BART is willing to absorb to forge creative partnerships 
 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 







TOD Policy – Proposed Goals 


25 


A. Connected Communities. Partner to ensure station entrances 
are seamlessly connected to surrounding communities, 
contributing to neighborhood/district vitality. 


B. Sustainable Communities Strategy.  Lead in the delivery of the 
region’s land use and transportation vision to achieve quality of 
life, housing affordability, and greenhouse gas reduction goals. 


C. Ridership.  Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations 
and times when the system has capacity to grow. 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 







TOD Policy – Proposed Goals 


26 


D. Value Creation and Capture. Enhance the stability of 
BART’s financial base by capturing the value generated by 
TOD, and reinvesting in the program to maximize TOD 
potential. 


E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban 
design to encourage transportation choices both on and off 
BART property, through enhanced walkability and 
bikeability, and seamless transit connectivity. 


F. Affordability. Serve households of all income levels by 
linking housing affordability with access to opportunity. 


BART Planning, Development & Construction 





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Current TOD Policy Goals

		Slide Number 5

		TOD Program Performance

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Looking Forward

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20

		Slide Number 21

		Slide Number 22

		Slide Number 23

		TOD Policy Goals

		Slide Number 25

		Slide Number 26

		Slide Number 27






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT


Single Audit Report


For the Year Ended June 30, 2015


certified
Public
Accountants







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Single Audit Report


For the Year Ended June 30. 201 5


Table of Contents


page


Independent Auditor's Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit ofFinancial
Statements Performed in Accordance wilh Govemment Auditing Standards ......................................... I


Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on lnternal Control over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A- 133......................... .....................3


Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards.................... .............6


Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards.................... .......................9


ScheduleofFindingsandQuestionedCosts.................. .............................. l0


Summary Schedule ofPrior Year Findings and Questioned Costs.... ......................... 14


.J







certified
Public
Accountants


san Oi€to


Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control over Compliancei and Report on


Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133


To the Board of Directors ofthe
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District


Oakland, Califomia


Report on Compliance for Each Majot Federul Prugrum


We have audited the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's (the "District") compliance with the
types ofcompliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each ofthe District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2015. The
District's major federal progr.rms are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.


M anag ement's Respo ns i b ilil!


Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.


A udito r's ResponsibiliE


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Districl's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United Slates; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular 4.-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe District's compliance.


Opinion on Each Major Federal Program


In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.


Ma.ies Ghl& O Connell ILP
505 l4th Str.et, 5th Floor


www.mgocpa.com







Report on Internal Control over Compliance


Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with the types ofcompliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the District's intemal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and lo test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular 4.-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness ofthe District's intemal control over compliance.


A dejiciency in intemal control oyer compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevenl, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material wealorcss in inlernal control over compliance is a


deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal confol over compliance, such that there is a


reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signiJicanl deJiciency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.


Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identi! all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identi! any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be matelial weaknesses. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.


The District's response to the intemal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.


The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A- 133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.


Report on Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133


We have audited the financial statements of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Fund of the Disfict, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. We issued our report
thereon dated December 30, 2015, which contained an unmodified opinion on lhose financial statements.


4







Certified
Public
Accountants


Century clty


san Di.to


Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters


Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govenment Audiling Stsndo s


To the Board of Directors ofthe
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District


Oakland, Califomia


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Enterprise Fund
and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit Dislrict (the
"District"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 30. 2015.


Internal Control over Financial Reporting


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's intemal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's intemal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe District's internal control.


A deficiency in inlemal control exisls when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.


Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.


Mrcias Ghi& O'Connell tLP
505 14th stre.t, 5th Floo.


www.mSocpa.com







Compliance and Other Matters


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,


contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the


determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The


results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be


reported under Government Auditing Standards.


Purpose of this Report


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Goyernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.


lact'as


Oakland, Califomia
December 30, 2015


6w i C'c^*l lE


2







Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
compdse the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular 4.-133 and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibiligr of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The infomation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the ltnancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.


l'l** 6* i O'c*o( P
Oakland, Califomia
March 30, 2016


5







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awads


For the yea ended June 30, 201 5


(dolla mounts in thousads)


Program Description


Grant
CFDA Approval
Number Datc


I 6 unknown


Total Approved
Approved Federal
Budget Grsnt


$ 13 $ 13


13 13


Federal Federal
Awards Awards


Expended Expended
Prior to During


Fiscal Year Fiscal Year


Federal Share
es ofJune 30. 2015


Expended Received Raeivable


$13$10$3
13103


U.S. Depsrtment of Juetice:
Federal Burea of lnvestigalion


Su Frmcisco Joint Tenorism Tuk Force FY l5
Total U.S. Depanment ofJusti@


U.S. DeprrtEert of Tronsportotion:
Federal Tresit Administration (Ff A)
Federal Tresit Clusler


Federal Trmsit_Capital Investnent Crats (Setion 5309):


Dir@t progrms:
cA-03-0675
cA-03-0729-01
cA-05-021 I


cA-05-02r6
cA-05-0248-00
cA-05-0253
cA-05-0263-00
cA-o5-02'7',t-0o
cA-04-0212-00


Pos Through - Union City, Teminal/Intermodal Bus Station
cA-04-0046
c4-04-01 5 l -00


cA-04-0169-00
Total Federal Trmsit Capital Improvement Gruts


Federal Trmsit Formula Grmts (Seaion 5307):
Direct progrmsi


cA-90-Y0l 8


cA-90-Y054
CA.9O-YI I I


cA-90-Y216
cA-90-v2?o
cA-90-Y339
cA-90-Y42r
cA-90-Y541
cA-05-0224
cA-04-0043
cA-05-0236


cA-04-0126
cA-90Y604
cA-90-0689
cA-95-X095-00
cA-90-Y694-00
cA-90-Y833-00
cA-95-X145-00
cA-90-Y873-00
cA-9G.Y946-00


(b) Grat wc closed during the fiul yeu
(p) Pan of grat w6 pred through to other agencies


(b) 07D?tu
03R0l05
09lt4106
oTlt6lo'l
09lzvl0
09lt6ltt
09Dvt2
tyt3/13
oil06lt4


02/23/Ot
t2lot/ot
09123/02


oB/o't/03


09/24/02
0't t25/05
09/19/06
o'1D1lo',t


09to2to&
09/171O8


08/26/09
09lo9lo9
08/05/08
05/ t2lo8
o8t24to9
08/26109


@124/LO


6/22/Lt
09122/|
09/2vt2


10,556


21,373
36,1 06
50,335
48,055
45,630
36,399


908
5,173


26,313
4l,169
52,O32


t2,t93
7 4,t',t 5


43,',t04


52,60'l
57,412
62,t44
10,854


67,620
3,951


13,5't5
l,o


31,157
tz,70a
14,507


8,193


67,615
88,561


8,445
17,o99


28,885


40,268
38,444
36,504


29,|9
726


4,138


21,6',15


35,380
43,924
9,754


61,6t4
35,939
44,346
45,930
49,715


8,683


54,096
3,161


26,860
877


27,583
10,167


I 1,606


7,253


54,O92


70,849


8,445
I 1,614


22,484
24,536
20,516
14,568


12,560
511


20,639
35,380
42,454


9,640
57,63'.1


24,t40
44,346
27,8t2
32,257


6,4'l I
39,426


2,281
15,450


588


27,t14
6,7t1
6,1 95


2,300
40,010
62,61'l


1,592
5,620


t2,337
5,818


6,27 t


3,517


155


e70 (p)


1,036


1,439


100


2,479
794


2,776
3,724


2t5
4,127


306


3,504


6l


450
266


2


809


307


8,445 4,44s


t3,206 I 1,759


28,104 26,64
36,873 34,077


26,334 25,tt7
20,839 t?,933
t6,o77 14,509


726 726


970 954


21,6'.15


35,380
43,893


9,'.l40
60,1 l6
24,934
44,346
30,588
35,981


6,686
43,953


2,587
18,954


649
2'7,138
't,t6t
6,461


3,242
40,819
62,944


21,6'.15


35,380
43,1 l0


9,635
59,812


24,446
44,346
27.23'7


34,006
6,554


42,466
2,507


t7,516
619


2'1,138


6,953


6,324


2,820
40,560
62,467


og/tlol 3,232 2,5a6 2,586 - 2,586 2,444 142


o2t26n0 t,199 959 306 514 820 203 6t7
o6t02^0 1,084 867 a67 867 A24 43


260,050 208,040 119,053 36,794 155,847 143,655 12,192


1,447


I,440
2,796
1,2t7
2,906
r,568


l6


783
105


304
488


3,351


1,975


132
1,087


80


1,438


30


(b)
(b)


(b)


(b)
208


t3'l
422
259
tt7


The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule


6


o7 /26104


(b)







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPTD TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awrds


For the yo ended June 30, 201 5


(dolla mounts in thousmds)


Grant Total
Approval Approved


Approved
Federal
Grant


Federal Federsl
Awards Awards


Expended Expended
Prior to During


Fiscal Year Fiscal Year


Federal Share


Erpended Received ReceivableProgram Descriplion
CFDA


Number


U.S, Depsrtment of Trsnlportrtion (continued):
Dret progrms (continued):


cA-90-2079-00
cA-90-x236-00
cA-95-X271-00
cA-90-2t77-oo


Pcs Through - Union City, Teminal/Intemodal Bus Station
cA-95-X048
cA-95-X185-00


Total Fedqal Trasit Fomula Grets


state of fu Repair Grets Progm (stion 5337)


Dir@t Progrm:
cA-54-0007
cA-54-0023


Total State ofcood Repair Gruts Progrm


Total Federal Trmsit Cluster


Public Trmsportation Rewh, Tehnica.l Assistance, ild Training (Selion
s3t2).


cA-26-fi06


New Fredom Progrm (Section 5317):
cA-57-X075


Federal Highway Administration (FtIwA)
Highwy Plmning ud Construation


Powd Through - Srate ofcalifomia Department ofTrilsportation
Seismia Retrofit


ProJect #6000 (025)-04-9241o9L


Prqecr #6000 (043)-04-925620


Prqea #6000 (044)-04-925621


Project t6000 (04?!04-925625
Prorect t16000 (060)


sTPrz5ooo (0s8)
Project #6000 (049>04-925646


Total Highway Plmning md Construction


New fedqal awd
Grmt wo clo*d during the fisal yw
Grut w8 mmded
Pafl ofgrot ws p6sd through to other agencies


(a)


(a)


oUt4n4
o2lo7 114


o8/o5/14
o8t26lt4


Budget


$ 20,894
56,9'.15


7,188


12,839


t6,715
50,,140


6,393
10,2't I


I 1,810


:*


1,592


$ 591


I 1,012


543
7,279


234


t2,401
I 1,816


543


7,279


1,826


I I,966
5,106


182
'l,268


I,591


435
6,710


361


tl


235
(b)


(a)


04RO/09 2,063 1,826


03102/12 3,344 3,000
864,883 712,153


3,000 3,000 ______-_:
564,t52 545,484 18,668


6l,052 60,'191


76,893 75,520 t,3',t3


t37,945 1,634


857,944 825,45t 32,494


11/13/13


08/05/14
60,994 58


76,893
60,994 76,951


699,447 158,097


t34(b)


(b)


(0
(b)
(b)
(a)
(a)
(b)


20.5t4


20.521


o3/ot/t2 t50


04/16/12 360


150


e (p)


o1/27/l,O 30,242


06/04/12 23,735
0t/o3/14 12,1a2
ol,lollt4 23,'lt6
05/15/15 18,738


05/15/15 16,926
02/25/14 12,670


t38,209


24,',?56


4,56s
2,658
2,839
3,016


3,696
966


4r,4%


19,577


4,458
2,65a
2,8_39


958
30/ro


19,844
4,565
2,658
2,839


2t
ll


958


30,896


19,680


4,458
2,658
2,4_39


958


3OJ13


267


1o'


2t
tl


164


21


ll


303406


(a)


(b)


(0
(p)


105,088


2',11,945 2't7,556


1,396,878 t,13',7,',l49


The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule.


20.525


20.205


t34 134







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Expendilures ofFederal Awads


For the yw ended June 3q 2Ol 5


(dolla mounts in thoumds)


Grant Total
Approval Approved


Budget


Approved
Federal
Grant


Federal Federal
Awards Awards


Expended Erpended
Prior to During


Fiscal Year Fisc8l Yesr


Federal Shrre


Expended Received ReceivableProgram Description
CFDA


Number


U.S, Department of Trsrsportation (contirued):


Metropolitan Trasportation Planing od State ud Non-Metropolitil Ploning
ad Rewch (Setion 5303):


P6sed Through - Metropolita Trdsportation Commission
Agremmt 7440769
cA-05-02't't-oo
Agreement 74A0847


Total Mehopolitan Trdsportation Ploning ild State ad Non-
Maropolitan Plmning md Reffich (Section 5303)


Total U.S. Depatmot of Trdsportation


U.S, Department of llomeland Scurity:
Rail md Trmsit Security Grmt Progrm


Direct Progmsi
FY 2OO9 TSGP RA.T9.KOO3
FY 2010 RA-T0-K013
FEMA - EMW-201 3-RA-00004-S0l
FEMA - EMW-2014-R-0001 I-S0t
HSTS02I0HCAN625 - Fi$al Y@ 2014
HSTS02I0HCAN625 - Fisal Yw 2014
HSTSo2I5HNCP406 - Fisal Yea 2015


Total Rail od Trusit Security Grmt Progrm


Ilaz{d Mitigation Crat
Pcred Through - the State ofCalifomi4 OIfice ofEmergency Seruices:


FEMA - EMW-201 l-RA-K00039-S0l


Homelad Seurity Grat Progrm
Pa*d Through - the City ed County of Se Fracis


2013 UASI Grat Fud
Total U.S. Depatment of Homelmd Security


TOTAL FEDERAL GRANTS


(a) NewFederalAwad
(b) Grat wo clored duing the fircal yea
(d) Cost trasfmed to eolher grut


(b)
(a)


o3lt9lt4 s 410
o6lt3/t4 45


o5lvt5 450


905


1,536,502


09/02109 14,235
o8l23lto 10,563


09/06113 12,890


09/o9lt4 17,4t2
o2/2v14 202


tt/20114 5l
o5/12/t5 202


55,555


20,780


u/ot/14 109


$ 238


40
300


5'18


l, | 8t,228


14,235
10,563


12,890


t'l,412
202


5l
202


20,'t80


200 $ 2t6
l0 40


$48
40


88256


$16
30


-
46


168


(b)
(b)


(a)
(b)
(a)
(a)


130,660


14,215
4,452


95


202


-


t 8,184


t58,722 889,382


14,235


I 0,563


1,555


202


5l
164


26,7',l0


4,920


856,418


14,235


10,563


202


25,000


27,44O


$ 883,908


168


32,965


r,iss


5t
t64


1,770


2,531


4,301


s--2126'-


o,ir r


1,460


5l
t64


'1,',186


2,585


9'.t.o39


97.67


76,444 76,444


$ 1,6r2,959 $ 1,257,685


2,335


93 (2\ (d)J
!0,369 3t,7812t,412


$ 152,072 $ t6q,l04 $ e2t,l76


2,38e


(b)


The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule.







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards


For the Year Ended June 30, 2015


Note 1. General


The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federally funded
programs of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the "District"). The reporting entity is
defined in Note I in the District's basic financial statements.


Note 2. Basis of Accounting


The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting as described in Note 1 in the District's basic financial statements.


Note 3. Grants from Government Agencies


The District receives grants from the Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") and other agencies of the
U.S. Department of Transportation, U.S. Department of Homeland Security, State of California, and local
transportation funds for, the acquisition of transit-related assets, equipment, improvements and
reimbursement of certain transit related expenses.


Note 4. Relationship to the Financial Statements


Expenditures of federal awards are reported in the District's basic financial statements as capital assets for
capital expenditures and operating expenses for certain transit expenses.


9







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs


For the Year Ended June 30, 2015


Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results


Financial Statements:


Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified


Intemal control over financial reporting:
. Material weaknesses identified? No
. Significant deficiencies identified that are


not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported


Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No


Federal Awards:


Type of auditor's report issued on compliance with major
progr{rms: Unmodified


Internal control over major programs:
. Material weaknesses identified? No
. Significant deficiencies identified that are


not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes


Any audit findings required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes


Major programs:


CFDA Number Federal Program
U.S. Department of Transportation -
Federal Transit Cluster:


20.500 Federal_Transit Capital Improvement Grants
20.507 Federal_Transit Formula Grants
20.525 State of Good Repair Grants Program


97.075 Rail and Transit Security Grant Program


Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs $3,000,000


Auditee qualifies as a low-risk auditee? Yes


l0







SAN F'RANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs


For the Year Ended June 30, 2015


Section II -Financial Statement Findings


None


Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs


Finding 2015-001 Wage Rate Requirements (also known as the Davis-Bacon Act) (Significant
Deficiency)


Prugrum ldentfuation:


Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Program Title: Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Catalog Number: 20.500, 20 .507 and 20.525
Passed Through: N/A
Award Number: CA-90-Y541-00 and CA-90-X236-00
Award Year: 2007 and 2014


Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Federal Program Title: Rail and Transit Security Grant Program
Federal Catalog Number: 97.075
Passed Through: N/A
Award Number: FY 2010 RA-TO-KOI3
Award Year: 2010


Criteria
TITLE 29: LABOR PART S-STANDARDS PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS
COVERING FEDERALLY FINANCED AND ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION (ALSO LABOR
STANDARDS PROVISTONS APPLICABLE TO NONCONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO
THE CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT), Subpart A-Davis-Bacon and
Related Acts Provisions and Procedures, $5.5 Contract provisions and related matters.


(a) The Agency head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert in full in any contract in
excess of $2,000 which is entered into for the actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including
painting and decorating, ofa public building or public work, or building or work financed in whole or in
part from federal funds or in accordance with guarantees of a Federal agency or financed from funds
obtained by pledge of any contract of a Federal agency to make a loan, grant or annual contribution
(except where a different meaning is expressly indicated), and which is subject to the labor standards
provisions ofany ofthe acts listed in 95.1, the following clauses (or any modifications thereofto meet the
particular needs ofthe agency, provided, that such modifications are first approved by the Department of
Labor):


(l) Minimum wages. (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or
under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or
development ofthe project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without
subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by
regulations issued by the Secretary ofLabor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3), the full amount of
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereo0 due at time of payment computed at
rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached


ll







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs


For the Year Ended June 30. 2015


hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist
between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.


(ii) (A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy
of all payrolls to the (write in name of appropriate federal agency) ifthe agency is a party to the contract,
but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or
owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the (write in name ofagency). The payrolls submitted shall
set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR
5.5(aX3XD, except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly
transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each
employee (e.g., the last four digits ofthe employee's social security number).


Condition Identilied and Context
During our review of the District's compliance with the Wage Rate for the Federal Transil Cluster, we
tested 40 items from a population of approximately 600 certified payrolls for the Federal Transit Cluster.
Our testing shows that the District did not perform timely follow-up of overdue certified payroll reports
with the prime contractors for 26 of the 40 items selected for testing. Of the 26 items noted, the Dishict
appropriately did not disburse payments to the contractor until after receipt ofthe certified payrolls for I I
ofthe items tested. However, the District did not receive the required certified payroll reports prior to the
District's project managers' instruction to disburse of funds to the prime contractors for 15 of the 40
samples selected.


During our review of the District's compliance with the Wage Rate for the Rail and Transit Security
Grant Program, we tested 40 items from a population of approximately 200 certihed payrolls for the Rail
and Transit Security Grant Program. Our testing shows that the District did not perform timely follow-up
of overdue certified payroll reports with the prime contractors for 22 of the 40 items selected for testing.
Of the 22 items noted, the District did not disburse payment to the contractor until after receipt of the
certified payrolls for 19 of the items tested. However, the District did not receive the required certified
payroll reports prior to the District's project managers' inslruction to disburse of funds to the prime
contractors for 3 ofthe 40 samples selected.


Questioned Costs
None.


Effect
The department who is responsible for overseeing compliance with the Wage Rate requirement, did not
consistently veri! the laborers and mechanics employed by the contractors and subcontractors were paid
prevailing wage rates before payment was released to the contractors. There is a risk that federal funds
may be paid to contractors who do not comply with the Wage Rate requirements, resulting in unallowable
costs.


Cause of Condition
The District makes monthly payments to contractors. Although contractors are required to submit
certified payrolls weekly, they did not consistently comply with the required timeframe.


t2







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs


For the Year Ended June 30, 2015


Recommendation
Subsequent to the fiscal year, the District implemented a revision of its policies and procedures, which
specif that failure to submit certified payrolls may result in delayed progress payments. The policies ard
procedures are designed to ensure that certified payroll reports are received before any disbursement to
contractors. We recommend the District continue to evaluate the effectiveness of its current intemal
control policies to ensure that payments are not disbursed until certified payrolls are received.


Management Response


After the release in March 2015 ofthe Single Audit Report for fiscal year 2014, the District instituted the
following to address the audit findings with regards to compliance with the Davis Bacon Act:


. A new Labor Compliance Manager was hired.


. The District's original boiler plate contract specifications did not specifr that failure to submit
certified payrolls (CPRs) may result in delayed progress payments and therefore had to be updated.
The new process needed to be vetted through BART'S Planning, Development and Construclion,
Maintenance and Engineering, and Office of General Counsel prior to implementation on
January l, 2016.


o The Office of Civil Rights (OCR) conducted training workshops for project managers, resident
engineers and contractors related to the requirements of Davis Bacon Act.


. The Controller's Office and the Office of the Chief lnformation Officer updated the Electronic
Invoice Approval Process to include the Office of Civil Rights. The Office of Civil Rights also
updated its intemal certified payroll tracking system.


o OCR has developed a process to review CPRs to show that contractors and sub-contractors paid
workers properly, including verifring that apprentices are registered with the State ofCalifornia.


. Lastly, the District is developing a process to notiry prime contractors when they or their
subcontractors did not submit certified payroll records within the statutory required weekly time
frame.


13







SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Summary Schedule ofPrior Year Findings and Questioned Costs


For the Year Ended June 30. 2015


# 2014-001 Review and Accounting for Significant lmplemented: All issues were
Transactions (Significant Deficiency) addressed in the current year.


# 2014-002 Wage Rate Requirement (also known as Davis- [n progress: See Finding
Bacon Act) (Significant Deficiency) 2015-001


t4








FY17 Preliminary Budget 
Sources and Uses 
Service Plan 


April 23, 2015 


BART Board of Directors 
May 12, 2016 


 







FY17 Challenges and Priorities 


• Continue reinvesting in BART’s system infrastructure 
• Two-thirds of Capital Budget directed towards system reinvestment  


• Ridership and Sale Tax growth slowing, impacting revenue 
• Little additional revenue for new initiatives 
• Policies direct fare and parking fee increases to specific programs 


• Focus for FY17 
• Integrate New Rail Cars into revenue service 
• Open Warm Springs Extension 
• Prepare for opening Silicon Valley Berryessa (SVBX) and eBART 


projects 
• Plan for ‘Better BART’ General Obligation Bond 


2 







3 


Sources of Funds 


SOURCES  FY16   FY17  Change 
($millions)  Adopted   Preliminary     $   %  


Passenger Revenue  $         481.7   $         510.8   $   29.1  6% 
Other Operating Revenue               26.7                27.5           0.8  3% 
Parking Revenue               30.9                33.5           2.5  8% 


REVENUE TOTAL             539.3              571.8        32.5  6% 
Sales Tax             244.6              249.2           4.6  2% 
Property Tax               34.7                38.6           3.9  11% 
State Transit Assistance               16.5                14.0         (2.5) -15% 
Other Assistance & Allocations               12.5                13.4           0.9  7% 


TAX & FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TOTAL             308.4              315.2          6.8  2% 


SUB-TOTAL OPERATING SOURCES             847.7              887.0        39.3  5% 
5307 Funds (Rail Car Fund Swap from MTC)               52.7                47.1         (5.6) 
CAPITAL SOURCES TOTAL             664.8              876.3      211.5  32% 


SOURCES TOTAL  $      1,565.2   $      1,810.5   $ 245.3  16% 







Ridership and Fare Revenue 


4 


Net Fare Revenue  
•FY16 fare revenue estimate $490M ($9M over budget) 


- Compared to budget, total passenger trips revenue variance to date (2.2%) better than 
ridership (-0.2%) 


•FY17 fare revenue projected at $510M 


•Full year of CPI-based fare increase in Jan. 2016 
- $35M total, combined with 2014 fare increase, allocated to “Big 3” capital projects 


Avg Weekday Trips 


•FY16 YTD: core growth 2.9%, SFO 2.8% 


•FY16 Forecast: total average weekday 
ridership growth of 2.9% 


•FY17 budget assumption 2.3% 


 FY15 Actual 
 FY16 


Adopted 
 FY16 


Estimate  
 FY17 


Preliminary 


Average Weekday Trips 423,120         429,695         435,500         445,441         
Total Annual Trips (M) 126.0             129.4             129.4             132.4             


vs FY15 vs FY15 vs FY16 est
Average Weekday Trip Growth 1.6% 2.9% 2.3%
Total Annual Trip Growth 2.7% 2.7% 2.3%


0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%
9.0%


N
ov


 2
01


4


D
ec


 2
01


4


Ja
n 


20
15


Fe
b 


20
15


M
ar


 2
01


5


A
pr


 2
01


5


M
ay


 2
01


5


Ju
n 


20
15


Ju
l 2


01
5


A
ug


 2
01


5


Se
p 


20
15


O
ct


 2
01


5


N
ov


 2
01


5


D
ec


 2
01


5


Ja
n 


20
16


Fe
b 


20
16


M
ar


 2
01


6


Average Weekday Trips, year over year % change 







Parking Revenue 


5 


• Daily and Permit Parking FY17 increase primarily due to modifications to the paid 
parking programs 


• Implementation of Demand-Based Approach to Parking Fees   
– $2.5M of FY17 revenue increase generated by the program changes 
– Dedicated solely for investments in stations and access 
– 27 of 33 stations which offer parking have reached $3 Daily Fee price cap 


• FY17 parking revenue budget is $33.5M, includes an estimated total of $14.5M  
dedicated to stations and access projects (including the $2.5M increase) from the 
parking fee modification program 


FY16   FY17   Change 


($millions) Adopted Preliminary $ % 
Daily  $           21.2     $               23.8     $    2.5  12% 
Monthly Reserved                   7.4                       7.8   $    0.5  6% 
Single Day Reserved                  1.2                       1.3   $    0.1  11% 
Airport/Long Term                  0.9                       0.6   $  (0.2) -26% 
Coliseum Event Parking*                  0.2                         -    


TOTAL  $           30.9   $               33.5   $    2.5  8% 
* FY17 Coliseum Event Parking included in Other Operating Revenue 







Other Operating Revenue 


• Telecommunications FY17 $5.4M from fiber optic carriers and $4.6M from cell 
site revenue 


• Advertising based on contract 


• Fines and Forfeitures increase due to additional enforcement officers and higher 
fines for citations 


• Building and Ground Leases from leasing vacant parcels and Special Entrance 
Agreements at Powell Street Station 


• Other revenue sources include concessions and other miscellaneous revenues 6 


FY16   FY17   Change 


 ($millions) Adopted Preliminary $ % 


Telecommunications  $           12.1     $               10.0     $  (2.1) -17% 
Advertising                  9.2                       9.7   $    0.6  6% 
Fines and Forfeitures                  1.5                       3.3   $    1.8  121% 
Building and Ground Leases                  1.1                       1.1   $    0.0  4% 
Other                  2.9                       3.3   $    0.4  16% 


TOTAL  $           26.7   $               27.5   $    0.8  3% 







Sales Tax, Property Tax & STA 


• Sales Tax FY17 budget $249.2M, up 
3.4% from FY16 forecast  
– FY16 forecast: 3.4% growth, estimated 


to be $3.6M under budget 
– Slowing growth 


 


• Property Tax FY17 budget $38.6M, 
up 6% from FY16 forecast 
 


• State Transit Assistance (STA)  
FY17 budget $14M, down from FY16 
budget $16.5M 


– Based upon actual diesel sales tax 
revenue, which has been down 


– FY16 estimate below budget at 
$11.2M due to decline in diesel prices 


 
 7 







8 


Uses of Funds 


Operating Uses
($ mill ions) FY16 


Adopted
FY17 


Preliminary
$ %


Labor $468.7 $500.8 $32.1 7%
OPEB Unfunded Liability 2.5 2.4 (0.0) -2%


ADA Paratransit 13.6 14.2 0.6 5%
Purchased Transportation 13.1 13.8 0.7 5%


Power 40.3 41.0 0.7 2%
Other Non-Labor 117.9 120.5 2.6 2%


OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL 656.1 692.7 36.6 6%


Debt Service 50.3 52.7 2.4 5%
Allocation - Capital Rehabilitation 52.4 43.5 (9.0) -17%
Allocation - Rail Car Sinking Fund 45.0 45.0 0.0 0%


Allocation - Priority Capital Programs 27.0 35.4 8.4 31%
Allocation - Stations & Access Projects 5.5 5.2 (0.3) -5%


Allocations - Other 1.6 1.7 0.0 3%
Allocation - Rail Car Project from SFO Net Result 12.2 13.3 1.0 8%


DEBT SERVICE AND ALLOCATIONS TOTAL 194.1 196.8 2.7 1%


OPERATING USES TOTAL $850.2 $889.5 $39.3 5%


Budget Change







FY17 Preliminary Budget Positions 


9 


• Proposed budget initiatives  include 
14 positions: 4 for new initiatives and10 
for access/stations initiatives 


• Capital Positions are preliminary, will 
be finalized prior to budget adoption 


 


 


• Total positions have gradually 
increased after FY03-FY11 budget cuts 


• About the same number positions 
as FY02, but system has grown 


• Minimal increase in operating 
positions compared to previous 
years (1% increase in FY17 compared 
to 6% increase in FY16) 


Headcount Summary


Operating Capital
/Reimb


Total


FY16 Adopted Budget 3,221.6     524.8  3,746.4   
FY16 Adjustments 10.1           6.0       16.1         
eBART -             46.0    46.0         
FY17 New Initiatives 4.0             -      4.0           
FY17 New Initiatives - Stations/Access 10.0           -      10.0         


Total Adjustments 24.1           52.0    76.1         
FY17 Preliminary Budget 3,245.7     576.8  3,822.5   


FTE


 2,600


 2,700


 2,800


 2,900


 3,000


 3,100


 3,200


 3,300


Operating Positions







Wages & Benefits 


10 


• FY17 budget figures include the 
additional positions 


• Pension Employer Rates:  
Misc.  FY16 14.8%,  FY17 16.4% 
Safety  FY16 51.6%,  FY17 56.5% 


• Pension Employee Contribution:  
non-represented from 2% to 3% 7/1/16  
represented from 3% to 4% 1/1/17 


• Wages includes contractual increases: 
non-represented 3.72% 7/1/16 
represented 4.22% 1/1/17 


• Money Purchase Pension Plan includes deduction of $37/mo. for medical for non-safety represented emp. 


• Medical Insurance base composite rate (all plans) increases FY17 about 7% (second half of year estimated) 


• Retiree Medical based on February 2016 actuarial report, decrease due to reduction in overall 
participation assumption 


• Workers Compensation based on October 2015 actuarial report, plus increase in positions 


Labor (Wages and Benefits)
($ mill ions) FY16 


Adopted
FY17 


Preliminary
 $ %


Wages $326.9 $351.9 $25.1 8%
Overtime 16.2 18.4 2.2 14%


PERS Pension 69.8 77.8 8.0 11%
Other Pension 10.6 11.1 0.4 4%


Retiree Medical 28.0 25.0 (2.9) -11%
Medical 69.3 75.5 6.1 9%


Worker's Compensation 16.4 16.9 0.4 3%
Capital Labor Credits (91.3) (102.5) (11.1) 12%


Other Labor* 25.3 29.2 3.8 15%
OPEB Unfunded Liability 2.5 2.4 (0.0) -2%


NET LABOR $471.2 $503.2 $32.0 7%


Budget Change


*Other labor comprised of Vision, Dental, Medicare, Life Insurance, Disability, Unemployment, 
Meal and Uniform Allowances, Temp Help, and Employee Wellness Benefits.







Non Labor 


11 


Non Labor FY16 FY17
($ millions) Adopted Preliminary $ %
OTHER NON LABOR
Material Usage 31.0$                 31.7$              0.7$  2%
Professional and Technical Fees 27.5                   24.8                 (2.6)   -10%
Repairs & Maintenance 13.9                   14.2                 0.3    2%
Insurance 8.0                     7.7                   (0.3)   -4%
Building Space Rental 15.4                   16.6                 1.3    8%
Misc. Other Non-Labor 22.1                   25.3                 3.2    14%
SUB-TOTAL 117.9                120.4              2.5    2%


PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION
Paratransit 13.6                   14.2                 0.6    5%
Muni Purchased Transportation 3.2                     3.4                   0.2    5%
AC Transit Feeder Agreement 3.4                     3.6                   0.2    5%
Late Night Bus Service 0.7                     0.7                   0.0    2%
Purchased Transportation - OAC 5.7                     6.1                   0.4    6%
SUB-TOTAL 26.7                  28.0                1.3    5%


ELECTRIC POWER
NCPA, Western, BART Power Supply 26.2                   25.9                 (0.3)   -1%
Transmission Services 4.8                     7.5                   2.7    56%
Distribution Services 6.5                     6.7                   0.2    3%
Regulatory Pass-Through Costs 0.4                     -                   (0.4)   -100%
NCPA Member Expenses 0.8                     0.9                   0.1    13%
AB32 GHG Costs 1.6                     -                   (1.6)   -100%
SUB-TOTAL 40.3                  41.0                0.7    2%


TOTAL NON-LABOR 184.9$              189.4$            4.6$ 2%


Change







Debt Service & Allocations 


• Capital Rehabilitation Allocation  
– Baseline $23M: local match for federal grants, station renovation, equipment and cap maintenance projects 


– Additional $20M for multi year projects from earlier years, eBART start-up and HMC/Prop 1A “swap” 


• Rail Car Allocation: $45M towards Phase 1 commitment (FY18 final year) 
• Priority Capital Program Allocation: Net revenue from CPI-based fare increases to fund for 


Big 3 - Rail Car Replacement, Train Control Modernization, Hayward Maintenance Complex 
• Allocation to Rail Cars from SFO: Extension positive operating result directed to Rail Cars 
• Stations/Access: capital initiatives proposed to improve access and stations 12 


($millions)


Revised Preliminary Change %
Debt Service  $      50.3  $      52.7 2.4$        5%


Allocations     
Capital Rehabilitation          52.4          43.5 (9.0)        -17%
Rail Car Sinking Fund          45.0          45.0 -          0%


Priority Capital Programs          27.0          35.4 8.4          31%
Rail Car Project from SFO Net          12.2          13.3 1.0          8%


Stations/Access Projects            5.5            5.2 (0.3)        -5%
Other            1.6            1.7            0.0 3%
TOTAL  $   194.1  $   196.8 2.7$        1%


FY16 FY17
Budget







Capital Sources 


13 


*Actual funding subject to changes to project schedule, scope, cash flow, and other opportunities or challenges. 


30% 


11% 


7% 
6% 


12% 


11% 


7% 


17% 


Capital Sources - FY17 Budget* 


Federal formula and reinvestment funds
($260M) 30%


Regional funds (federal) – rail car 
replacement ($95M) 11% 


State, including Prop 1A and 1B ($59M)
7%


County sales taxes, bridge toll revenues
($55M) 6%


Other categorical/restricted funds
($101M) 12%


External funds ($93M) 11%


GO Bond program – Earthquake Safety 
($61M) 7% 


BART Allocations from operating budget
($144M) 17%







 
 


Capital Uses 


14 


$365  


$584  


$38  


$49  


$174  


$109  


$49  


$68  


$34  


$61  


$0


$100


$200


$300


$400


$500


$600


$700


$800


$900


$1,000


FY16 Budget* FY17 Prelim Budget*


System Reinvestment Service & Capacity


System Expansion Safety & Security


Earthquake Safety


 
* Does not include $5.5M for Capital  Corridor       


and other reimbursed capital  costs. 


67% 


6% 


13% 


8% 


7% 


Capital Uses - FY17 Budget 


System Reinvestment Service & Capacity


System Expansion Safety & Security


Earthquake Safety







Capital Uses – FY17 Programs 


15 
* Includes approximately $25M in safety-related system renovation, including fall protection, coverboards, emergency power, fire safety 
systems, communications, sidewalk repairs and other project categories. 


Program 
FY17 


Budget 
% of 


Budget 
System Reinvestment* ($millions) 


Rolling Stock $200.7  23% 
Mainline 71.5  8% 
Stations 64.8  7% 
Controls & Communications 69.6  8% 
Facilities 172.4  20% 
Work Equipment 5.4  1% 


Total System Reinvestment 584.5  67% 
Safety & Security 68.0  8% 
Earthquake Safety 60.6  7% 
Service & Capacity Enhancement 48.6  6% 
System Expansion 109.2  12% 
Reimbursements 5.5  1% 


TOTAL $876.3  







 
 


Capital Uses – System Reinvestment 
(excludes Big 3) 


16 
* Includes approximately $25M in safety-related system renovation, including fall protection, coverboards, emergency power, fire safety 
systems, communications, sidewalk repairs and other project categories. 







 
 


Capital Uses – Safety & Security 


17 







 
 


Capital Uses – Service & Capacity 
Enhancement 


18 







 
 


Capital Uses – System Expansion 


19 







Budget Initiatives 


• FY17 Budget Initiatives emphasize System Reinvestment – 
modernizing critical business applications used throughout the 
District, support for hiring and training the District’s workforce, and 
retrofitting train car windows. 


20 


Initiative Pos. Operating Capital Total 
Enterprise Resource Planning 2.0 $187,858 $1,812,142 $2,000,000 


Recruitment Support 2.0 500,000 - 500,000 


Workforce Development Grant Match - 250,000 - 250,000 


C-Car Cab Window Replacement - - 600,000 600,000 


TOTAL 4.0 $937,858 $2,412,142 $3,350,000 







Capital Uses – FY17 Activities (Big 3) 


21 


Component Repair Shop 
Construction through FY17  


Main Shop 
7 New Vehicle Lifts 
• First 3 lifts in Feb 2017 


Track work:   
Mainline tie-in, crossover, turnout & soundwall;  


Summer 2016 


Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC) 


3 & 4 2 


Beyond FY17:  
1. Hayward Yard East – fleet storage 
2. Vehicle Overhaul & Heavy Repair Shop 
3. Central Warehouse 
4. Non-Revenue Vehicle and M&E Shop 


1 







Capital Uses – FY17 Activities (Big 3) 


New Rail Car Program  
• Testing of 10 pilot vehicles 


• 30 cars scheduled for FY17 


22 


Train Control Modernization  
• August 2016:  Develop CBTC system 


performance specifications  


• November 2016: Complete industry & peer 
reviews of design-build contract documents  


• April 2017: Issue CBTC design-build RFP to 
proposers 







 Warm Springs Service Plan 


23 







Service Plan : Hours of Service 


Line Route Weekday Saturday Sunday 


Green 
Fremont Warm Springs/ 


Daly City 
5:00 am  4:00 am to 


7:00 pm 


Green 
Fremont/ 
Daly City 


9:00 am to  
7:00 pm 


Orange 
Richmond/ 
Fremont 


4:00 am to 
7:00 pm 


Orange 
 


Richmond/ 
Fremont Warm Springs 


7:00 pm to Midnight ALL ALL 


Yellow 
Bay Point/ 


SFO 
4:00 am to  
8:00 pm 


Yellow 
Bay Point/ 


Millbrae-SFO 
8:00 pm to Midnight ALL ALL 


Red 
Richmond/ 


Millbrae 
4:00 am to 
9:00 pm 


Red 
 


Richmond/ 
Daly City 


9:00 am to  
7:00 pm 


Blue 
Dublin/ 


Daly City 
ALL ALL ALL 


24 







Service Plan:  
Route Headways – No Changes 


Line Peak Period  Midday  Evening 


Green 15 15 


Orange 15 15 20 


Yellow 15/10/5 15 20 


Red 15 15 20 


Blue 15 15 20 


Line Saturday 
(6 am – 6 pm) 


Sat. Evening    
(7 pm -12 am)  


Sunday 
(8 am – 12 am) 


Green 20 (9 am start) 


Orange 20 20 20 


Yellow 20 20 20 


Red 20 (9 am start) 


Blue 20 20 20 


W
ee


kd
ay


 
W


ee
ke


nd
 


25 







Service Plan Requirements: 
FY2017 (Warm Springs) 


Revenue:  62 trains / 552 peak vehicles 


Line Route Trains x Cars 
Required 


Total Trains 
Required  


Total Cars 


Yellow Bay Point/SFO 13 x 10 13 130 


Blue Dublin/Daly City 10 x 9 10 90  


Orange Richmond/Fremont 8 x 6; 2 x 8 10 64 


Green 


 
Fremont  
Warm Springs /Daly City 
 


1 x 8; 4 x 9; 4 x 10 
4 x 9; 6 x 10 


9 
10 (+1) 


84 
96 (+12) 


Yellow Peak Hours Only 8 x 9 8 72 


Red Richmond/Millbrae 2 x 8; 4 x 9; 5 x 10  11 100 


SUB-TOTAL 62 (+1) 552 (+12) 


Ready Reserve 3 x 10; 1 x 9 4 39 


TOTALS 66 591 


26 


Fu
ll 


Ti
m


e 
Pa


rt
 T


im
e 


O
th


er
 







Service Plan Requirements: 
FY2017 (30 New Cars)   


Revenue:  62 trains / 569 peak vehicles 


Line Route Trains x Cars 
Required 


Total Trains 
Required  


Total 
Cars 


Yellow Bay Point/SFO 13 x 10 13 130 


Blue1 Dublin/Daly City1 10 x 9; 6 x 9; 4 x 10 10 94  (+4) 


Orange Richmond/Fremont 8 x 6; 2 x 8 10 64 


Green Fremont/Warm Springs 
4 x 9; 6 x 10 


10 x 10 
10 100 (+4) 


Yellow Peak Hours Only 
8 x 9;  


5 x 9; 3 x 10 
8 75 (+3) 


Red Richmond/Millbrae 
2 x 8; 4 x 9; 5 x 10  


4 x 9; 7 x 10  
11 106 (+6) 


SUB-TOTAL 62 569 


Ready Reserve 3 x 10; 1 x 9; 4 x 10;  4 40 (+1) 


TOTALS 66 609 (+18) 


27 
1All off-peak (short) Blue Line trains would be lengthened from 4 to 5 cars. 


Fu
ll 


Ti
m


e 
Pa


rt
 T


im
e 


O
th


er
 







  
FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 


Actual Actual Actual YTD thru Q2 Goal 


Customer on Time 
Daily 94.94% 94.48% 91.85% 91.31% 95.00% 


Trains on Time Daily 93.07% 91.94% 87.79% 87.57% 92.00% 


Mean Time Between 
Service Delays  3,758 3,584 4,000 4,382 3,550 


Wayside Train Control 
(delays/100 train runs) 1.04 1.48 1.75 1.53 1 


Transportation 
(delays/100 train runs) 0.52 0.51 0.49 0.46 0.5 


Traction Power 
(delays/100 train runs)  0.12 0.13 0.11 0.43 0.2 


Computer Control 
(delays/100 train runs) 0.07 0.14 0.07 0.14 0.08 


Customer Experience:  
Service Reliability 


28 







Customer Experience:  
Passenger Environment 


Results based on a 4-point scale (Excellent=4, Good=3, Only Fair=2, Poor=1) 
 


29 


  FY13  FY14 FY15  FY16 FY17 
Actual Actual Actual YTD thru 


Q2 
Goal 


Train Interior Cleanliness  
(cleanliness and graffiti) 3.01 2.95 2.96 3.01 2.97 


Train Exterior Appearance 2.96 2.89 2.89 2.89 3.00 


Train Temperature 3.22 3.16 3.12 3.14 3.12 


Train P.A. Announcements 
(arrival, transfer & destination)  3.17 3.1 3.11 3.09 3.17 


Environment Inside the Station 
(platform, restrooms, elevators, 
other station areas) 


2.86 2.76 2.71 2.73 2.90 


Environment Outside the 
Station 
(walkways, plaza entry, parking lot, 
landscaping) 


2.83 2.76 2.74 2.74 2.86 


Station Vandalism 
(graffiti) 3.1 3.02 3.00 3.03 3.19 


Station Services 
(agent and brochure availability) 3.05 2.97 2.96 2.97 3.06 







Customer Experience:   
Equipment Availability 


30 


FY13 
Actual 


FY14 
Actual 


FY15 
Actual 


FY16 
YTD thru Q2 


FY17 
Goal 


Car Availability 587 577 567 583 579 


AFC Gates 99.36% 99.28% 99.34% 99.14% 99.0% 


AFC Vendors 95.33% 95.57% 95.33% 95.60% 95.0% 


Escalator Street 89.55% 92.24% 91.33% 92.88% 95.0% 


Escalator Platform 94.8% 95.58% 95.79% 95.02% 96.0% 


Elevator Station 98.58% 98.04% 98.55% 98.35% 98.0% 


Elevator Garage 96.85% 95.39% 97.21% 97.03% 98.0% 







Operations Initiatives: 


• Continued Major Track Renovation  
• C Car Window Replacement 
• M Line Platform Controllers  
• T/C Room Water Intrusion  
• Organizational Maturation 
• RS&S SMP 


 
 


31 







Station  & Access Program History 


32 


• Demand-based parking fee program implemented in 
2013 


• Incremental revenue (New minus Baseline) is 
dedicated by Board Resolution No. 5207 to 
investments in:  
• Station Access 
• Station Modernization 
• Station Rehabilitation 







Excerpt from Board Resolution No. 5207 


33 







FY14 to FY16 Program Funding  Allocations 


Total Allocations = $31.8M 


Access 
$11.2M 


34% 


Mod 
$9.1M 
29% 


Rehab 
$11.5M 


37% 


34 







FY14 Ongoing Programs Type Location $3.59M Status 


Parking Enforcement Access Eastbay Commuter 
Stations, DC $0.17M Implemented 


Station Refresh Mod System-wide $0.70M Implemented 


Station Entrances Mod Downtown SF/ 
Oak/Berkeley $0.56M Implemented 


Station Brightening Rehab Downtown SF/ 
Coliseum/ SL $2.00M Implemented 


Transient Management Rehab SF stations $0.16M Implemented 


FY14 One-Time Programs Type Location $1.80 M Status 


Bicycle Storage Access Concord/WC/ 24th 


W.Oak/Lafayette $0.50M Implemented 


Bike Storage (year-end) Access Lockers System-
wide $0.50M Implemented 


Maintain Wayfinding Access System-wide $0.15M Implemented 


Remove Rope Sculpture Mod Embarcadero $0.25M Implemented 


Station Brightening  (year-end) Rehab Downtown SF/ 
Coliseum/ SL $0.40M Implemented 


FY 14 Program Total $5.39M 


FY 14 Station & Access Program Summary 


35 







FY14 Ongoing Programs $3.77M 


FY15 Ongoing Programs Type Location $1.31 M Status 


Parking Enforcement Access Eastbay Commuter 
Stations, DC $0.73M Implemented 


Station Cleaning Crew Rehab System-wide $0.58M Implemented 


Cumul. Ongoing Programs $5.08M 


FY15 One-Time Programs Type Location $5.18M Status 


Pedestrian Improvements Access DC/Orinda/ 
Coliseum $0.75M Out to bid this fall/Funds passed 


through to City/Complete 


Wayfinding Phase 3 Access System-wide $0.58M Contract awarded 2016 


Station Profile Study Access System-wide $0.50M Completed 


Benefit Assessment Districts Access System-wide $0.40M In progress 


Secure Bike Parking Access Lafayette, West 
Oakland, et. al. $0.34M Implemented 


Garage Full Electronic Displays Access System-wide $0.27M Undergoing tests now 


FY 15 Station & Access Program Summary 


36 







FY15 One-Time Programs Type Location $’s M Status 


Transit Information Displays Access System-wide $0.25M Full Implementation in FY16 


Shuttle Infrastructure Access System-wide $0.25M In progress 


Fee Parking Lot Prep Access Hayward, Concord,  
N. Concord, Coliseum $0.23M Implemented 


Bike Station (year-end) Access Pleasant Hill $0.15M In progress 


Last-Mile Corridor Studies Access Central Yellow-
line $0.10M Access Policy Development –  


For adoption FY 16 


Bus Bridges Access System-wide $0.10M Implemented 


Bike Program Operations Access System-wide $0.07M Expanded operations 


Access Website Upgrades Access System-wide $0.02M Implemented 


Station Lighting Retrofit Mod System-wide $1.16M Underway  


FY15 Program Total $10.26M 


FY 15 Station & Access Program Summary (cont.) 


37 







FY14 Ongoing Programs $3.86M 


FY15 Ongoing Programs $1.13M 


FY16 Ongoing Programs Type Location $2.80M Status 


Public Safety Access Downtown SF $0.62M Implemented 


Bike Program Access System-wide $0.05M Completed/expanded operations 


Art Program–PM Mod System-wide $0.21M Implemented 


Station Cleaners Rehab System-wide $1.05M Implemented 


Grounds Workers Rehab System-wide $0.62M Not Filled Yet 


R-Line Cleaning Supervision Rehab R-Line $0.26M In progress to fill positions 


Cumul. Ongoing Programs $7.79M 


FY16 One-Time Programs Type Location $5.70 M Status 


MacArthur Placemaking Access MacArthur $0.90M Complete by end of 2016 


Wayfinding Phase 3 Access System-wide $0.40M Contract awarded 


Bike Programs Access System-wide $0.35M In Progress 


Last Mile Studies Access System-wide $0.30M Underway 


FY 16 Station & Access Program Summary 


38 







FY16 One-Time Programs Type Location $’s M Status 


Embarcadero Elevator PE Access Embarcadero $0.25M Concept Plan Underway 


N. Concord/Martinez Parking Access NC/Martinez $0.20M PD&C designing 


Intermodal Safety Inventory Access System-wide $0.15M Scoping underway 


WSX Westside Bridge Design Access Warm Springs $0.10M Design complete end of 2016 


Station Recycling Mod System-wide $0.87M Developing RFQ  


Station Folders Mapping App Mod System-wide $0.40M eGIS system went live Q2 FY16;  
Project complete end of FY2016 


Lake Merritt Customer Svc Mod Mod Lake Merritt $0.30M Contract awarded 2016 


Energy Storage Pilot Mod System-wide $0.15M Project scoping underway 


Pigeon Abatement Rehab System-wide $0.72M In progress  


Station Refresh Expansion Rehab System-wide $0.55M Underway 


System Service Capital Rehab Oakland Stations $0.07M Underway 


FY16 Program Total $13.49M 


FY 16 Station & Access Program Summary (cont.) 


39 







FY16 One-Time Programs 
Mid-Year Additions Type Location $’s M Status 


Surface Lot PE Access Pittsburg/ 
Bay Point $0.30M Concept planning 


Access & Parking Assessment Access System-wide $0.15M Not Started 


Ped & Bike Network Analysis Access System-wide $0.15M Complete by end 2016 


TOD Policy Development Access System-wide $0.15M To Board for Adoption June-16 


South Entrance Prelim Eng Access Berkeley $0.10M Getting started 


Station Modernization Mod EC Del Norte $1.50M Project in Final Design 


Station Agent Dutch Doors Mod System-wide $0.30M Program underway 


Station Mod Assessment Mod Embarcadero/ 
Montgomery $0.11M Getting started 


FY16  Mid-Year 
Program Total $2.76M 


FY 16 Station & Access Mid-Year Additions 


40 







FY14 Ongoing Programs $3.98M 


FY15 Ongoing Programs $1.17M 


FY16 Ongoing Programs $2.89M 


FY17 Ongoing Programs Type Location $1.25M Status 


Station Platform Controllers Access Embarcadero $0.57M Prelim Budget Proposal 
Parking Community Service 
Officers Access Eastbay Commuter 


Stations, DC 
$0.42M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Station Project Manager Access System-wide $0.21M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Public Safety Initiative Rehab Downtown SF $0.05M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Cumul. Ongoing Programs $9.29M 


FY17 One-Time Programs Type Location $5.24 M 


Wayfinding Access System-wide $1.85M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Concord Plaza Access Concord $0.84M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Bike Parking Access System-wide $0.65M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Station Parking - PE Access 
Dublin/ 


Pleasanton 
$0.25M Prelim Budget Proposal 


FY 17 Station & Access Program Summary 


41 







FY17 One-Time Programs Type Location $’s M Status 


Surface Parking Access Pittsburg/  
Bay Point $0.20M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Station Platform Controllers Access Embarcadero $0.17M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Station Sustainability Mod System-wide $0.48M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Water Intrusion Remediation Rehab Fruitvale/SL/ 
DC $0.45M Prelim Budget Proposal 


Public Address System Pilot Rehab 1 underground/   
1 freeway median $0.35M Prelim Budget Proposal 


FY17 Program Total $14.53M 


Continued: FY 17 Station & Access Program Summary 


42 







 
 


FY17 Budget 


Board Schedule 


43 


April 14  Preliminary Budget Overview  


April 28  FY17 Preliminary Budget Procedural Actions 


May 12  Sources, Uses, Service Plan 


May 26  Public Hearing 


June 9  Resolution to Adopt FY17 Budget 





		Slide Number 1

		FY17 Challenges and Priorities

		Sources of Funds

		Ridership and Fare Revenue

		Parking Revenue

		Other Operating Revenue

		Sales Tax, Property Tax & STA

		Uses of Funds

		FY17 Preliminary Budget Positions

		Wages & Benefits

		Non Labor

		Debt Service & Allocations

		Capital Sources

		Capital Uses

		Capital Uses – FY17 Programs

		Capital Uses – System Reinvestment (excludes Big 3)

		Capital Uses – Safety & Security

		Capital Uses – Service & Capacity Enhancement

		Capital Uses – System Expansion

		Budget Initiatives

		Capital Uses – FY17 Activities (Big 3)

		Capital Uses – FY17 Activities (Big 3)

		 Warm Springs Service Plan

		Slide Number 24

		Slide Number 25

		Slide Number 26

		Slide Number 27

		Customer Experience: �Service Reliability

		Slide Number 29

		Customer Experience:  �Equipment Availability

		Operations Initiatives:

		Station  & Access Program History

		Slide Number 33

		Slide Number 34

		Slide Number 35

		Slide Number 36

		Slide Number 37

		Slide Number 38

		Slide Number 39

		Slide Number 40

		Slide Number 41

		Slide Number 42

		FY17 Budget�Board Schedule



